T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Major Applications

Planning
Committee
Date: THURSDAY, 14 JULY 2016
Time: 6.00 PM
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE
uBs8 1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman)
Councillor lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Henry Higgins

Councillor John Morgan

Councillor Brian Stead

Councillor David Yarrow

Councillor Peter Curling (Labour Lead)
Councillor Janet Duncan

Councillor John Oswell

Published: Tuesday, 5 July 2016

Contact: Alex Quayle
Tel: 01895 250692
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=325&Year=0

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1
2
3
4

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered in public
and those items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
5 | Former Tommy Flynns | Hilingdon | Redevelopment of the site to 1-32
P.H. Sutton Court East provide a new three storey
Road, Hillingdon building containing 26 flats (Class | 113 - 127

8396/APP/2016/777

C3) with associated parking,
balconies, landscaping and rear
communal amenity space.

Recommendation: Approval




Major Applications without a Petition

Address

Ward

Description &
Recommendation

Page

Gaelic Athletic Accos.
Sports Ground, West
End Road, Ruislip

24373/APP/2016/1511

South
Ruislip

Variation of condition 2 of
planning permission reference
24373/APP/2014/1946 dated
13/3/2015 (redevelopment of the
GAA Sports Grounds), to allow a
reduction in the overall length of
the main stand from 136.8m to
101.4m; a reduction in the overall
covered area from 54.6m to 39m;
removal of proposed terrace on
the north boundary; construction
of 2 step viewing area to replace
the north terrace; construction of
2 step viewing area to east and
west of the main stand (Section
73 application).

Recommendation: Approval +
Sec 106

33 -68

128 - 147

Unit 2, Trinity Trading
Estate, Silverdale
Road

70738/APP/2015/4688

Townfield

Change of use of an existing
storage depot (Class B8 Storage
and Distribution) into a waste
transfer station (Sui Generis
Waste Handling).

Recommendation: Approval

69 - 88

148 - 151

1-3 Uxbridge Road

1911/APP/2016/1472

Townfield

Change of use of Unit 4 to
Absorbent Hygiene Products
(AHP) recycling facility and
associated alterations to the
external elevations, addition of an
exhaust stack, storage tanks and
substation.

Recommendation: Refusal

89 - 112

152 - 160

PART | - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee 113 - 160




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address FORMER TOMMY FLYNNS P.H. SUTTON COURT ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Redevelopment of the site to provide a new three storey building containing 2¢
flats (Class C3) with associated parking, balconies, landscaping and rear
communal amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 8396/APP/2016/777

Drawing Nos: 214-PL-010 Rev OC
214-PL-011 Rev OC
214-PL-012 Rev 00 Demolition Plar
214-PL-100 Rev 0C
214-PL-200 Rev 03
214-PL-201 Rev 03
214-PL-202 Rev 04
214-PL-203 Rev 03
214-PL-300 Rev 02
214-PL-301 Rev 04
Design and Access Statement Pages 17-2!
Design and Access Statement Pages 1-11
Tree Protection Plan Rev C
PL-020 Rev 0C
Planning Noise Assessment BS 33699/PNA/Rev |
Planning Statemen
Daylight and Sunlight Assessment Revision
Energy and Sustainability Statemen
Transport Statement
Arboricultural and Planning Integration Report reference GHA/DS/19960:1
SuDS Drainage Statemen
Financial Viability Assessmen

Date Plans Received: 24/02/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/02/2016
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks consent for the redevelopment of the site to provide a new three
storey building containing 26 flats (12 x 1 bed and 14 x 2 bed) with associated parking,
balconies, landscaping and rear communal amenity space.

The scheme has been considered by Officers, and by reason of its density, scale, massing,
bulk, height and form, is considered acceptable in the context of the site and surrounding
street scene. The scheme would be of a scale and character that is acceptable in terms of
its impact on the amenities of the surrounding occupants. The proposed parking provision
and layout is considered acceptable and to not give rise to unacceptable overspill or
congestion in the surrounding roads.

In terms of the density and quality of the accommodation proposed, this is considered to

comply with the adopted standards and to provide suitable amenity for the proposed
occupiers.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 1



Whilst the scheme does not include the provision of on site affordable housing, a
contribution of £226,022 has been agreed with the applicant and will be secured along with
contributions towards construction training, highway works, travel plan and monitoring.

The proposal is therefore recommended for approval, subject to the conditions and
satisfactory completion of a section 106 agreement

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to grant
planning permission, subject to the following:

A) That the Council enter into a Section 106 Agreement or other appropriate
legislation to secure:

i) Affordable Housing: A financial contribution of £226,022 towards affordable
housing;

ii) Highway Works: S278/S38 for required Highways Works;

iii) Construction Training: A financial contribution to the sum of: Training costs:
£2500 per £1m build cost plus Coordinator Costs - £9,600 per phase or an in kind
scheme to be provided;

iv) Travel Plan to include £20,000 Bond;

v) Project Management & Monitoring Fee: A financial contribution equal to 5% of
the total cash contributions.

B) That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the
S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised before the 13/10/2016, or any other
period deemed appropriate that delegated authority be given to the Head of
Planning and Enforcement to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to provide measures to mitigate the impacts of the
development through enhancements to services and the environment necessary
as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in respect of
sustainable transport, environment, affordable housing, and construction training).
The proposal therefore conflicts with Policies AM7 and R17 of the adopted Local
Plan and the Council's Planning Obligations SPD and the London Plan (FALP 2015).

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

1 RES3 Time Limit
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years fror

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 2



the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 214-PL-100 Rev 00; 214-PL-200
Rev 03; 214-PL-201 Rev 03; 214-PL-202 Rev 04; 214-PL-203 Rev 03; 214-PL-300 Rev 03;
214-PL-301 Rev 04 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:
Reduction in energy use and renewable technology installation [Energy and Sustainability
Statement reference 07-14-40561 ES3]

SUDS [SuDS Drainage Statement February 2016, Draft 1 prepared by EAS]

Noise Mitigation [Planning Noise Assessment reference BS 33699/PNA/Rev B]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015

4 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the
approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 3



REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance and protects the
amenities of existing and adjacent occupiers in accordance with Policies BE23, BE24 and
BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 OM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and construction
management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan shall detail:

(hHMeasures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads (including
wheel washing facilities).

(ii) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas, which is close to a number of schools, in
accordance with Policy OE1 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies 2012).

7 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall
be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.
The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course
of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not damaged

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 4



during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

8 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Cycle and motorcycle storage (26 bicycle spaces and 1 motorcycle bay are required)
2.b Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.c Hard Surfacing Materials

2.d External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2015).

9 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 '"Tree work - Recommendations'
and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard
Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

10 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with Part M4(2) of the Building Regulations 2010 (2015 Edition). Further at least three of
the units hereby approved shall be designed and constructed in accordance with Part
M4(3) of the Building Regulations 2010 (2015 Edition).

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 and the
Mayor of London's Housing Standards Policy transition Statement May 2015
(Implementation: October 2015).

1 RES16 Energy (PV details)

Prior to commencement of development, full details and specifications of the roof mounted
PVs as set out in the Energy Strategy (Stroma, February 2016) shall be submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the type,
specification and location of the PVs including roof plans and elevations. The details shall
be accompanied by a sun path analysis to ensure the quantity and type of PVs are
optimised to reach the reach the required reduction targets set out in the Energy Strategy.
The development must proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason

To ensure the development achieves a CO2 reduction of 35% in line with London Plan
Policy 5.2.

12 RES17 Sound Insulation

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from
(road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works which form part of the scheme shall be
fully implemented before the development is occupied and thereafter shall be retained and
maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not adversely
affected by (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise in accordance with policy OE5

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan
(2015) Policy 7.15.

13 OM11 Floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in accordance
with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and direction of light
sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall not thereafter be
altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority other than for
routine maintenance which does not change its details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and London Plan
(2015) Policy 7.1

14 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The windows facing No. 76 Snowden Avenue (southern elevation) shall be glazed with
permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from
internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

15 RES13 Balcony screening

Notwithstanding the details hereby approved, details of the balcony balustrades and
privacy screen between balconies shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development. Thereafter the
development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the approved
details.

REASON

To protect the privacy of the future occupiers of the development, to prevent undue
overlooking to adjoining properties, and to ensure that the balconies have an appropriate
appearance in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

16 COM31 Secured by Design

The building should achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has been
achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



17 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both directions
and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and
2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

18 RES20 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities, closure
of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved development shall not be occupied until all
such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter, the
parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be permanently retained and used for no
other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m
wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may share an unloading area.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2015)

19 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2015).

20 RES17 Sound Insulation

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from
road traffic and air traffic noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall meet an acceptable internal noise design criteria. All
works which form part of the scheme shall be fully implemented before the development is
occupied and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long
as the building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not adversely
affected by road traffic and air traffic noise in accordance with policy OE5 Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan (2015) Policy 7.1¢

21 NONSC Refuse Storage Management

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



Prior to the occupation of the building, details and a scheme for the management of the
refuse store shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shall include details of how the store will be managed to ensure that the
external door remains shut, except on collection days, and provide details of the storage
area, door design and any ventilation.

REASON

To ensure the amenity of the occupiers of the adjacent residents is not adversely affected
by the development in accordance with policy BE19 and OES5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

22 RES26 Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The
scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and provide
information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate all
potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other identified
receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by a
suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly
identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site
suitable for the proposed use.

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement.

(ii) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be agreed
with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
verification report submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety
responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive, Rose
Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

2 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council;s Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3 118 Storage and Collection of Refuse

The Council's Waste Service should be consulted about refuse storage and collection
arrangements. Details of proposals should be included on submitted plans.

For further information and advice, contact - the Waste Service Manager, Central Depot -
Block A, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB8 3EU
(Tel. 01895 277505 / 506).

4 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel. 01895
250804 / 805 / 808).

5 124 Works affecting the Public Highway - General

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on
any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway. This
includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in connection
with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted. For further
information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



6 125A The Party Wall etc. Act 1996
On 1 July 1997, a new act, The Party Wall etc. Act 1996, came into force.

This Act requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement from, any
adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:-

1)  carry out work to an existing party wall;

2)  build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

3) in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations or planning controls. Building Control will
assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by Building Control should be taken as removing the
necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Act.

7 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to demolish
existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks
before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans must be
submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge
(Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

8 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

9 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



10 153

Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM14
AM15
AM7

BE13
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

H4
H5
H6

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.7
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.11
LPP 3.12

LPP 3.13
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.5
LPP 5.6
LPP 5.7
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
NPPF
NPPF1

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Considerations influencing appropriate density in residential
development.

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments

(2011) Large residential developments

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Affordable housing targets

(2011) Negotiating affordable housing (in) on individual private
residential and mixed-use schemes

(2011) Affordable housing thresholds

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Decentralised energy networks

(2011) Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals
(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Parking

(2011) Local character

(2011) Public realm

(2011) Architecture

National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008
1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies. On the
8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the
old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a two storey former public house located on the corner of
Sutton Court Road and Snowden Avenue. The surrounding area is mixed use in nature with
residential semi-detached dwellings to the south and east of the site and retail units with
residential flats on the upper floors to the west. Also within the surrounding area are a
number of community facilities.

Whilst the site is not located within any flood zones, it is located within a Critical Drainage
Area.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks consent for the redevelopment of the site to provide a new three
storey building containing 26 flats (Class C3) with associated parking, balconies,
landscaping and rear communal amenity space.

This submission has been developed with the refusal reasons in mind and has sought to
reduce the massing of the building proposed. The overall layout and design approach of the
building is the same as was considered within the previous application, however the
following alterations have been made to the approved scheme:

1. The redevelopment of the site proposes a 26 unit residential scheme (12x1 bed and 14x2
bed). This is a reduction of 4 units from the previous scheme which proposed (12x1 bed,
14x2bed and 2x3bed unit);

2. The central fourth floor has been removed from the scheme and the three storey elements
adjacent, reduced by approximately 1 metre;

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



3. Whilst the siting of the building adjacent to No. 76 Snowden Avenue remains the same,
the length of the building adjacent to No. 60 Sutton Court Road has been reduced;

4. As a result of the reduction in the footprint of the building, the parking area has been
enlarged, allowing for a green buffer to be installed along the eastern boundary;

5. The communal amenity space has also been enlarged.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

8396/APP/2013/1057 Tommy Flynns Public House Sutton Court Road Hillingdon

Demolition of two storey public house and associated cellar and car park (Application for Prior
Notification of Demolition)

Decision: 23-05-2013 PRN

8396/APP/2014/4118 Former Tommy Flynns P.H. Sutton Court Road Hillingdon

Redevelopment of the site to provide a part 3, part 4 storey building containing 30 flats (Class
C3) with associated parking, landscaping and rear communal amenity space (involving the
demolition of the existing public house).

Decision: 16-07-2015 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The planning history for the site is listed above. The only application of relevance to this
scheme is:

- 8396/APP/2013/1057 - Demolition of two storey public house and associated cellar and car
park (Application for Prior Notification of Demolition. This determined that prior approval was
not required and the demolition could therefore go ahead.

- 8396/APP/2014/4118 - Refusal for the redevelopment of the site to provide a part 3, part 4
storey building containing 30 flats with associated parking, landscaping and rear communal
amenity space.

This application was refused for the following reasons:

1. The scheme by reason of its excessive size, scale, bulk, massing, design and layout
would constitute an unacceptable over-development of the site, that would be out of
character with the design and appearance of the surrounding street scene and detrimental
to the amenity of the surrounding occupiers. Overall the scheme would fail to comply with
the National Planning Policy Framework, policies BE13, BE19 and OE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), BE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and HDAS 'Residential Layouts.

2. The development has failed to secure obligations relating to affordable housing provision.
Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Council's Planning Obligations SPD (July 2014)
and Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) and Policy
3.12 of the London Plan (March 2015) and the NPPF.

A summary of the main differences between this refused application and the current
submission is summarised in section 3.2 of the report.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.EM1
PT1.H2

(2012) Built Environment
(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
(2012) Affordable Housing

Part 2 Policies:

AM14
AM15
AM7

BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21

BE22

BEZ23
BE24
BE38

H4
H5
H6
HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.7
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.11
LPP 3.12

LPP 3.13

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families
Considerations influencing appropriate density in residential development.

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments
(2011) Large residential developments

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Affordable housing targets

(2011) Negotiating affordable housing (in) on individual private residential and
mixed-use schemes

(2011) Affordable housing thresholds

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.5 (2011) Decentralised energy networks

LPP 5.6 (2011) Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2011) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 23rd March 2016
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 23rd March 2016

6. Consultations
External Consultees

84 residents were notified of the application and 18 responses and one petition was received to the
consultation.

The main concerns raised by residents to the initial consultation were as follows:

1. The scheme is too large and a further reduction in the scale, bulk and mass is required. The
scheme will ruin the look, feel and community balance;

2. The scheme will result in an increase in traffic;

3. The area cannot cope with the additional cars as already cars double park to use the shops and
the number of schools means that there is a lot of school related traffic;

4. The scheme will overlook the surrounding residential properties;

5. It is an overdevelopment of the site;

6. The location of the car parking within the site will result in undue noise and disturbance to
surrounding residents;

7. No visitor parking is proposed as part of the scheme. This is required given the parking problems in
the area;

8. The roof gardens will overlook the adjacent properties;

9. The existing building should be kept and converted to flats as this is more in keeping with the aree

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



10. There is a concern with parking thresholds proposed as generally households have more than 1
car;

11. The site has a relatively low PTAL of 1b;

12.26 units proposed at a density of 104 dph is considered to be above the density guidelines, which
confirms that the scheme is an overdevelopment;

13. Concern over the loss of a green and landmark feature in the area;

14. The private balconies are not private spaces as they have glass surrounds;

15. There will be a potential increase in student numbers to 1600 using Sutton Court Road as the
main access as a result of school extensions/relocation of the entrance onto Sutton Court Road, and
with the increased traffic numbers resulting from this development, there is a pedestrian safety risk;
16.Area suffers from anti social behaviour and no CCTV has been incorporated into the design of the
scheme;

17.The siting of the building within the site will reduce visibility at the junction of Sutton Court Road
and Snowden Avenue;

18. The location of the bins is in breach of disability legislation as they will have to walk further than
able bodied residents;

19. Noise disturbance will arise from rubbish being collected and deposited as the large vans will
create disturbance;

20. Concern with vermin and overspill from refuse store;

21. Do not understand how this scheme can be acceptable in terms of impact on the character of the
area, overlooking, noise and disturbance, when a scheme for a bungalow in the back garden of No.
76 Snowden Avenue was rejected on such grounds;

22. The amenity space is cramped and is more a buffer to the car parking;

23. The reduction in the number of units by only 4 has little effect on the overall size and mass of the
building;

24. Sunlight needs to be considered thoroughly through an independant report;

PETITIONS

One petition has been received with 159 valid signatures. The main concerns of the petition are as
follows:

1. The scheme wold be overbearing and an overdevelopment of the site;

2. Insufficient parking allocation for a low PTAL rated area with no allocation for delivery,
scooters/motorbikes;

3. Road safety concerns for the whole area;

4. Pedestrian safety concerns from the overbuild and one access ways onto Sutton Court Road;

5. Inadequate provision of green space proposed or retained particularly around the TPO tree;

6. Potential loss of sunlight to residents to the north of the site on Sutton Court Road.

EXTERNAL CONSULTEES

METROPOLITAN POLICE

No objection to the scheme provided it achieves the Secured by Design accreditation. Officer is aware
of the conflict the development causes with neighbouring properties and would expect to see a higher
level of security afforded to secure the rear parking area. Would also request that the development
achieves a high level of security, paying particular attention to the parking area due to a previous
burglary problem.

A condition is recommended on any consent to ensure that any scheme meets with the Secured by
Design requirements.

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAYS
The previous application for 30 flats was refused (and appealed) and did not have a highway reason

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



for refusal. The current application is for 26 flats. One parking space is provided for each of the one
and two bedroom flats which complies with standards.

Refuse bin location is within the acceptable 10.0 m distance from the highway. Cycle parking
provision complies with LBH standards but needs to be covered and secure. A condition is
recommended on any consent to secure the suitable provision of both the refuse and cycle stores.

No objections are raised on highway grounds.

SUSTAINABILITY (summarised)

The energy strategy is broadly acceptable, and the proposals rely on PVs to reach the London Plan
target of 35% reduction of CO2. The elevations and roof plans shown no inclusions of PVs, however
the orientation and apparent availability of roof space does allow for PVs and therefore a condition is
recommended on any consent to show the PV array and ensure that the development is carried out in
accordance with the energy strategy.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT (summarised)

No objection to the scheme. Should planning permission be granted, any permission should include a
standard contaminated land condition and an imports/landscaping condition to ensure the
development is made suitable for use. A condition is also recommended to ensure that details and a
scheme for the management of the refuse store are submitted and a noise insulation scheme for the
flats to protect users from any road noise.

WASTE (summarised)

Waste provision was discussed as part of the previous application on the site and recommendations
for suitable provision provided. Comments relating to the number and size of bins required has been
provided by the officer and passed to the applicant for reference. The details of the refuse store can
be addressed via a planning condition if the scheme is recommended for approval.

TREES AND LANDSCAPE (summarised)

The tree report submitted has assessed the condition and value of the remaining trees within the site
and there are no 'A' grade trees. T1, an English Oak is rated 'B' and its condition and amenity justify
its retention. The remaining trees are mixed fruit trees and a sycamore and the condition, value and
useful life expectancy of these trees indicate that these are not a constraint to development.
Nevertheless their retention should be considered if feasible.

No objection to the scheme subject to conditions to secure site monitoring and supervision during
construction, hard and soft landscaping details and details of trees to be retained on the site.

FLOODWATER MANAGEMENT (summarised)

The proposed drainage arrangement set out in the Suds Drainage Statement dated Feb 2016
produced by EAS is considered appropriate and there are no further requirements than the
development should be constructed in accordance with the information set out within this document.

It provides a suitable sustainable scheme and calculations to demonstrate the development will
reduce run off from the site, and provides a management and maintenance plan.

ACCESS

No objection to the scheme provided 10% of the proposed ground floor units meet the standards for
M4(3) Category 3 - wheelchair user dwellings, with all remaining units designed to the standards for
Category 2 M4(2) - accessible and adaptable dwellings, as set out in ADM 2015. A condition is
recommended on any consent to secure details of such.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The Council has approved the demolition of the building within application reference
8396/APP/2013/1057. Given this consent, and that the building is not considered to be of
any particular architectural merit, no objection is raised to the demolition of the existing
building and its replacement with a building of an appropriate design and scale.

The London Plan (March 2015) aims to provide more homes within a range of tenures
across the capital meeting a range of needs, of high design quality and supported by
essential social infrastructure. In terms of new housing supply, the Borough of Hillingdon has
been allocated a minimum target of 5,593 in the period from 2015-2025

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Hillingdon's Local Plan support the
provision of residential accommodation in appropriate locations. The surrounding area is
predominantly residential and therefore there is no objection to the redevelopment of the site
for residential purposes, provided this is an appropriate design and scale, and meets the
requirements of all the relevant criteria and policies of the Council's planning policies.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2015) advises that Boroughs should ensure that development
proposals maximise housing output having regard to local context, design principles, density
guidance in Table 3.2 and public transport accessibility. Table 3.2 establishes a density
matrix to establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at different locations.

The scheme proposes a density of 264 habitable rooms/ha and 104 units/hectare, which is
considerably higher than the London Plan policy target for this area which is 150-250 hr/ha
and 50-95 units/hectare.

Whilst it is acknowledged that the scheme exceeds the density targets for such an area,
given the sites corner position and architectural approach, mixed pattern of surrounding
development, which contains family housing as well as flats and maisonettes, the scheme is
considered to be of a wholly appropriate density for the site, which is in close proximity to
services, shops and bus routes.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The proposal is not sited within or close to a conservation area or an area of special local
character. The scheme would also not affect any listed or locally listed building, nor is it sited
within an area that is of archaeological interest.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to the consideration of this application as the site is not located within the
Green Belt.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that development will not be permitted if the
layout and appearance fails to harmonise with the existing street scene, whilst Policy BE19
seeks to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves the
amenity and character of the area.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



Policy 3.5 of the London Plan states that the design of all new housing developments should
enhance the quality of local places, taking into account physical context and local character
and Policy 7.4 states that buildings, should provide a high quality design response that has
regard to the pattern and grain of the existing spaces and streets in orientation, scale,
proportion and mass and allows existing buildings and structures that make a positive
contribution to the character of a place to influence the future character of the area is
informed by the surrounding historic environment.

The site is located on a prominent corner. At present the existing building is set back from
the building lines on both Snowden Avenue and Sutton Court Road, and maintains a
significant separation distance to the east and south boundaries. Whilst the existing building
is notably higher than those adjacent, its set back and hipped roofs, ensure that this building
does not dominate its setting. Car parking for the existing Public House is sited along the
street fronting elevations.

In terms of the character of the surrounding development, the existing and surrounding
buildings are modest in scale and largely two storey, some with accommodation in the roof.
The development to the west of the site is three storeys, however given the design and flat
roof form of these buildings, they remain relatively modest in appearance.

This scheme proposes to locate the building to follow the established building lines of both
the Sutton Court Road and Snowden Avenue dwellings. No objection is raised to the
proposed siting of the building which is considered appropriate for its corner setting.

The scheme has been revised in an attempt to address the previous concerns in respect of
the bulk, scale, design and massing of the building. The main changes have occurred to the
elevation adjacent to No. 76 Snowden Avenue and the corner element of the building. The
elevation adjacent to No. 76 Snowden Avenue, has been reduced in height and scale so as
to create more a stepped elevation and reduce the impact on this dwelling. The building will
be set 6 metres from the flank wall of No. 76 and match the height of the eaves/ridge of No.
76. This height will be maintained for a width of 6.4 metres and will then increase to 10.5
metres (8.3 metres to the eaves) and then increase to the maximum height of 11.8 metres,
some 21 metres from the flank wall of No. 76.

Itis proposed to remove the central fourth floor of the proposed building, and the building will
now consist of a three storey curved central element, flanked on either side by similar height
pitched roof elements, which step down to 2.5 storey pitched roof elements. The two storey
element adjacent to No. 76 Snowden Avenue remains as previously proposed.

When considered in the context of the site and surrounding area, it is considered that the
reductions to both the height and massing of the building, introduction of more hipped roofs,
and reduction in the footprint of the building, respect the character, scale and appearance of
the street scene. These alterations are considered to represent a significant reduction over
and above the scheme that was considered previously, and overall are considered to
overcome the previous reasons for refusal.

The revisions still maintain the curved central focal point for the building, which mimics the
design of the existing Public House. Further, the removal of several of the flat roofs/roof
gardens within the site and introduction of pitched roofs enables the bulk of the buildings to
be reduced and maintains the predominant roof form within the surrounding street scene.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



The design and finish of the building is broadly similar to the previous scheme, and presents
a simple palette of materials, that respects the mixed design of the surrounding
development.

Overall, the scheme is considered to comply with Policies BE1, BE13 and BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (March 2015).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD, the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts (July 2006) further advises that all residential developments and amenity spaces
should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that new development should be
designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing. Generally,
15m will be the minimum acceptable distance between buildings. Furthermore a minimum of
21m overlooking distance should be maintained.

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied to
new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy. Policy BE21 states that planning permission will not be granted for new
buildings which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity would result in significant loss of
residential amenity.

In terms of the impact on No. 76 Snowden Avenue to the south of the application site, the
proposed development would be 8 metres closer to the flank wall of this property than exists
at present. A separation distance of approximately 6.2 metres is proposed between the flank
wall of the No. 76 and the proposed development. This distance is the same as that
proposed within the refused application on this site, to which no objection was raised.

No alteration is proposed within this submission to the distance, height or design of the part
of the building immediately adjacent to the flank wall of No. 76 Snowden Avenue. Within the
previous application, the scheme had been revised to reduce the height and form of the
building adjacent to this occupier. It was considered that given the separation distance
between the buildings, the modest height, scale and form of the element closest to No. 76
and proposal meeting the 45 degree line, the development would not be unduly overbearing
to this occupant nor result in an unacceptable loss of privacy or light. Within this application,
the roof garden proposed adjacent to No. 76 has been removed and the overall scale and
massing of the building has been reduced from the previous scheme. Given such, it is not
considered that this application will have a detrimental impact on the amenities of this
occupier.

It is noted that No. 76 has two windows in the ground floor side elevation. These are both

obscurely glazed and a secondary window to the living area, and bathroom window. Given
the use, obscure glazing and secondary nature of the windows, limited weight is given to the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



impact on these windows and it is considered that refusal could not be justified on such
grounds.

It is also noted that consent has recently been granted for a two storey side and rear
extension to this property (17008/APP/2015/1158) which was submitted to the Local
Planning Authority in April 2015 and determined on the 26th May 2015. It is worth noting that
this is a re-submission of a previous application (17008/APP/2006/1225) which was granted
permission in July 2006. Neither the previous consent or the recent permission have been
implemented on site. It is considered that regard has to be had to this in consideration of the
application, but given the extension has not been and may not be commenced limited weight
should be attached to the impact on this extension.

Notwithstanding this, were both applications to be implemented, the impact would be that
part of this proposed building would slightly impinge on a 45 degree line taken from the
centre of new windows in the extension of 76 Snowden Avenue. The HDAS Residential
Layouts indicates in what situations such an arrangement may, although not always, have
unacceptable impacts on the amenity of the neighbouring property. This being where a 45
degree horizontal angle measured from the middle of a principle window to a habitable room
on the adjoining dwelling is breached. In this case the first floor window impacted in the
extension would serve a bathroom and not a habitable room, whereas the ground floor room
impacted would be an open plan kitchen/dining space served by three windows in total. As
such, this scenario would not be contrary to the Council's adopted guidance and the
extended property at no. 76 Snowden Avenue would benefit from appropriate living
conditions in this scenario.

Accordingly, the extant permission at no. 76 Snowden Avenue is not considered to weigh
against the grant of permission in this case.

In terms of the impact of the proposal on No. 60 Sutton Court Road, this property has a
window in the side elevation which serves a staircase. The previous application on this site
was located approximately 18 metres from the flank wall of this property. This application
has increased the separation distance between the flank walls to approximately 21 metres,
and the overall height, scale and massing of this element has also been reduced. Given the
separation distance between the proposed development and this property, the scheme is not
considered to have a detrimental impact on the amenities of this occupier.

Distances of around 25 metres are maintained between the proposed development and the
nearest surrounding residential properties in Sutton Court Road and Snowden Avenue. A
distance of 38 metres would be maintained between the proposed development and the rear
elevations of the properties in Silver Way. These distances are considered sufficient to
ensure that the proposed building and amenity spaces would not give rise to unacceptable
levels of overlooking to the surrounding occupiers. In any case, there is a certain degree of
common overlooking which occurs to each resident in the area as a result of the common
pattern and layout of the existing streets. Given that the scheme complies with the Councils
separation distances in terms of privacy and overshadowing/overbearing, the Council
consider that the scheme is acceptable on these grounds.

Several concerns have been raised by residents in respect to the scheme overshadowing
adjacent residential properties. The previous scheme, which was much larger in scale and
massing than the proposal forming part of this application, was not considered to have a
detrimental impact on terms of loss of light or overshadowing. Notwithstanding such, the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



applicant was requested to submit an assessment of such with this application in order to
assess in greater detail this aspect.

The applicant submitted a 'Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing Assessment' as part of the
application. The daylight analysis was carried out on the surrounding properties facing the
proposed development at Sutton Court Road and indicates that the impacts on the
surrounding properties arising from the proposed development will be within the acceptable
limits (40 of the windows achieved the required Vertical Sky Component (VSC) levels of over
27% and the remaining 2 in the flank wall of No. 76 achieved VSCs greater than 25%).

In relation to sunlight, the British Research Establishment guidance seeks to ensure that
living rooms in the proposed development will appear reasonably sunlit provided at least one
main window walls faces within 90 degrees of due south and the centre of at least one
window can receive 25% of annual probably sunlight hours and at least 5% in the winter
months. The assessment indicates that all windows facing the proposed development and
within 90 degrees due south will pass the 25 degree line and received at least 25% of the
total available sunlight throughout the year and at least 5% in the winter period.

The conclusions of this report into the impact of the development on sunlight, daylight and
overshadowing, are that the proposal will not have any significant adverse impact to the
assessed windows in the neighbouring properties and no objection is raised on these
grounds.

Concerns have been raised in relation to the noise impact from the proposed development
which will be addressed within section 7.18 of the report.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

INTERNAL FLOOR SPACE

The London Plan (March 2015) in Policy 3.5 sets out the minimum floor areas required for
proposed residential units in order to ensure that they provide an adequate standard of living
for future occupants. This scheme provides a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bed units, of varying sizes.
The London Plan standards for the accommodation proposed is as follows:

1-bed 2-person 50m2

2-bed 3-person 61m2

2-bed 4-person 70m2

The gross internal floorspace for the proposed flats would be in excess of these
requirements. In terms of the internal layout of the proposed units, these are generally
considered acceptable and therefore the level of residential amenity provided for future
occupiers would be considered to be in accordance with Policy 3.5 of the London Plan
(November 2012).

EXTERNAL AMENITY SPACE

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Policy BE23 states that new residential buildings
should provide or maintain external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity
of existing and future occupants which is useable in terms of its shape and siting.
Developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and conveniently located
garden space in relation to the flats they serve. It should be of an appropriate size, having
regard to the size of the flats and character of the area.

In terms of the garden space requirements, if the spaces are to be shared, the Council would

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



expect there to be 20sgm for 1 bed flat and 25sgm for a 2 bed flat. Balconies should be
provided where possible for upper floor flats, along with private patio or garden areas for
ground floor units.

The scheme would be expected to provide a minimum of 590sq.m of amenity space to meet
with the Councils requirements. Overall the scheme provides approximately 908sg.m of
amenity space, in the form of terrace, balconies and communal gardens to the rear of the
site. Several of the balcony areas have been set back so as to not protrude from the
elevations of the building, which reduces the levels of actual and perceived overlooking
surrounding residents have raised concern over.

The proposal meets with the Council's requirements in terms of amenity space. A condition
is recommended requiring details of the treatment proposed around the balconies and
terrace areas.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

London Plan policy 6.1 seeks to ensure that the need for car use is reduced and Table 6.2
sets out the parking requirements for developments.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of
the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or
pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The application has been accompanied by a Transport Assessment, which includes a
detailed analysis of the proposed parking levels.

This scheme provides 1 space for each of the 1 and 2 bed units and includes 4 disabled
parking bays. Whilst concerns have been raised in relation to the number of spaces
proposed and the impact of overspill parking in the surrounding streets, the scheme has
been reviewed by the Council's Highways Officers, who consider that this provision is
acceptable. The general parking arrangement and provision is considered acceptable for
this site and no objection is raised.

A trip generation assessment shows that the proposed development will generate a marginal
increase in trips in the morning peak over and above the existing use of the site, however
this is not considered to have a unacceptable impact on the surrounding highway network.
The scheme will generate fewer traffic movements during the afternoon peak and throughout
the whole day compared to the previous use. This data has been reviewed by the Councils
Highways Officer and  on balance, the scheme is not considered to give rise to an
unacceptable impact on the general highway conditions of the surrounding area.

It should be noted that the Transport Assessment was revised to incorporate the latest traffic
data related to Abbotsfield and Swakeleys Schools. Officers are satisfied that this data does
not alter the conclusions reached in respect to the impact of the proposed development on
the surrounding highways network.

CYCLE PARKING
Secure, covered cycle parking is required as part of any scheme and this is located adjacent

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



to the southern boundary of the site. A minimum of one space is required for 1-2 bed units.
This scheme would require 26 cycle spaces to be provided, which the plans illustrate.
Details of the design and scale of the proposed cycle storage are to be requested as part of
a planning condition.

REFUSE

A bin store is located at ground floor level on the southern part of the building. This is an
integral feature of the building and the doors to this space open out onto Snowden Avenue.
The store is accessed by residents from inside the building, and the intention is that the
external doors will be solely for the collection of the bins. The scheme has been reviewed by
the Council's Waste Officer who raises no objection to the location of the refuse store, its
size and arrangements for collection.

Concern has been raised by residents in relation to the location of the bin store, its smell
and the potential for this to attract vermin to this part of the site. The applicants have
confirmed that the external doors to the store will remain locked shut until collection day. A
condition is recommended on any consent to ensure that the external doors are only used
during rubbish collection days. This would ensure that no smells or rubbish would overspill
onto the site and reduce the risk of vermin being attracted to the site. With regards to the
location of the store and how accessible this would be for flats in the eastern parts of the
building and any disabled occupants for example. The scheme has been reviewed by the
Council's Waste and Access Officer, who raises no objection to the siting of the bin stores
for this development.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

URBAN DESIGN
See section 7.07

UNIT MIX

Saved Policies H4 and H5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012), seek to ensure a practicable mix of housing units are provided within
residential schemes. One and two bedroom developments are encouraged within town
centres, while larger family units are promoted elsewhere.

The scheme proposes 13 x 1 and 13 x 2 bed units, in excess of the adopted floor space
standards. Overall, the mix proposed is considered acceptable for the location of the building
and no objection is raised.

SECURITY

The scheme has been reviewed by the Metropolitan Police Liaison Officer, who raises no
objection to the scheme but raises a number of suggestions to improve the security of the
site. Where possible, the applicants have discussed the comments of the Officer with the
Council and sought to incorporate the most suitable suggestions within the amended plans,
to which no objection is raised. A 'Secure by design' condition is recommended to ensure
that these suggestions are considered and incorporated on any approved scheme.

7.12 Disabled access

New developments are required to meet with the requirements and standards of policy 3.8 of
the London Plan (2015) and Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (ADM 2015).

The scheme has been reviewed by the Councils Access Officer who is raises no objection to
the scheme. A condition is recommended on any consent to ensure that 10% of the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



proposed ground floor units meet the standards for document M4(3) Category 3 - wheelchair
user dwellings, with all remaining units designed to meet the standards for Category 2
(M4(2) - accessible and adaptable dwellings. Given such, no objection is raised to the
proposed development on these grounds.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The London Plan sets the policy framework for affordable housing delivery in London.
Policies 3.10-3.13 requires that Boroughs should seek the maximum reasonable amount of
affordable housing when negotiating on individual private residential and mixed-use
schemes, having regard to their affordable housing targets.

The application exceeds the threshold of 10 units and above, and therefore on site provision
of affordable housing would be expected on such a scheme. The applicants have not
provided any on site affordable housing and a Financial Viability Report has been submitted
with the application.

In order to establish the level of planning contributions and affordable housing that can be
supported by the proposed development the Council will take into account the economic
viability of a scheme and the most effective use of public subsidy, as well as any particular
costs associated with the development of the site. In such cases, the Council will request
that the developer provides a financial appraisal of the scheme so that a fair contribution
can be agreed.

The applicants advise that as a result of the development costs and land value associated
with this scheme, that affect the viability, no affordable housing can be provided. The
application was referred to an independent third party, appropriately qualified, financial
advisor who concluded that based on their assumptions and comments, the appraisal of the
scheme provided a surplus of £226,022, and as such, the scheme could contribute towards
Affordable Housing.

It is considered that this surplus is not large enough to allow a 'policy compliant' level of
affordable housing to be provided. The appraisal demonstrates that at best, the scheme can
provide a 1 bed shared ownership flat, and Registered Providers are unlikely to be willing to
take on 1 unit due to inefficiencies. It has therefore been suggested to the applicant that the
surplus be used a payment in-lieu of on-site provision of Affordable Housing. The applicant
has agreed to pay a contribution of £226,022 and this will be secured by S106. It is
considered in this instance that given the size of the scheme and limited surplus, a review
mechanism would not be considered appropriate.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

A Tree Survey, dated 25 January 2016, by GHA has been submitted, which has assessed
the condition and value of the remaining trees on site.

T1, an English oak is rated 'B' whose condition and amenity value justify its retention within
the new development. The remaining trees are G2, mixed fruit trees and T3, sycamore,
which are rated 'C'. The condition, value and useful life expectancy of these trees indicate
that these trees are not a constraint on development. Nevertheless, their retention should be
considered if feasible.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



The report concludes (section 9) that it is practicable to retain all of these trees and
safeguard them during the demolition and construction process, subject to adherence to
specified methodology. A Tree Protection Plan has been submitted which shows the fencing
alignment and areas where 'no dig' construction will be necessary. This has been reviewed
by the Councils Tree Officer, who has recommended a condition to ensure site monitoring
and supervision by an arboriculturist during the development of the site.

The Proposed Site Plan, ref.PL100 Rev 00 and Proposed Ground Floor Plan, ref. PL200
Rev 03 indicate a landscape layout which includes private gardens and trees along the site
frontage, private gardens for ground-floor flats to the rear, shared amenity space and car
parking which will be 'broken up' and softened with tree and shrub planting.

Whilst the hard and soft landscape has not been worked up in any detail, the external spatial
arrangement has the potential to provide suitable landscape enhancement. The shared
amenity area should be designed and detailed to provide an attractive and useable space
for the benefit of residents and landscape conditions are recommended on any consent to
ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of
the surrounding natural and built environment.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

A Code Pre-Assessment and Energy Statement have been provided with the application,
which confirms that the scheme would achieve a 35% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions,
which complies with the London Plan and Council's policies. The energy strategy relies
heavily on PVs to reach the London Plan target of 35% reduction of COZ2.

It is noted that the elevations and roof plans show no inclusion of Photovoltaic panels (PVs).
The orientation and apparent availability of roof space does allow for PVs and therefore it
seems reasonable to assume that the development can include the energy strategy as set
out. Given the disconnect though, a condition is recommended to ensure that the
development can and will include the proposed energy solution.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposed drainage arrangement set out in the Suds Drainage Statement dated Feb
2016 produced by EAS is considered appropriate and there are no further requirements than
the development should be constructed in accordance with the information set out within this
document. The document provides a suitable sustainable scheme and calculations to
demonstrate the development will reduce run off from the site, and provides a management
and maintenance plan.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Concerns have been raised in relation to the juxtaposition of car parking spaces and existing
residential houses. The car parking spaces are shown abutting the boundaries with the
residential properties to the east. The parking has been moved away from boundary with
No. 5 Silver Way to the south

The applicant has submitted a noise assessment, which looks at the potential noise levels
likely from within and between the flats, the garden and balconies and car park. The
conclusions are that subject to adequate design measures, which for the car park, would
include the installation of a suitable fence along the south/east boundaries, the scheme
would not give rise to unacceptable levels of noise disturbance to the surrounding residents.
The levels of noise predicted within the survey, comply with the Council SPG 'Noise' and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



therefore no objection is raised to the scheme on noise grounds.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The comments arising from the public consultation have been dealt with throughout the body
of the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

As of 1st August 2014, the Council's CIL became effective which replaced a number of S106
requirements. Planning Obligations are still relevant for securing the provision of Affordable
Housing, Air Quality Improvements, Employment training provision and open space and
recreation.

Given the size of the development proposed, the scheme would be expected to provide 35%
of the housing proposed as affordable housing. This provision is sought on site, except in
exceptional circumstances.

The applicants advise that as a result of the development costs and land value associated
with this scheme, that affect the viability, no affordable housing can be provided. The
application was referred to an independent third party, appropriately qualified, financial
advisor who concluded that based on their assumptions and comments, the appraisal of the
scheme provided a surplus of £226,022, and as such, the scheme could contribute towards
Affordable Housing.

It has therefore been suggested to the applicant that the surplus be used a payment in-lieu
of on-site provision of Affordable Housing. The applicant has agreed to pay a contribution of
£226,022 and this will be secured by S106. It is considered in this instance that given the
size of the scheme and limited surplus, a review mechanism would not be considered
appropriate.

Further to the contribution towards affordable housing the following planning obligations are
also sought:

1. Highway Works: S278/S38 for required Highways Works subject to surrounding network
adoption status and Highway Engineers Comments

2. Construction Training: A financial contribution to the sum of: Training costs: £2500 per
£1m build cost plus Coordinator Costs - £9,600 per phase or an in kind scheme to be
provided.

3. Travel Plan to include £20,000 Bond.

4. Project Management & Monitoring Fee: A financial contribution equal to 5% of the total
cash contributions.

The applicant has agreed to enter into an agreement to secure the above contributions.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other issues for consideration with this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



In terms of the overall size, scale, siting and design of the proposal, this is considered to be
appropriate to the surrounding street scene and is not considered to have a detrimental
impact on the amenities of nearby occupants. The proposed parking provision and layout is
considered acceptable and to not give rise to unacceptable overspill or congestion in the
surrounding roads.

The applicants are proposing a contribution of £226,022 in-lieu of on site affordable housing,
which is considered acceptable in the context of the submitted viability report and site.

Overall, the proposal is considered to comply with the Councils adopted policies and
guidance and approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan 2015

The Mayor's London Housing Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

SPD 'Planning Obligations' July 2014

Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



.

/]

;
i

.'
e [
Sy

s

(7]
(=
3
o)
-4
(2]
o
c
]

l
Lo ..
el 5
s
L] !
e [T
L9
g
>
o

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
o Former Tommy Flynns PH Residents Services
For identification purposes only. Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . S . i "
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 8396/APP/2016/777 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Major Page 31 Ju|y 2016 ++ | 1_ I_ [ N G [) C) N

100019283 LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address GAELIC ATHLETIC ACCOS. SPORTS GROUND WEST END ROAD RUISLII

Development: Variation of condition 2 of planning permission reference
24373/APP/2014/1946 dated 13/3/2015 (redevelopment of the GAA Sports
Grounds), to allow a reduction in the overall length of the main stand from
136.8m to 101.4m; a reduction in the overall covered area from 54.6m to 39m:;
removal of proposed terrace on the north boundary; construction of 2 step
viewing area to replace the north terrace; construction of 2 step viewing area t
east and west of the main stand (Section 73 application).

LBH Ref Nos: 24373/APP/2016/1511

Drawing Nos: 7321 2000 Rev B. Ex drainage
7321 2001 B(1). proposed storm fou
7321 2002 Rev. B Pitch drainage propose
7321 2003 Rev. A main stanc
7321 2004 Rev. A elevation main stan
7321 6200 Location Plar
7321 2005 Rev. B Internal Road layou
7321 2009 Rev. A Sections
7321 2010 Rev. A west/soutt
7321 2011 Rev. B Step sectior
7321- Contrast Drawings
Stage 1 RSA Report V1.(
Revised Flood Risk Assessment Rev02-25-09-0
Revised Transport Assessment & Travel Plan Rev (
7321-2001 Rev. B Storm/foul drainage propose
MODE SHARE ASSESSMENT
2013 - 44 pp 107 site survey
7321-2001 Rev B Revised Drainage Layou
7321 - 2004 Rev. A Watermain Layou
7321-1003 Rev. B
7321-SK04 Rev. C
7321-SKO05 Rev. E
7321-SK06 Rev. C
7321-SK07 Rev .B
7321 180416 London GAA Planning Statemer
Air Quality Assessmen
Tree Survey Repori
Design and Access Statemen
Floodlight Assessmen
Heritage Assessmen
Noise Assessment Repor
Utilities Assessmen
Euromat secificatior
Energy Addendum Repor

Date Plans Received: 18/04/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 18/04/2016
Date Application Valid: 18/04/2016

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



1. SUMMARY

The application seeks minor material amendments to the planning permission reference
24373/APP/2014/1946 dated 13/3/2015 for the redevelopment of the GAA Sports Grounds.
The amendments sought involve a reduction in the overall length and covered area of the
main stand, and replacement with a 2 step viewing area to east and west of the main
stand; the removal of proposed terrace on the north boundary and replacement with a 2
step viewing area.

Other elements of the original approval, including the extension of the existing car park and
provision of overspill parking, a new exit onto West End Road (left turn only), a realigned
and reconstructed grass pitch with 1.2m high spectator fence all around, floodlights to the
training pitch, together with drainage and irrigation facilities and retractable ball keep nets
on northern side of the pitch, remain unchanged.

244 local residents/amenity groups have been consulted. To date, 3 individual responses
have been received, objecting to the planning application, primarily in terms of traffic
generation and impact on residential amenity.

The principle of the redevelopment of the site for outdoor sporting facilities has already
been established by virtue of the original planning consent. The proposal does not amount
to inappropriate development in the Green Belt, and as such, there is no need to establish
whether very special circumstances arise. The upgrading of the sporting facilities is
consistent with the development plan and no objections are therefore raised to the principle
of the continued use and enhancement of the site as an outdoor sports facility.

There are no objections in principle to the amended and reduced scheme for the stands
and canopy in conservation or design terms.

Subject to mitigation, it is considered that development would not adversely affect the
amenities of nearby residential properties from the activity generated by the development,
in terms of noise and outlook, or light spill from the proposed floodlights. In addition, no
ojections are raised in terms of parking and the highway implications of the development
subject to conditions and planning obligations.

Approval is recommended accordingly, subject to the conditions and planning obligations
imposed on the original planning consent.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That subject to the Mayor not directing the Council under Article 6 of the Town and
Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008 to refuse the application, or under
Article 7 of the Order that he is to act as the local planning authority for the purpose
of determining the application, and subject to referral to the Secretary of State,
under the Consultation Direction 2009 and HS2 Safeguarding Direction, delegated
powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to grant planning
permission, subject to any relevant amendments agreed by the Head of Planning
and Enforcement and also those requested by the Greater London Authority and
the following:

A) The Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) or Section 278 Highways
Act 1980 (as amended) and all appropriate legislation to secure:

(i) The applicants meet the full costs in connection with the design and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



implementation of a scheme of off site highway improvements, to be subject to a
Section 278 agreement, including access/egress arrangements and keep clear
markings on West End Road

(ii) Submission of a Green Travel Plan outlining means and methods of reducing
private transport use and the promotion of other sustainable forms of transport
(including a shuttle bus service and the provision of a £20,000 bond)

(iii) Submission of a delivery and servicing plan (DSP), a Construction Management
Plan (CMP) and a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) in accordanace with London
Plan and TfL guidance

(iv) Traffic studies, in order to assess the impact of left turn traffic emanating from
the site on the Polish War Memorial roundabout and agreement of a scheme for
appropriate highway improvements (where necessary) and funding the cost of
installing such improvements

(v) Project Management & Monitoring Fee: 5% of total cash contributions (if a cash
contribution is required as result of (i) and (iv) above).

B) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreements.

C) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for the determination by
the Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers to approve the
application, subject to any alterations required by the Head of Planning and
Enforcement, the completion of legal agreement(s)

under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other
appropriate powers with the applicant.

D) That if the above Section 106 agreement has not been finalised by 31st August
2016, or other time frame as may be agreed by the Head of Planning and
Enforcement, delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and
Enforcement to refuse the application for the following reason:

The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of
services and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed
development (in respect of off site highways works and a Travel Plan). The
proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

E) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

1 T Time Limit - full planning application
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 22nd January 2018.

REASON
To comply with Section 73 and 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers

2013 - 44 pp 107 site survey

7321 6200 Location Plan

321 2000 Rev B. Ex drainage

7321 2001 Rev. B proposed storm foul

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



7321 2002 Rev. B Pitch drainage proposed
7321 2003 Rev. A main stand

7321 2004 Rev. A elevation main stand
7321 2005 Rev. B Internal Road layout
7321 2009 Rev. A Sections

7321 2010 Rev. A west/south

7321 2011 Rev. B Step section

7321- Contrast Drawings

7321- 2004 Rev. A Watermain Layout
7321-1003 Rev. B

7321-SK04 Rev. D

7321-SK05 Rev. E

7321-SK06 Rev. D

7321-SK07 Rev. B

Euromat secification

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until mitigation measures have
been completed/put in place in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or
documents:

Reduction in energy use and renewable technology installation [Energy and Sustainability
Addendum Report dated 25 September 2014]

Air Quality Mitigation During Construction [Air Quality Assessment dated 30th May 2014]
Noise Mitigation Measures [Noise Assessment - DKN Acoustics]

Flood Risk Assessment September 2014 Ref: 47069067

Maintained Lighting Lux Level [Flood lighting Impact Assessment].

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies in the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 COM6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



5 COm7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 COMS8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall
be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.
The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course
of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not damaged
during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Secure and covered cycle Storage for 30 cycles

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments (the submitted details shall demonstrate
adequate treatments to ensure privacy for the residents on Masson Avenue)

2.d Car Parking Layouts for 122 permanent parking spaces, including demonstration that
20% (12 active and 12 passive) of all permanent parking spaces are served by electrical
charging points, 8 disabled parking bays and 11 motorcycle spaces

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities and privacy in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38, BE24, and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London
Plan (2015).

8 NONSC Energy

Prior to the commencement of development, full details of the PV panels shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include:

- The amount of PVs required to ensure the development complies with the carbon
reduction from 'be green' measures set out in the Energy Strategy

- The location of the PVs

- An assessment of shading and shadowing

- The type and specification of PVs

- Elevations and plans showing all the PVs in situ on the development site.

The development must proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to CO2 reduction in accordance with Policy 5.2 of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



the London Plan (2015).

9 NONSC Ecology

Prior to the commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include the measures to enhance and integrate ecological improvements within the
development. Bat boxes, bird boxes and living walls should all be considered alongside
specific wildlife improvements within the landscape proposals. The north-eastern boundary
of the site 'behind' the access road should be considered for specific wildlife improvements.
The development shall proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
Policy EM7 of the Local Plan and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan (2015).

10 NONSC Living Walls

Prior to commencement of development a scheme for the inclusion of living walls, roofs and
screens shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall provide details of the types of living material to be used and the locations and
methods of maintenance where necessary. The development should proceed in
accordance with the approved plans.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to a number of objectives in compliance with Policy
5.11 of the London Plan (2015) and Policy EM1 of the Local Plan.

1 OTH2 Archaeology

A) No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a
programme of archaeological works in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation
which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the local planning authority.

B) No development or demolition shall take place other that in accordance with the Written
Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A).

C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation
assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written
Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A), and the provision made for analysis,
publication and dissemination of the results and archive deposition has been secured.

REASON

Heritage assets of archaeological interest survive on the site. The planning authority
wishes to secure the provision of archaeological investigation and the subsequent
recording of the remains prior to development, in accordance with recommendations given
by the borough and Policy BE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

12 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved, a scheme for the provision of
sustainable water management shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it follows the strategy set out
in Flood Risk Assessment, produced by URS dated Sept 2014 and Appendix E

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy
5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to control
surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified
as well as any hazards, (safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters
d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk
from commencement of construction.

e. demonstration that any proposals to utilise exisiting drainage network not adopted by
utilities function appropriately for that purpose through the submission of CCTV

ii.provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues.

iii. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the management
and maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

(i) To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the
London Plan (2015) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the
Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). (ii) To be handled as close to its source as
possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (2015),
and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the
London Plan (2015).

13 COoM27 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Not withstanding the approved plans, development shall not begin until details of all traffic
arrangements (including where appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety
strips, sight lines at road junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces,
loading facilities, taxi/coach drop off points, closure of existing access, road markings and
means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved development shall not be occupied until all such works have been
constructed in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight
lines and loading areas must be permanently retained and used for no other purpose at any

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



time. Disabled parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m
wide where two adjacent bays may share an unloading area. Parallel parking shall be at
least 6 metres long except end bays.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2015)

14 NONSC Shuttle Signals

Development shall not begin until details of the shuttle signals with a vehicle detection
system serving the rear overflow car park have been submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until the works which
have been approved by the Local Planning Authority have been completed. Thereafter,
these facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON
In the interests of highway safety and in compliance with Policy AM7 of the the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

15 COM28 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both directions
and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and
2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

16 NONSC Control of games/spectators

The maximum number of persons attending any game or event at the site shall not exceed
the following:

* A maximum of one game/event per annum, attended by between 1,001 to 3,000 persons
* A maximum of three games/events per annum, attended by between 401 to 1,000
persons;

* A maximum of ten games/events per annum, attended by between 200 to 400 persons.

No game or event shall be attended by more than 3,000 spectators.

For the avoidance of doubt, there are no restrictions over the number of games/events
attended by less than 200 persons.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2015)

17 NONSC Parking Management Plan

Before any part of the development is occupied a Car Park Management Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



details of a pre booking system, and the use of the overflow car park for Tier 1 and 2
games.

The scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved
measures.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2015)

18 OM11 Floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in accordance
with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and direction of light
sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall not thereafter be
altered other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan and to protect the ecological value of the area in accordance with policies BE13, OE1
and EC3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and London Plan (2015) Policy 7.1.

19 NONSC Floodlight timing

The training pitch shall only be illuminated between the hours of 7am and 9pm Monday to
Saturday and 8 am to 9pm on Sundays and Bank Holidays. The training pitch shall not be
illuminated by the floodlights hereby approved at any other time. The floodlights installed
herein shall be fitted with a timer unit to ensure compliance with these times.

REASON
In order to protect the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy BE27 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

20 NONSC PA ststems

The development shall not begin until a scheme which specifies the provisions to be made
for the control of loudspeaker noise emanating from the site has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such
combination of physical, administrative measures (including hours of use), noise limits and
other measures as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the
scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved
measures.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

21 NONSC Ball Catch netting

The ball catch netting hereby approved shall only be installed when required during match
games. The netting shall be dismantled when not in use.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



REASON

To protect the visual amenity of the locality and the residential amenities of surrounding
residents in accordance with Policies BE21 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

22 NONSC Control over use of northern terrace

The northern terrace hereby approved shall only be used by spectators during the Tier 1
and 2 games (i.e. not exceeding a total of four games per year). Details of any proposed
safety railings/fencing shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority
prior to this element of the development commencing.

REASON

To protect the visual amenity of the locality and the residential amenities of surrounding
residents inaccordance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

23 NONSC Imported soils

All imported soils shall be independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results
of this testing shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All
imported soils used for the reconstructed pitch and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean
and free of contamination.

REASON

To ensure that the users of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

24 NONSC Energy Efficiency

Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant should demonstrate that the Part
L 2013 Target Emission Rate (TER) will be met through energy efficiency measures alone
for any treated elements of the building, unless it can be demonstrated that this is not
achievable.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to CO2 reduction in accordance with Policy 5.2 of
the London Plan.

25 NONSC construction management strategy

Development shall not commence until a construction management strategy has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority covering the
application site and any adjoining land which will be used during the construction period.

Such a strategy shall include the details of cranes and other tall construction equipment
(including the details of obstacle lighting).

The approved strategy (or any variation approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority) shall be implemented for the duration of the construction period.

REASON

To ensure that construction work and construction equipment on the site and adjoining
land does not obstruct air traffic movements or otherwise impede the effective operation of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



air traffic navigation transmitter/receiver systems, in accordance with Policy A4 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1

Run-off to surface water drains must be clean and uncontaminated to avoid pollution to
surface water or groundwater. Contaminated run-off should flow to the foul sewer if
available subject to the approval of your sewerage company. If run-off is drained to ground
or to a surface watercourse it should be passed either through a suitable sustainable
drainage system or through a standard oil separator. Please refer to the Environment
Agency pollution prevention guidance on car parks, particularly on oil separators in surface
water drainage systems.

The Environmental Permitting Regulations make it an offence to cause or knowingly permit
an activity that will result in the input of pollutants to surface water or groundwater, unless
authorised to do so by an environmental permit. This development may require an
environmental permit from us. The applicant is advised to telephone 03708 506 506, or
email enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk to discuss the issues likely to be raised.

2

The applicant is advised to contact the Council and the Metropolitan Police with regard to
arranging temporary traffic management for Tier 1 and 2 games. Private marshals shall not
direct traffic on the public highway.

3

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within
the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead in
order to address physical barriers that may prevent disabled people and their families from
participating.

4

Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected to
ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect people with

epilepsy.
5

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy. At this time the Community
Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be £68,443.05 which is due on commencement of this
development. The actual Community Infrastructure Levy will be calculated at the time your
development is first permitted and a separate liability notice will be issued by the Local
Planning Authority. Should you require further information please refer to the Council's
Website www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738".

6 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor
who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety
responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive, Rose
Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

7 112 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

8 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilis Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

9 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel. 01895
250804 / 805 / 808).

10 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



1 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be constructed
by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence to obstruct or
open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: - Highways
Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

12 124 Works affecting the Public Highway - General

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on
any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway. This
includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in connection
with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted. For further
information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

13 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability

discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from www.drc-
gb.org.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

14 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

15 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on
congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design o
highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and

children

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

R6 Ancillary recreational facilities

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 5.1 (2015) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and
enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate
soundscapes.

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

LPP 7.19 (2015) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

16 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower you
to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If you
require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

17 161 Lighting Near Aerodromes.

The development is close to the aerodrome and the approach to the runway. The applicant
is advised that there is a need to carefully design any lighting proposals. This is further
explained in Advice Note 2, 'Lighting near Aerodromes' (available at
www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp). Please note that the Air Navigation Order
2005, Article 135 grants the Civil Aviation Authority power to serve notice to extinguish or
screen lighting which may endanger aircraft.

18

For the purposes of conditions 17 and 22, Tier 1, 2 and 3 games as set out in table 1
(Schedule of Higher Attendance Games) of the submitted Transport Statement are defined
as follows:

Tier 1
- A single Connaught Championship match in late May

Tier 2

- The one-off London County Football Final annually in August
- The one-off London Hurling Final annually in August

- All Ireland Club Football Quater Final

Tier 3

- National Football league rounds 1-4
Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



- National Hurling League rounds 1-3

19

You are encouraged to undertake public engagement and consult with the residential
occupiers of Masson Avenue in developing plans and proposals for boundary treatment in
relation to condition 6 in order to ensure privacy issues are appropriately dealt with. The
submission in respect of this condition should include details of the engagement
undertaken and how this has been addressed within the proposals.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is broadly rectangular in shape accessed on the eastern side of West End Road,
south of the junction with Masson Avenue. Priors Farm and its associated buildings abutsthe
southern boundary of the site, whilst the northern boundary backs on to the reargardens of
properties in Masson Avenue, a residential street. The eastern boundary isadjacent to an
area of public open space, associated with a nearby school.

The west boundary (with West End Road) is delineated by a well-established hedge,
withoccasional trees, which currently screens views of the car park, club house and
sportspitches except at the vehicular gate at the north end of the perimeter. Along the
northernboundary occasional off-site trees associated with the rear boundaries of Masson
Avenueprovide some relief. There is a group of trees lining the southern boundary (west
end) anda hedgerow between the athletics pitch and Priors Farm. Trees on, and close to,
the siteare not protected by TPO or Conservation Area designation.

The principal features of the site are:

- a 92 space car parking area on the western portion of the site;

- the existing 2 storey club house, located in the south west corner of the site;

- a small, single storey temporary building along the western boundary close to the main
clubhouse building;

- a broadly rectangular grassed area at the western end of the site used for training
andoccasionally used for overspill car parking; and

- the existing centrally located playing pitch which is orientated on an east-west axis

- a grass embankment along the southern boundary

The whole site and the adjoining priors farm are designated as metropolitan Green Belt lan

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission ref:24373/APP/2014/1946 was originally granted for the redevelopment
of the site on 13/3/15. The proposals included the extension of the existing car park and
provision of overspill parking, a new exit onto West End Road (left turn only), a realigned
and reconstructed grass pitch with 1.2m high spectator fence all around, floodlights to the
training pitch, together with drainage and irrigation facilities and retractable ball keep nets on
northern side of the pitch.

The applicants explain that following receipt of a tender for the works, it became obvious

that the costs far exceeded the budget and in a bid to get the project back on track a full
review of the approved stand was carried out in an effort to reduce costs.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



This application seeks minor changes to the approved scheme. The main changes are
summarised below;

Main Stand:
A reduction in the overall length of the main stand from 136.8m to 101.4m
A reduction in the overall covered are from to 54.6m to 39m

Terraces:

Removal of proposed terrace on the north boundary

Construction of 2 step viewing are to replace the terrace
Construction of 2 step viewing area to east and west of main stand

Other elements of the approved scheme remain unchanged.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

24373/APP/2014/1946 Gaelic Athletic Association West End Road Ruislip

Extension of car park from 92 to 122 spaces, including 8 disability and 7 electric bays; additiona
vehicular exit and new pedestrian gate to West End Road; 30 cycle parking stands; taxi point;
pedestrian circulation routes; realignment and reconstruction of grass playing pitch; new
irrigation (groundwater abstraction borehole), drainage and stormwater attenuation works;
erection of partially roofed (three bays) 11 tier stand for spectator seating with ancillary
accommodation below including changing rooms for players and officials, gym, medical facilities
and toilets; pedestrian only access path along northern boundary; a low level standing terrace,
with covered area for disabled spectators and a camera stand; new southern perimeter access
track; floodlit artificial-surfaced training/warm-up area with demountable enclosure to enable use
as part of overflow car parking area (160 spaces); 15 metres high ball catch netting at each end
of the pitch and retractable netting 7 metres high to the northern boundary; enclosures within the
site comprising fencing, turnstiles and gates; replacement scoreboard; and, associated works
including landscaping.

Decision: 23-01-2015  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The site has a long established use as playing pitches and until the mid-1970s was usedas
the training ground for Queens Park Rangers Football Club, before being used by the GAA.
The existing club rooms in the south west corner of the site were constructed in 1984.

Planning permission ref: 24373/APP/2014/1946 was granted on 23-01-15 for the following
development:

Extension of car park from 92 to 125 spaces, including 8 disability and 7 electric bays;
additional vehicular exit and new pedestrian gate to West End Road; 30 cycle parking
stands; taxi point; pedestrian circulation routes; realignment and reconstruction of grass
playing pitch; new irrigation (ground water abstraction borehole), drainage and storm water
attenuation works; erection of partially roofed (three bays) 11 tier stand for spectator seating
with ancillary accommodation below including changing rooms for players and officials, gym,
medical facilities and toilets; pedestrian only access path along northern boundary; a low
level standing terrace, with covered area for disabled spectators and a camera stand; new
southern perimeter access track; flood lit artificial-surfaced training/warm-up area with
demountable enclosure to enable use as part of overflow car parking area (186 spaces); 15
metres high ball catch netting at each end of the pitch and retractable netting 7 metres high

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



to the northern boundary; enclosures within the site comprising fencing, turnstiles and gates;
replacement score board; and, associated works including landscaping.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.EM1
PT1.EM2
PT1.EM5
PT1.EM6
PT1.EM7
PT1.EM8

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
(2012) Sport and Leisure

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

Part 2 Policies:

AM14
AM15
AM2

AM7
AM9

BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE24
BE38

EC2
EC5
OE1

OE3
OE7
OE8

OoL1

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists’' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



OL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

R6 Ancillary recreational facilities

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 5.1 (2015) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

LPP 7.19 (2015) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 19th May 2016
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

The Notice of Proposed Development was advertised under Article 15 of the Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 2010 and 244 neighbours and local

amenity groups were consulted in the surrounding area. Site Notices were posted at the site. 3
individual letters of objection from residents in Masson Avenue, have been received, objecting to the

planning application. The principle areas of concern are:

1. The parking issues we have had in the past where we cannot park on our road when there are
events. Masson avenue should be blocked off to all but residents and family on these days. We do

not have parking restrictions on our road and this is a major problem.
2. The noise and how high the stand is going to cause a lot of problems.
3. Nuisance from construction activities.

GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY

No response.

NATS (Safeguarding)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



No safeguarding objections to the proposal.
MINISTRY OF DEFENCE (MoD)

The application site occupies aerodrome height, technical and bird strike statutory safeguarding
zones surrounding RAF Northolt. | can confirm that the MOD has no safeguarding objections to the
proposed development.

The floodlights, spectator stand and the roof covering part of the stand may be erected using a crane.

If a crane is to be used duringthe construction of this development it will be necessary for the
developer to liaise with the MOD prior to the erection of any cranes or temporary tall structures.
The MOD requests that a condition such as the one below be included in any planning permission
granted to ensure that the MOD is notified of when and where cranes will be erected.

Submission of a Construction Management Strategy

Development shall not commence until a construction management strategy has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority covering the application site and any
adjoining land which will be used during the construction period.

Such a strategy shall include the details of cranes and other tall construction equipmen (including the
details of obstacle lighting).

The approved strategy (or any variation approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority) shall be
implemented for the duration of the construction period.

Reason: To ensure that construction work and construction equipment on the site and adjoining land
does not obstruct air traffic movements or otherwise impede the effective operation of air traffic
navigation transmitter/receiver systems.

In summary, the MOD has no safeguarding objections to this scheme or the variation of condition 2.
SPORT ENGLAND

Itis understood that the proposal prejudices the use, or leads to the loss of use, of land being used as
a playing field or has been used as a playing field in the last five years, as defined in The Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (Statutory Instrument
2015 No. 595). The consultation with Sport England is therefore a statutory requirement.

Sport England has considered the application in light of the National Planning Policy Framework
(particularly Para 74) and Sport England's Playing Fields Policy, which is presented within its
Planning Policy Statement titled 'A Sporting Future for the Playing Fields of England' (see link
below):www.sportengland.org/playingfieldspolicy

Sport England's policy is to oppose the granting of planning permission for any development which
would lead to the loss of, or prejudice the use of, all/part of a playing field, unless one or more of the
five exceptions stated in its policy apply.

Having assessed the application, Sport England is satisfied that the proposed development meets the
following Sport England Policy exception:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



E2 - The proposed development is ancillary to the principal use of the site as a playing field or playing
fields, and does not affect the quantity or quality of pitches or adversely affect their use.

This being the case, Sport England does not wish to raise an objection to this application.

The absence of an objection to this application in the context of the Town and Country Planning Act,
does not in any way commit Sport England or any National Governing Body of Sport to support for
any related funding application.

TRANSPORT FOR LONDON (TfL)

TfL considers that the proposed variation of condition 2 would not result in any change to highway
and traffic impact compared with the consented proposal. TfL therefore does not have an objection.
However, it asks that all planning conditions and obligations imposed in the original consent in
relations to highway and transports to be retained in full.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

No comments.

Internal Consultees
FLOOD AND DRAINAGE OFFICER

Although not submitted with this application, the variations do not affect the proposed drainage
scheme of managing the drainage, and the FRA which demonstrates the site is not at risk from
flooding, | have no objections to the variation subject to the following condition being imposed,;

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly
demonstrate how it (follows the strategy set out in Flood Risk Assessment , produced by URS dated
Sept 2014 and Appendix E incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy
set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and control the
surface water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to control surface
water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified as well as
any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk from
commencement of construction.

e. demonstration that any proposals to utilise exisiting drainage network not adopted by utilities
function appropriately for that purpose through the submission of CCTV

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of arrangements
to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including appropriate details of
Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification, remediation and timescales for the
resolving of issues.

iii. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the management and
maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water through
water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development.
Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not increase the
risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (29015) and
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).
To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage
of the London Plan (2015), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use
and supplies of the London Plan (2015).

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER

The proposed variation will result in a reduction of the built development affecting the northern stand
(behind the Masson Avenue rear gardens) and symmetrical trimming back of the east and west ends
of the main stand, at the southern end of the site.

The outcome of these reductions should result in a reduction of the landscape and visual impact of
the approved scheme - which will benefit those overlooking the site.

No objection, subject to previous landscape conditions.

S106 OFFICER

A deed of variation will be required if permission is granted for this s73 application.
HIGHWAY ENGINEER

There are a number of changes proposed to the approved car parking layout. The applicant should
provide a justification and legible plans showing the proposed changes with measurements etc in
order for this to be reviewed.

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION OFFICER

There are no objections in principle to the amended and reduced scheme for the stands and canopy
in conservation or design terms. We do, however, regret the loss of the original canopy design as this
would have been a particularly attractive and eye catching feature. Please include the previous
condition 5 that covers the submission of external materials and finishes for agreement.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

As thisapplication is just reducing the size of the spectator stands and there are no other changes we
have no objections.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of the redevelopment of the site has been established by virtue of planning
permission ref: 24373/APP/2014/1946. Only minor modifications are proposed to the
approved scheme.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



It is considered that the development does not prejudice Green Belt objectives, whilst the
scale of the development is at an appropriate level to support an outdoor sports sports
facility. As stated elswhere in this report, the visual and amenity impact has been minimised.
The potential advantages of the proposal are recognised, including the provision of
enhanced outdoor sporting facilities and the protection of recreational open space in urban
areas, consistent with the objectives of the NPPF, Sport England's Planning Policies for
Sport, London Plan Policy 3.16 and saved part 2 Policies, which seeks to protect outdoor
and indoor leisure facilities.

No objections are therefore raised to the principle of the development on this site.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

No residential use is proposed as part of this development. Density is not therefore a
relevant consideration.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not located within an Archaeological Priority Areas, Conservation Areas or Areas
of Special Character, although the area to the south of the A40 is proposed as a new
Archaeological Priority Area.

Archaeology

A Heritage Assessment was submitted in support of the original application. The statement
notes that ground works are likely to be required to support the spectator stands, possibly to
include piled foundations. Where the proposed groundworks extend beyond the depth of
made ground, there may be an impact upon below ground archaeological deposits, should
any be present.

The Heritage Statement therefore recommends a limited programme of archaeological
evaluation, targeted in the proposed areas of impact, prior to the commencement of any
development groundworks. Such works would identify and record the nature and extent of
any surviving archaeological remains encountered (preservation by record). Should no
archaeological remains be encountered during these works, then no further works would be
required. Given that the site does not fall within an archaeolgical priority area and the extent
of built development is limited, it is considered that this approach is acceptable in this case
and can be secured by condition.

Impact on Listed buildings

The site is within view of the Grade Il Listed Polish War Memorial and Locally Listed Glebe
Farm. The proposed changes to the approved scheme will result in a reduction in built form
and as such, there will be no physical impact upon these listed buildings as a result of the
amendments. It is considered that there will be a low and low-negligible impact upon the
setting of these buildings, in accordance with Saved Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.04 Airport safeguarding

The proposal would not have any additional impact on airport safeguarding over that
considered within the original grant of planning permission. The Ministry of Defense (MoD
Safeguarding) has no safeguarding objections to the proposed development, subject to a
construction management plan, which can be secured by condition, in the event of an
approval.

7.05 Impact on the green belt

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



The most important attribute of Green Belts is their openness and the aim of preserving the
openness of Green Belt land is reiterated in the NPPF, Local Plan Part 2 Policies OL1 and
OL2 and London Plan Policy 7.16. Development is therefore strictly controlled.

In terms of the physical works proposed, the proposed layout for the main pitch is in a similar
position as the existing, although moved slightly to the east. The proposed car park to the
west of the pitch is in the same location, but regularised and landscaped along with the
parking around the existing clubhouse. A new training pitch is proposed on a piece of former
athletic ground to the east of the main pitch, whilst the access road is to be located to the
south and west perimeter of the site. The proposed layout replicates former uses and
location on the site and merely rationalises the existing arrangement. These elements of the
proposal have not changed from the approved scheme and are considered to have minimal
impact on the openness of the Green Belt.

In addition, a new one tier stepped terrace is proposed to the north of the pitch and a new
flip-seated stand to the south. The proposed south stand is the highest, bulkiest element of
the scheme. The current proposal shows a reduction from the approved scheme in the
overall length of the main stand from 136.8m to 101.4m and a reduction in the overall
covered area from to 54.6m to 39m, with a 2 step viewing area to east and west of main
stand. The amended scheme also removes the proposed terrace on the North Boundary and
the construction of 1 step viewing area to replace the terrace.

The amendments will result in a reduction in the blulk of the built form previously approved
and it is considered that none of these elements would detract from the overall appearance
of the area or openness of the Green Belt in terms of massing, scale or bulk.

It is noted that although designated as Green Belt, the application site is an existing sports
complex, sitting within a suburban area, surrounded on 2 sides by built development, which
limits

the site's openness and perception of openness. It is considered that the visual impacts of
the proposal are unlikely to be of significant detriment to the character of the area, or the
perception of openness of the Green Belt. It is therefore not considered that the amenity and
openness of the Green Belt would be harmed to a detrimental degree by the proposals, in
accordance with Saved Policies OL1 and OL2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), relevant London Plan policies and the aspirations of the
NPPF.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Saved UDP Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new development makes a positive
contribution to the character and amenity of the area in which it is proposed. Saved Policy
BE13 states that, in terms of the built environment, the design of new buildings should
complement or improve the character and appearance of the surrounding area and should
incorporate design elements which stimulate and sustain visual interest. Saved Policy BE38
of the UDP requires new development proposals to incorporate appropriate landscaping
proposals.

The site is bounded by the rear gardens on Masson Avenue to the North, school grounds to
the East, Priors Farm and its farmland to the South and West End Road to the West. The
A40 is also to the South and the Grade Il Listed Polish War Memorial and the Locally Listed
Glebe Farm is to the East. The area is typical suburban-residential in nature with
predominantly inter-War housing of two storeys, traditional in design, to the North and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



surrounded by green fields to the rest.

The proposed layout for the main elements of the proposal replicates former uses and their
location on the site and merely rationalises the existing arrangement. The highest, bulkiest
element of the scheme is the proposed stand for the South side of the main pitch, which will
be reduced in size in relation to the approved scheme. The stand will be is located away
from the existing residential street and will be viewed in the context of a backdrop of large
farm related buildings to the south of the site.

The roof canopy of the main stand as originally approved consisted of a series of conic-
section panels, designed to almost float above the stand. This has now been replaced by a
simpler mono pitch design. The Urban Design and Conservation Officer regrets the loss of
the original canopy design, as this would have been a particularly attractive and eye
catching feature. However, it is not considered that the proposal in its amended form would
detract from the overall appearance of the area in terms of design, massing, scale or bulk.
The design of this structure is considered practical and reasonable for its intended purpose

Overall, the Urban Design and Conservation Officer raises no objections to the scheme,
subject to details of external colours and finishes. Details of external materials are therefore
secured by condition. Subject to this condition, it is considered that the proposal is
consistent with Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012), and Policy PT1.BE1 (2012)- Built Environment, Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 1.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Saved Policies OE1 and OE3 sof the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved UDP Policies
(2012) seek to protect the environment from the adverse effects of pollutants and to ensure
sufficient measures are taken to mitigate the environmental impact of the development and
ensure that it remains acceptable. Saved Policies BE20, BE21 and BE 24 of the the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek to protect the
amenity of neighbouring occupiers, requiring new buildings to be laid out, designed and of a
scale which ensures that harm is not caused to amenity in terms of loss of privacy, outlook
and levels of sunlight and daylight.

The nearest residential properties are located to the north of the site in Masson Avenue.
There are no limitations to the hours of use of the current sporting facilities on the site.
However, the effects of floodlighting and noise associated with a potentially more intensive
use of the site on residential amenity are matters for consideration. The issue of noise has
been covered in detail in other sections of this report.

FLOOD LIGHTING

It is proposed to provide floodlighting to the training pitch, located at the eastern end of

the site. This element of the proposal remains the same as for the approved scheme. To
safeguard the situation with regard to the protection of residential amenity, the Council's
Environmental Protection Unit recommended a condition on the original planning application
to require the design

and implementation of a lighting scheme which conforms to relevant guidance and limitations
on hours the training pitch can be illuminated. Subject to these conditions being reimposed,
itis

considered that the development would not adversely affect the amenities of nearby

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



residential properties from light spill generated by the floodlit training pitch, in accordance
with Saved Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (2012).

ACTIVITY

There will be no significant intensification of use, no new land use, no increase in ground
capacity and no increase in the number of matches per annum as a result of the proposed
changes to the approved scheme.

The proposed seating stands would be smaller in capacity and would still be located to the
south of the pitch, thereby minimising visual impact on views from nearby residential
properties. The visual impact on openness across the site from the rear of properties in
Masson Avenue is considered to be minimal. It is not therefore considered that the proposal
in its amended form would result in an over dominant form of development which would
detract from the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, in compliance with Policy BE21 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (2012).

PRIVACY

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (2012) seeks to ensure
that the design of new buildings protects the privacy of the occupiers and their neighbours.
The supporting text to this policy states that 'the protection of privacy,particularly of habitable
rooms (including kitchens) and external private amenity space is an important feature of
residential amenity'.

The issue of privacy for residents of Masson Avenue was initially raised as a concern by
officers and local residents, with regard to the northern terrace. The applicant now proposes
to replace the northern terrace with a low standing area consisting of only one step (i.e. two
standing rows). The proposed standing area will run from the rear of house number 16 to
house number 48, with a gap for the camera stand. The first standing level will be at pitch
level, with a step of 0.187m to the top standing level. This will mean that the top standing
level will now be 0.187m above pitch level at that location. As a result the eye level of the top
standing area, would not extend above the top of the existing boundary fencing at the rear of
Mansion Avenue properties.

Removal of the northern terrace in favour of a single step up from ground level, should
therefore help to address concerns about possible overlooking of the Masson Avenue rear
gardens, so long as those properties have the necessary boundary fencing in place.

It is also noted that in terms of both noise and privacy issues, the proposed northern
standing area faces away from the properties at Masson Avenue, as any spectator would be
likely to be facing the playing area. In addition, the applicant has stated that the northern
stand is only required for a small number of games each year. In order to further protect
neighbouring amenity, it is recommended that a condition be reimposed, limiting this
northern standing strip to the larger Tier 1 and 2 games (i.e. 4 times a year).

With regard to the southern stand, this would be located over 107 metres from the nearest
residential property in Masson Avenue. As such, it is not considered that the privacy of
neighbours will be affected, in compliance with Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
2 Saved UDP Policies (2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



Not applicable to this application, as the proposal does not include residential development.
Living conditions for future residential occupiers is therefore not relevant to consideration of
this proposal.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at Paragraph 32 states that plans and
decisions should take account of whether safe and suitable access to the site can be
achieved for all people; and development should only be prevented or refused on transport
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Paragraph 35 of
NPPF also refers to developments and states that developments should be located and
designed where practical to give priority to pedestrian and cycle movements; create safe
and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians.

Local requirements in relation to impacts on traffic demand, safety and congestion are setout
in Local Plan Part 2 Policy AM7 which states:

"The LPA will not grant permission for developments whose traffic generation is likely to:

(i) unacceptably increase demand along roads or through junctions which are already used
to capacity, especially where such roads or junctions form part of the strategic London road
network, or

(i) prejudice the free flow of traffic or conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

TfL is the highway authority for A40 Western Avenue, while LB Hillingdon is responsible for
the rest of the road network in this area. TfL buses operate on West End Road.

The proposal would not alter any of the arrangements in respect of the number of parking
spaces, cycle parking, or vehicular access to the site, which were previously agreed within
the original grant of planning permission. Both TfL and the Highway Engineer raise no
objections with regard to these issues.

However, the applicant is proposing some minor changes to the internal road and parking
layout. The Highway Engineer has commented that the applicant should provide a
justification and legible plans showing the proposed changes, including measurements, in
order for these changes to be properly reviewed. It is therefore recommended that a
condition requiring details of parking arrangements and internal road layouts be reimposed
on any planning permission granted.

In the light of paragraph 215 of the NPPF, with the proposed mitigation measures secured
as part of the original planning permission, the transportation impacts are not considered to
be severe for the development. As such, no objections are raised on traffic generation,
parking or access grounds, subject to the recommended conditions and transport and
highways obligations imposed on the original consent being re-impposed on any forthcoming
approval, including the implementation of a Travel Plan being covered within the S106
Agreement.

Accordingly, it is considered the proposed development accords with relevant transportation
policies in the Local Plan, London Plan and the aspirations of the NPPF.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

Issues of design and access have been discussed elsewhere in the relevant sections of this
report. In respect of security, it is not considered that the proposal would have any
significant adverse impacts in terms of security.

7.12 Disabled access

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



The facilities are considered to be satisfactory from an accessibility standpoint. Notably,
the Council's Access Officer has raised no objection to the original proposals. The scheme
therefore considered to comply with Policy R16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), London Plan policies 7.1 and 7.2 and the Council's
Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Considerations relating to affordable and special needs housing are therefore not relevant to
this proposal.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate. Saved policy OL26 seeks the protection and enhancement of trees, woodland
and landscape features. Policy EM2 seeks to maintain the current extent, hierarchy and
strategic functions of the Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains.

The Tree and Landscape Officer notes that the proposed variation will result in a reduction
of the built development affecting the northern stand (behind the Masson Avenue rear
gardens) and symmetrical trimming back of the east and west ends of the main stand, at the
southern end of the site. The outcome of these reductions should result in a reduction of the
visual impact of the approved scheme, which will benefit those overlooking the site.

No objections are therefore raised in landscape terms, subject to relevant landscape
conditions being reimposed, to ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the
character and appearance of the area, in compliance with Saved Policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

ECOLOGY

Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1 "Strategic Policies" (adopted November 2012) EM2 (Green
Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains), EM3 (Blue Ribbon Network),
EM7(Biodiversity and Geological Conservation) and EM8 (Land, Water, Air and Noise) deal
with ecological issues. Saved Policy EC2 of the Local Plan Part 2 seeks the promotion of
nature conservation interests. Saved Policy EC3 requires proposals for development in the
vicinity of sites of nature conservation importance to have regard to the potential effects on
such sites on changes in the water table and of air, water, soil and other effects, which may
arise fromthe development. Regarding the creation of new habitats, Savel Policy EC5 of the
Local Plan seeks the retention of certain on-site ecological features, enhancement of the
nature conservation and ecological interest of sites or create new habitats.

Policy 7.19 of the London Plan states that the planning of new development and
regeneration should have regard to nature conservation and biodiversity and opportunities
should be taken to achieve positive gains for conservation through the form and design of
development.

The current use and management regime of the site as a playing pitch reduces the
likelyharm on protected species, as the existing playing pitch and surrounding areas
areunlikely to provide suitable shelter or habitat for hibernating animals. However,
theadditional tree planting proposed
will contribute towards the promotion of nature conservation interests in the area,
incompliance with relevant policies.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



Although there are limited ecological impacts, the development should aim for a net
improvement in biodiversity, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. A
condition requiring the submission of an ecological enhancement scheme is therefore
recommended. Bat boxes, bird boxes and living walls could all be considered along side
specific wildlife improvements within the landscape proposals. The north-eastern boundary
of the site 'behind' the access road could be considered for specific wildlife improvements.

It is considered that subject to the above mentioned condition, the the proposeddevelopment
could be completed without detriment to the ecological value and biodiversityinterests of this
area, in compliance with Policy 5.11 of the London Plan and Policy EM1 ofthe Local Plan.

In conclusion, the proposal would not alter the development in terms of landscaping, trees
and ecology from the scheme previously agreed within the original grant of planning
permission. It is noted that that detailed landscaping and tree protection conditions are
attached to the recommendation, which would enable the final details to be approved.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The proposal would not alter the development in terms of waste management or storage
from the scheme previously agreed within the original grant of planning permission.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Sustainability policy is now set out in the London Plan (2015), at Policy 5.2. Part A of
thepolicy requires development proposals to make the fullest contribution to
minimisingcarbon dioxide emissions by employing the hierarchy of: using less energy;
supplyingenergy efficiently; and using renewable technologies. Parts C, D of the policy
require proposals to include a detailed energy assessment. The 2015 London Plan now
requires major developments to demonstrate a 35% reduction from a 2013 Building
Regulations compliant development.

As part of the approved scheme the applicants submitted an energy report which confirms
that the proposed development will achieve 35% carbon reduction against Part L2013. The
Council's Sustainability Officer raised no objections to the proposed development subject to
a condition requiring an energy assessment demonstrating the development can meet the
requirements of Policy 5.2 by reducing Co2 emissions by 35%. The assessment shall
include the baseline energy demand and related carbon emissions, energy efficiency
measures and details of the renewable energy technology to be used. The proposal would
not alter the development in terms of reneawable energey/sustainability from the scheme
previously agreed within the original grant of planning permission.

Subiject to the above mentioned condition being reimposed, it is considered that the scheme
will have satisfactorily addressed the issues relating to the mitigation and adaptation to
climate change and to minimising carbon dioxide emissions, in compliance with Policies 5.2,
5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan, Policy PT1.EM1 of Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 and the
NPPF.

717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy EM6 (Flood Risk Management) of the Local Plan Part 1 Strategic Policies
(AdoptedNov 2012) states that applicants must demonstrate that Flood Risk can be
suitablymitigated. Saved Policies OE7 and OES of the Local Plan Part 2 seek to ensure that
newdevelopment incorporates appropriate measures to mitigate against any potential risk
offlooding.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



A Flood Risk Assessment FRA and revised FRA were submitted with the original application.
The revised FRA concludes that no part of the site is in Flood Zone 3A. The revised FRA
outlines a Surface Water Management Plan, which has been taken account of in the scheme
design.

Although not submitted with this application, the variations to the approved scheme do not
affect the proposed drainage scheme of managing the drainage, and the FRA submitted with
the original application, which demonstrates the site is not at risk from flooding. The Flood
and Drainage Officer therefore raises no objections to the variation, subject to a condition for
sustaianable water management being reimposed. Subject to compliance with this
condition, it is considered that the scheme will have satisfactorily addressed drainage and
flood related issues, in compliance with The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Policies OE7 and
OES, Policies 5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan and the aspirations of the NPPF.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

NOISE

Saved Policies OE1 and OE3 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDPPolicies
(November 2012) seek to protect the environment from the adverse effects ofpollutants and
to ensure sufficient measures are taken to mitigate the environmentalimpact of the
development and ensure that it remains acceptable. There are no limitationsto the hours of
use of the current sporting facilities. However, the effects of floodlightingand noise
associated with a more intensive use of the site on residential amenity arematters for
consideration. The issue of floodlighting has been dealt with elsewhere in thisreport.

A noise assessment, including the results of a noise survey was submitted in support of the
original application. The assessment notes that there are no proposals to increase the
number of matches at this venue, whist the largest concentration of people will be at the
southern side of the ground in the proposed stand, which is located over 100 metres from
the nearest residential property.

The low height terrace along the northern side of the pitch has now been reduced to one
tier. At 1 tier, spectators would only be approximately 0.187m above ground level and no
longer elevated above the existing boundary fencing. In addition, the applicant has agreed to
limit the use of the northern terrace to Tier 1 and 2 games only. This is secured by conditior

The proposal would not alter the development in terms of traffic arrangements from the
scheme previously agreed within the original grant of planning permission. Traffic to the
proposed development would utilise the existing access of West End Road, but with an
amended internal layout. Losing the vehicular access track along the northern boundary with
a replacement track to be provided along the southern boundary instead, will result in any
vehicular movement being moved further away from the Masson Avenue properties. This
would result in the occupiers of surrounding properties suffering less noise and disturbance
from vehicular traffic, compliance with Policy OE1 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Subiject to conditions being reimposed, requiring a scheme which specifies the provisions to
be made for thecontrol of noise emanating from the development (including control of PA
sysyems) and

controlling use of the northern terrace, it is not considered that adverse noise or impacts
are likely from the site, in accordance with Policy OE3 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
AIR QUALITY

The proposal would not alter the development in terms of air quality from the scheme
previously agreed within the original grant of planning permission.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The issues raied by local residents have been addressed in relevant sections of this
report.

Nuisance from construction activities is covered by separate legislation.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
isconcerned with securing planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreationopen space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and
other community, social and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction
withother development proposals. These saved UDP policies are supported by more specific
supplementary planning guidance.

A number of planning obligations to mitigate the impacts of the development, weresecured
under the original grant of planning permission a s follows:

(i) The applicants meet the full costs in connection with the design and implementation of
a scheme of off site highway improvements, to be subject to a Section 278 agreement,
including improvements the the access and keep clear markings on West End Road

(ii)) Submission of a Green Travel Plan outlining means and methods of reducing private
transport use and the promotion of other sustainable forms of transport, including the
shuttle bus service and a bond

(iii) Submission of a delivery and servicing plan (DSP), a Construction Management Plan
(CMP) and a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP)in accordanace with London Plan and TfL
guidance

(iv) Traffic studies, in order to assess the impact of left turn traffic emanating from the site
on the Polish War Memorial roundabout, to agree a scheme for appropriate highway
improvements where necessary and contributions towards the cost of installing such
improvements

(v) Project Management & Monitoring Fee: 5% of total cash contributions (if cash
contribution (required as result of the above).

Notwithsatnding the amendments to the approved scheme, the level of planning benefits
sought is adequate and commensurate with the scale and nature of the proposed
development. It is therefore recommended that these planning obligations be secured as
part of any forthcoming approval by
way of a deed of variation to the existing S106 Agreement.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
7.22 Other Issues

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The proposal would not have any environmental impacts over those considered within the
original grant of planning permission.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



A condition requiring imported soils to be clean and free from contamination is recommended
in order to ensure that the users of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks minor material amendments to the planning permission reference
24373/APP/2014/1946 dated 13/3/2015 for the redevelopment of the GAA Sports Grounds.
The applicant has demonstrated a need for upgrading the existing sports facilities, which are
in accordance with relevant Government guidance and local development plan policy.

The principle of the redevelopment of the site for outdoor sporting facilities has already been
established by virtue of the original planning consent. There are no objections in principle to
the amended and reduced scheme for the stands and canopy in conservation or design
terms.

The proposal represents an upgrading of an existing but appropriate use, which will not
have a materially adverse effect on the visual amenity and open character of the Green Belt.

It is not considered that the residential amenities of surrounding residents, flooding or the
ecological/nature conservation value of the area will be adversely affected by the poposals.

Subject to conditions addressing the access and parking layout issues, a cap of maximum
attendance, operation of the proposed traffic signals on-site, together with the issues
relating to a traffic impact assessment and off-site highways works and Travel Plan,
(including the shuttle bus service) to be covered within the s106 agreement, it is considered
that highway issues have been satisfactorily addressed.

Accordingly approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

a) The National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

(b) Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 Strategic Policies.

(c) Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved UDP Saved Policies (November 2012)
(i) Supplementary Planning Document Accessible Hillingdon

(j) Supplementary Planning Guidance Community Safety by Design

(k) Supplementary Planning Guidance Air Quality

(I) Supplementary Planning Guidance Noise

(m) Supplementary Planning Guidance Planning Obligations

(n) London Plan (2015)

Contact Officer: Karl Dafe Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Gaelic Athletic Accos
Sports Ground
West End Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
24373/APP/2016/1511 1:3,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Major Page 67 July 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address UNIT 2, TRINITY TRADING ESTATE SILVERDALE ROAD HAYES

Development: Change of use of an existing storage depot (Class B8 Storage and Distributior
into a waste transfer station (Sui Generis Waste Handling).

LBH Ref Nos: 70738/APP/2015/4688

Drawing Nos: B2073500-0001
B2073500-0002
Transport Statement (revised) (9th May 2016

Date Plans Received:  22/12/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/12/2015
Date Application Valid: 22/12/2015
1. SUMMARY

The principle of the change of use of Unit 2 from an existing storage depot (Class B8
Storage and Distribution) into a waste transfer station (Sui Generis Waste Handling) to
allow for the expansion of the existing business operation from Unit 1 is acceptable.

The expansion and use of Unit 2 as a Waste Transfer Station is unlikely to adversely
impact the amenity of occupiers within neighbouring residential properties (closest being
located 140m north of the unit), in terms of outlook, daylight/sunlight, privacy, air quality,
contamination, noise, or odour. The Council's Environmental Protection Unit raises no
objection as the proposal is it not considered likely to raise odour concerns given the limited
extent of material processing that would take place on site and its distance from any
sensitive receptors.

Consideration has been given to the issue of traffic generation and vehicle servicing of the
site, and these matters taken together are not considered to have a detrimental impact on
the existing highway network or raise any highway safety concerns.

Overall, the development would reflect the 12 core principles of sustainable development
as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework. The application scheme meets the
strategic policy objectives of the West London Waste Plan (2015), the London Plan (2015),
and Hillingdon's Local Plan.

It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions.
2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans referenced below and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence:

B2073500-0001
B2073500-0002

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
and the London Plan (2015).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

Prior to first use of Unit 2 as a Waste Transfer Station, the measures set out in the
following supporting documents shall have been completed:

1. Sustainability Statement (4th August 2015)

N

. Energy Statement (4th August 2015)

3. Noise Statement (21st July 2015)

N

. Air Quality Statement (16th September 2015)

[@)]

. Planning Statement (December 2015)

D

. Transport Statement (revised) (9th May 2016)

~

. Cover Letter (Revised) (13th May 2016)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/ maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
and the London Plan (2015).

4 NONSC  Air Quality

Prior to first use of Unit 2 as a Waste Transfer Station, a low emission strategy shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The low emission
strategy shall 1) address the specification of the site operational fleet to comply with Euro
5/V or above or have implemented retrofitting devices that will enable compliance with such
Euro standards; and 2) include a travel plan for office staff with a clear and effective
strategy to promote modal shift, car share, use of public transport and or incentives for staff
to purchase zero emission vehicles.

The Low emissions strategy shall make reference to The London Councils 'Air Quality and
Planning Guidance'; DEFRA Practice Guidance 3: Practice guidance on Measures to
Encourage the Uptake of Low Emission Vehicles, February 2009; and Low Emission
Strategies: Using the Planning System to Reduce Transport Emissions, Good Practice
Guidance prepared by the Beacons Low Emission Strategies, June 2008.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



Prior to first use of Unit 2 as a Waste Transfer Station, the steps and measures set out in
the low emission strategy shall be implemented and maintained throughout the life of the
development.

REASON

To safeguard and improve air quality in this Air Quality Management Area, in accordance
with policy 7.14 of the London Plan (2015); and paragraph 124 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

5 NONSC Odour Management Plan

Prior to first use of Unit 2 as a Waste Transfer Station (WTS), an Odour Management Plan
for the whole Waste Transfer Station site as outlined in red in the submitted location plan
(ref: B2073500-0001 Rev 0) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Any mitigation measures shall be implemented prior to first use of Unit 2
and remain in perpetuity.

Reason
To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers in terms of odour, in
accordance with 'saved' policies OE1 and OEG6 of the Unitary Development Plan (2012).

6 NON2 Maximum annual tonnage

The maximum annual tonnage for the whole Waste Transfer Station (WTS) site as outlined
in red in the submitted location plan (ref: B2073500-0001 Rev 0) shall not exceed 10,000
tonnes, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason

To limit the movement of heavy goods vehicles, to safeguard the free flow of traffic, and to
prevent parking stress on surrounding roads, in accordance with 'saved' policy AM14 of the
Unitary Development Plan (2012) and policies 6.3 and 6.13 of the London Plan (MALP
2016)

7 H14 Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

Prior to first use of Unit 2 as a Waste Transfer Station, details of covered and secure cycle
storage, changing facilities, lockers and showers for users of and visitors to the premises
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter,
the approved cycling facilities shall be implemented in accordance with the approved plan
prior to first use of the site as a Waste Transfer Station, with the facilities being
permanently retained for use by cyclists.

REASON

To ensure adequate provision for cyclists and to improve sustainable forms of transport to
the site in accordance with 'saved' policy AM9 of the Unitary Development Plan and policy
6.9 of the London Plan (2015).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2

Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Unitary Development Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

BE13
BE20
AM7
AM14
LE1
LE2
LE7

LPP 2.8
LPP 4.4
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.16
LPP 5.17
LPP 5.21
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.14
LPP 8.2
LPP 7.15

LPP 8.3

MIN16

NPPF
OE1

OE6
OE7

OE8

SPD-NO
SPD-PO

SPG-AQ
3

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.

Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development
Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas
Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and
business development

(2015) Outer London: Transport

(2015) Managing Industrial Land & Premises
(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2015) Flood risk management
(2015) Sustainable drainage
(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
(2015) Waste self-sufficiency
(2015) Waste capacity
(2015) Contaminated land
(2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2015) Parking

(2015) Local character

(2015) Public realm

(2015) Improving air quality

(2015) Planning obligations

(2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and
enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate
soundscapes.

(2015) Community infrastructure levy

Waste recycling and disposal - encouragement of efficient and
environmentally acceptable facilities

National Planning Policy Framework

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Proposals likely to result in pollution

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



This development proposes the addition of new waste activities on site. It is understood
that the site is currently permitted under the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales)
Regulations 2010. The applicant will need to hold an Environmental Permit or vary the
existing permit to keep and treat controlled waste, including hazardous waste. The
applicant should refer to the Environment Agency website for further information or
telephone 03708 506 506, or email enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk to discuss the
issues likely to be raised.

4

To prevent pollution to surface water and watercourses, the applicant should ensure that
adequate drainage infrastructure is in place. Drainage on site should be to the foul, sewer
network. We advise that the applicant should liaise directly with the local sewerage
undertaker.

5 11 Clinical Waste Guidance

The applicant would need to comply with the Environment Agency's guidance S5.07 which
is specifically targeted at the clinical waste sector. It's important to note that the use of a
shipping container to store offensive hygiene waste (EWC code 18 01 04 and/or 18 02 04)
is discouraged in this guidance as the corrugated walls of the container allow debris to
accumulate and are difficult to clean down.

6 115 Duty of Care

The applicant must ensure that it complies with the requirement of the Duty of Care
Regulations. The applicant as a waste producer has a duty of care to ensure all materials
removed go to an appropriate licensed disposal site and all relevant documentation
completed and kept in line with the relevant regulations. There is also guidance on how to
register as a waste carrier if you're a waste transporter, buyer, seller, broker or dealer.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site comprises of two of a group of three industrial units located at the junction of Pump
Lane and Silverdale Road. Vehicular access into the site is provided via an existing access
on Silverdale Road. Personnel Hygiene Services Ltd operate from Unit 1, which is used for
waste transfer services for the distribution of healthcare waste. This application specifically
relates to Unit 2, which is currently a storage depot (Class B8 Storage and Distribution) with
1,322sqm of floorspace. Next to Unit 2, J. Van Yliet (Heathrow) Ltd, a flower wholesaler
operates from Unit 3. The whole site is located within the Pump Lane Industrial Business
Area (IBA), which is land safeguarded for employment and industrial uses. The site has a
PTAL level of 2 (where 1 is poor and 6 is excellent) and is within the Air Quality Management
Area.

The surrounding area is characterised by mainly similar industrial/warehouse units. The
nearest residential properties to the site are approximately 70m north or 170m from the
actual unit itself.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The current proposal seeks change of use of Unit 2 from an existing storage depot (Class
B8 Storage and Distribution) into a waste transfer station (Sui Generis Waste Handling) to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



allow for the expansion of the existing business operation from Unit 1, which involves the
delivery and receipt of healthcare waste within bins, which are then bulked up into larger
volumes and dispatched for appropriate offsite treatment.

No extensions or alterations to the layout of Unit 2 are proposed as part of the proposal.

The applicant is Personnel Hygiene Services Limited (PHS). PHS operates healthcare
waste transfer stations throughout England, Wales and Scotland. The proposed use
involves the delivery and receipt of healthcare waste within bins, which are then bulked up
into larger volumes and dispatched for appropriate offsite treatment. The change of use is
required to provide PHS with greater operational flexibility to enable them to expand their
existing waste transfer operations currently restricted to Unit 1.

Unit 1 of the site has an existing waste management licence (WML80404). The licence was
originally granted by the Environment Agency in 1996 and the conditions were modified in
1999 and again in 2001. The licence which currently applies to the Unit 1 allows for:

- Storage pending disposal or recovery; and

- Treatment of waste (compaction).

PHS will submit a new Environmental Permit application to the Environment Agency to
extend the permitted waste operations to include Unit 1 and 2 to handle a maximum amount
of waste of 10,000 tonnes per annum with no more than 9.9 tonnes of hazardous waste on
site at any time.

Table 3.1 outlines the Environment Agency's waste classification. The main types of waste
to be handled at Unit 2 will include human hygiene and sanitary wastes (20 01 99) and
wastes such as dressings, plaster casts, linen, disposable clothing, or diapers (18 01 04).
Packaging wastes (15 01) will also be generated mainly comprising empty containers of
consumables generated within PHS core operations. Waste treatment undertaken on the
site will be limited to simple treatments, such as repackaging for volume reduction. Only
waste delivered by PHS will be accepted at the site. No third party wastes will be accepted
at the site.

Currently, permitted waste at Unit 1 includes:

- General and biodegradeable waste (20 - human hygiene waste from other than healthcare
including nappies, incontinence pads, feminine hygiene wastes not considered clinical
waste).

- Special wastes, including Dental Amalgam (18), waste in the form of prescription only
medicines including surplus medicines in original packaging (18) and waste in the form of
photographic chemical.

- Other categories of waste, including human and animal heal care (18) which includes
clinical waste groups A to E.

The planning application is supported by the following documents:

- Air quality assessment

- Transport statement

- Noise assessment

- Energy assessment

- Sustainability assessment

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



70738/PRC/2015/39 Unit 2, Junction Of Pump Lane & Silverdale Road Hayes

Change of use of existing unit from depot for washroom consumables to waste transfer station

Decision: 03-06-2015 NO

Comment on Relevant Planning History

No relevant planning history.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Please see list below.
UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.EM11
PT1.EM8
PT1.EM7

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management
(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

)

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

Part 2 Policies:

BE13
BE20
AM7
AM14
LE1
LE2
LE7

LPP 2.8
LPP 4.4
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.16
LPP 5.17
LPP 5.21
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.13

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.

Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development
Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and business
development

(2015) Outer London: Transport

(2015) Managing Industrial Land & Premises
(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
(2015) Waste self-sufficiency

(2015) Waste capacity

(2015) Contaminated land

(2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2015) Parking

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2015) Public realm

LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 8.2 (2015) Planning obligations

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

LPP 8.3 (2015) Community infrastructure levy

MIN16 Waste recycling and disposal - encouragement of efficient and environmentally
acceptable facilities

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OEG6 Proposals likely to result in pollution

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water

run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 4th February 2016

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Site Notice: Erected 14th January 2016
Press Advertisement: 20th January 2016

Neighbouring households, amenity groups, and local businesses were notified of the proposal on 12th
January 2016. The neighbour consultation period expired on 10th February 2016.

No neighbour responses have been received.
CROSSRAIL SAFEGUARDING

Comments (summary): No objection.
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

Comments (summary): No objection.

Environmental Permit
The applicant will need to hold an Environmental Permit or vary the existing permit to keep and treat

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



controlled waste, including hazardous waste.

Drainage

To prevent pollution to surface water and watercourses, the applicant should ensure that adequate
drainage infrastructure is in place. Drainage on site should be to the foul, sewer network. We advise
that the applicant should liaise directly with the local sewerage undertaker.

Clinical Waste Guidance

The applicant would need to comply with the Environment Agency's guidance S5.07 which is
specifically targeted at the clinical waste sector. It's important to note that the use of a shipping
container to store offensive hygiene waste (EWC code 18 01 04 and/or 18 02 04) is discouraged in
this guidance as the corrugated walls of the container allow debris to accumulate and are difficult to
clean down.

Duty of Care

The applicant must ensure that it complies with the requirement of the Duty of Care Regulations. The
applicant as a waste producer has a duty of care to ensure all materials removed go to an appropriate
licensed disposal site and all relevant documentation completed and kept in line with the relevant
regulations. There is also guidance on how to register as a waste carrier if you're a waste transporter,
buyer, seller, broker or dealer.

TRANSPORT FOR LONDON (TfL)

Comments (summary): No objection.

Internal Consultees
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT (EPU)

Air Quality

Comments (summary): No objection, subject to condition to require the submission of a low emission
strategy that includes a Travel Plan.

Contamination

Comments (summary): No objection.

Odour

Comments (summary): No objection.

An Odour Management Plan is essential as there may be fugitive emissions from the management of
the bins when opened and if as indicated they are compacted down after loose materials are
received.

| have not seen any details from the Environment Agency, but there is a permit for Unit 1, Pump Lane
originally from 1996 varied on 8/1/99 and in 2002. It is referenced EPR JP3191/NV/V002, and there
should be a variation of the permit pending to include Unit 2 in the permit.

| understand that -

- The air quality report did not include any consideration of odour and no current permitting details
and odour management plan have been submitted.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



- The site is handling odorous materials and there may be fugitive emissions from the building or yard
from the opening of bins for compaction or movement of materials from bin to bin ready for transfer.
- The material is not being processed on site such as for recycling or a change of structure of the
material that would require chemical additives and odour controls such scrubbers or filters. The only
processing mentioned is 'compaction' which could involve some sterilisation.

- There is no odour control plant and stack for this process that could affect residents or business and
require a plume dispersion model.

- The site has been present in Hayes for a significant time period, and although a full search of old
complaints is difficult it does not appear to have a history of odour complaints.

In conclusion, | would advise that an agreed odour management plan written for the permit or planning
permission is required as a precaution given the expansion of the site to Unit 2 in terms of waste
transfer. Otherwise we would not object to the expanded use of the site to Unit 2 for continued waste
transfer activity. If the developer changes the use to processing in the future then this should be
further looked into as regards odour assessment.

Noise
Comments (summary): No objection.

The proposed unit is located within an industrial area and at least 150m away from residential
receptors, it is unlikely to cause any adverse effect.

HIGHWAYS
Comments (summary): No objection.

A revised Transport Statement has been prepared by Jacobs and discussions with the transport
consultant have taken place. There are parking restrictions in place in the area surrounding the site
from Monday to Saturday, but there are opportunities for on-street parking away from local junctions.
The building structures will remain as they are along with the existing car parking spaces. The
proposal just involves the change of use of one of the buildings on the site to a waste transfer station.
Unit 1 of the site already operates as a waste transfer station.

The planning statement identified the annual throughput of 10,000 tonnes and the application form
indicates that there will be 21 employees on site which is the same as existing. | suggest in any
permission that is granted that the annual throughput of waste is conditioned.

The Transport Statement identified the existing trip generation as 28 vehicles over a 12 hour period
whereas the trip generation for the new facility was estimated from the operators information which
resulted in 4 more trips per 12 hour period. This number appears realistic given the maximum annual
tonnage.

There are 43 car parking spaces on site at present for the whole site and 17 associated with Unit 2. It
is intended to use these spaces for staff and commercial vehicles with the proposed use. From
previous discussions it would appear that some of the drivers take vehicles home at end of the day.

There is no cycle provision shown on the layout drawings so details of cycle parking should be
conditioned.

On that basis, | do not consider there to be significant highways/traffic impact associated with the
proposals. Therefore, no objection is raised.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



Officer's response: Noted. Conditions to limit the maximum annual tonnage of waste and to ascertain
details of cycle parking will be imposed.

PLANNING POLICY
Comments (summary): No objection.

The wider site is an existing waste site (Unit 1) and is therefore safeguarded under Policy WLWP 2
'Safeguarding and Protection of Existing and Allocated Waste Sites' of the West London Waste Plan
(2015). There is no objection to the principle of extending the operation to unit 2.

The tonnage of waste to be transferred and related increase in HGV ftrips does not seem
unreasonable.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER
Comments (summary): No objection.
WASTE MANAGEMENT OFFICER
Comments (summary): No objection.
WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER

Comments (summary): No objection.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy 5.17 of the London Plan (2015) states that the Mayor supports the need to increase
waste processing capacity in London.

Policy EM11 of Local Plan: Part 1 (Strategic Policies) states that the Council will aim to
maximise the use of existing waste management sites through intensification or co-location
of facilities.

The site is located within a designated Industrial and Business Area (IBA) and 'saved' policy
LE2 of the Unitary Development Plan (2012) seeks to retain land within these areas for B1,
B2, B8 and appropriate sui generis uses.

Unit 1 is a designated Waste Transfer Station within the Council's West London Waste Plan
(WLWP) and is therefore safeguarded under Policy WLWP 2 'Safeguarding and Protection
of Existing and Allocated Waste Sites' of the West London Waste Plan (2015). The change
of use of Unit 2 to provide additional WTS facilities is considered to be an extension of the
existing operation at Unit 1 and the WLWP encourages the expansion of existing facilities in
order to meet demand. In principle, the proposal would be considered acceptable and in
accordance with adopted planning policy, subject to meeting all other material policy
requirements, including the criteria set out in policy WLWP4 of the West London Waste Plan
(WLWP)(2015) which seeks to ensure high quality development is delivered as part of any
future waste proposals. The assessment of the proposal against the development plan is set
out in the subsequent sections of this report.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable as the site is not located within a conservation area or area of special
character, nor are there any listed buildings or archaeological interest at the site.
Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable as the site is not located within the Green Belt.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

No external alterations or extensions are proposed, therefore there would be no impact on
the character and appearance of the area.
Impact on neighbours

The 'saved' policies of the Unitary Development Plan (2012) seek to safeguard the amenities
of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the siting, bulk and proximity of
a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these adjoining occupiers are
considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21)
and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

'Saved' policy OE1 of the Unitary Development Plan (2012) states that permission will not
normally be granted for uses and associated structures which are, or are likely to become,
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties or the area generally.

The nearest neighbouring properties to the site are located approximately 70m to the north.
There are no extensions or external alterations sought. Unit 2 is located farther to the south
than Unit 1 which is closer to these neighbours. Unit 1 already operates as a Waste
Transfer Station and is controlled by environmental permits which ensures that the
residential neighbours to the north are not impacted. Should planning permission be granted
for use of Unit 2 as a Waste Transfer Station (extension of the existing operation at Unit 1)
this facility would also be controlled by an environmental permit, as well as safeguarding
conditions hereby imposed, as recommended by the Council's Environmental Protection
Unit, who are satisfied that the proposal would not cause any amenity harm, in terms of air
quality, contamination, odour, or noise.

Given Unit 2 is located farther away from residential properties than the existing Waste
Transfer Station at Unit 1, it is unlikely to adversely impact the amenity of occupiers therein,
by reason of outlook, daylight/sunlight, privacy, air quality, contamination, noise, or odour. In
this regard, the proposal complies with adopted local, regional, and national planning
policies.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

'Saved' policy AM2 of the Unitary Development Plan (2012) states that all proposals for
development will be assessed against: (i) their contribution to traffic generation and their
impact on congestion, particularly on the principal road network as defined in paragraph
14.14 of the plan, and (ii) the present and potential availability of public transport, and its
capacity to meet increased demand.

'Saved' policy AM7 of the Unitary Development Plan (2012) states that the local planning
authority will consider whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



acceptable in terms of the capacity and functions of existing and committed principal roads
only, and will wholly discount any potential which local distributor and access roads may
have for carrying through traffic. the local planning authority will not grant permission for
developments whose traffic generation is likely to: (i) unacceptably increase demand along
roads or through junctions which are already used to capacity, especially where such roads
or junctions form part of the strategic london road network; or (ii) prejudice the free flow of
traffic or conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety; or London borough of hillingdon
UDP saved policies (iii) diminish materially the environmental benefits brought about by new
or improved roads; or (iv) infiltrate streets classed as local roads in the borough road
hierarchy unless satisfactory traffic calming measures can be installed. traffic calming
schemes should, where appropriate, include environmental improvements such as hard and
soft landscaping, and should be completed before the development is first used or occupiet

Policy 6.3 'Assessing effects of development on transport capacity' of the London Plan
(2015) states that development proposals should ensure that impacts on transport capacity
and the transport network, at both a corridor and local level, are fully assessed.
Development should not adversely affect safety on the transport network. Where existing
transport capacity is insufficient to allow for the travel generated by proposed developments,
and no firm plans exist for an increase in capacity to cater for this, boroughs should ensure
that development proposals are phased until it is known these requirements can be met,
otherwise they may be refused. The cumulative impacts of development on transport
requirements must be taken into account.

'‘Saved' policy AM14 of the Unitary Development Plan (2012) and policy 6.13 'Parking
standards' of the London Plan (MALP 2015) sets out parking standards for development
proposals.

The site has a maximum PTAL value of 3 (moderate) and the existing industrial uses have
on-site parking for cars and vans along with HGV servicing. The proposal is to convert Unit
2 from an existing storage depot to a waste transfer station where medical waste is delivered
to the site, compacted and then sent to an appropriate disposal site in large lorries.

The existing dropped-kerb vehicular access along Silverdale Road will be retained in its
current form as the width and corner radii are suitable to accommodate existing and
proposed vehicles to access the site. Swept paths have been provided to demonstrate that
the existing access is adequate to accommodate the type of vehicles visiting the site.
Therefore, the access arrangements are considered acceptable.

A revised Transport Statement prepared by Jacobs has been submitted and discussions
with the Council's Transport Engineer have taken place. There are parking restrictions in
place in areas surrounding the site, but there are opportunities for on-street parking away
from local junctions.

Unit 1 within the site already operates as a waste transfer station and the planning
statement identified its annual throughput at 10,000 tonnes. In addition, the application form
indicates that there is 21 employees on site. The level of throughput and number of
employees are to remain as existing despite the expansion of the waste transfer station into
unit 2. To ensure that there is not a significant intensification of the use and to limit the
movement of heavy goods vehicles, the Council's Transport Engineer has recommended
that a condition be imposed to limit the level of throughput to 10,000 tonnes.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



711

712

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

The Transport Statement also identified the existing trip generation as 28 vehicles over a 12
hour period. The trip generation for the new facility was estimated from the operators
information which resulted in 4 more trips per 12 hour period. The Council's Transport
Engineer considered this to be a realistic number given the maximum annual tonnage. Given
this is an increase of 2 two-way trips during a daily 12 hour period, any additional traffic
generated would have negligible impact on the local highway network.

There are 43 car parking spaces on site at present for the whole site and 17 associated with
Unit 2. It is intended to use these spaces for staff and commercial vehicles with the proposed
use. However, no cycle parking has been provided. Therefore, it will be necessary to impose
a condition to obtain details of cycle parking provision.

Subiject to conditions to limit the maximum annual tonnage of waste and to ascertain details
of cycle parking, the Council's Transport Engineer raises no objection and the proposal is
considered to be acceptable in transport terms, in accordance with 'saved' policies AM2,
AM7, and AM14 of the Unitary Development Plan (2012), and 6.3 and 6.13 of the London
Plan (MALP 2015).

Urban design, access and security

No internal or external alterations or extensions are proposed, nor are there any changes to
the access or security arrangements to the unit.
Disabled access

No changes are sought to the access arrangements for the building.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The proposal is solely for the change of use of Unit 2 and no other development which
would affect trees, landscaping or ecology are proposed.
Sustainable waste management

The Council's Waste Management Officer is satisfied with the development in terms of
sustainable waste management. The proposal is compliant with policies WLWP1 and WLWP
2 of the West London Waste Plan (2015); policy EM11 of Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1
(Strategic Policies); and policy 5.17 of the London Plan (2015) as the proposal is for
capacity in the re-use, recycling and other recovery categories. The proposal would also
help to meet the London Plan (2015) waste apportionment and move waste up the waste
hierarchy.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

This application relates to the change of use of the building solely. Given the scale and
nature of the development, the proposal is considered acceptable with regards to renewable
energy and sustainability.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site is located within Flood Risk Zone 1 and it has relatively low risk of surface water
flooding. There are no internal or external changes and the proposed use is unlikely to
increase the risk of flooding. The Council's Water Management Officer has not raised an
objection to the proposal. The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable in flood risk
terms in compliance with policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1- Strategic Policies (2012); policies 5.12, 5.13, 5.14, and 5.15 of the London Plan
(2015); and National Planning Policy Framework (2012).

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



NOISE

Policy 7.15 'Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes' of the London Plan (2015)
recommends that development proposals should seek to manage noise by (a) avoiding
significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life as a result of new
development; (b) mitigating and minimising the existing and potential adverse impacts of
noise on, from, within, as a result of, or in the vicinity of new development without placing
unreasonable restrictions on development or adding unduly to the costs and administrative
burdens on existing businesses; (c) improving and enhancing the acoustic environment and
promoting appropriate soundscapes (including Quiet Areas and spaces of relative
tranquillity); (d) separating new noise sensitive development from major noise sources (such
as road, rail, air transport and some types of industrial development) through the use of
distance, screening or internal layout - in preference to sole reliance on sound insulation; (e)
where it is not possible to achieve separation of noise sensitive development and noise
sources, without undue impact on other sustainable development objectives, then any
potential adverse effects should be controlled and mitigated through the application of good
acoustic design principles; (f) having particular regard to the impact of aviation noise on
noise sensitive development; and (g) promoting new technologies and improved practices to
reduce noise at source, and on the transmission path from source to receiver.

The proposed use is no more noise sensitive than the previous use, so from this perspective
the development is acceptable.

In terms of impact on neighbouring properties, the subject unit is located within an industrial
area and at least 150m away from residential receptors, it is therefore unlikely to cause any
adverse effect on the residential amenity of occupiers therein.

Overall, the development would be considered to comply with policy 7.15 of the London Plan
(2015).

AIR QUALITY

Policy 7.14 'Improving air quality’ of the London Plan (2015) states that development
proposals should minimise increased exposure to existing poor air quality and make
provision to address local problems of air quality (particularly within Air Quality Management
Areas (AQMAs) and where development is likely to be used by large numbers of those
particularly vulnerable to poor air quality, such as children or older people) such as by
design solutions, buffer zones or steps to promote greater use of sustainable transport
modes through travel plans.

The development has the potential to exacerbate poor air quality given the likely
number/type of vehicle trips associated with the use. However, the Council's Air Quality
Officer is satisfied that subject to the submission of a low emission strategy which would
include a Travel Plan, the use could be controlled to ensure there was negligible impact on
air quality in the area, in compliance with policy 7.14 of the London Plan (2015).

ODOUR

The site is handling odorous materials and there may be fugitive emissions from the building
or yard from the opening of bins for compaction or movement of materials from bin to bin

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

ready for transfer. The material is not being processed on site such as for recycling or a
change of structure of the material that would require chemical additives and odour controls
such as scrubbers or filters. The only processing mentioned is 'compaction' which could
involve some sterilisation. The Council's Environmental Protection Unit has confirmed that
there is no odour control plant and stack for this process that could affect residents or
businesses that would require a plume dispersion model.

They have stated that the business has been operating from unit 1 for a significant period of
time and that there does not appear to be any history of odour complaints. In addition, unit 1
of the site has an existing waste management licence (WML80404). The licence was
originally granted by the Environment Agency in 1996 and the conditions were modified in
1999 and again in 2001. PHS will submit a new Environmental Permit application to the
Environment Agency to extend the permitted waste operations to include Unit 1 and 2 to
handle a maximum amount of waste of 10,000 tonnes per annum with no more than 9.9
tonnes of hazardous waste on site at any time.

As a precaution, the Council's Environmental Protection Unit has recommended a condition
to obtain an Odour Management Plan. They have not raised an objection as the proposal is
it not considered likely to raise odour concerns given the limited extent of material
processing that would take place on site and its distance from any sensitive receptors.
Therefore, the amenity of neighbouring properties would be protected in compliance with
'saved' policy OE1 of the Unitary Development Plan (2012).

Comments on Public Consultations

Please see the beginning of the 'External Consultees' section of this report for details
regarding public consultation.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this planning application.
Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues related to this site.
Other Issues

There are no other issues related to this site.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The principle of the change of use of Unit 2 from an existing storage depot (Class B8
Storage and Distribution) into a waste transfer station (Sui Generis Waste Handling) to allow
for the expansion of the existing business operation from Unit 1 is acceptable.

The use of Unit 2 as a Waste Transfer Station is unlikely to adversely impact the amenity of
occupiers within neighbouring residential properties (closest being located 140m north of the
unit), in terms of outlook, daylight/sunlight, privacy, air quality, contamination, noise, or
odour.

Consideration has been given to the issue of traffic generation and vehicles servicing of the

site, and these matters taken together are not considered to have a detrimental impact on
the existing highway network or raise any highway safety concerns.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



Overall, the development would reflect the 12 core principles of sustainable development as
set out in the National Planning Policy Framework. The application scheme meets the
strategic policy objectives of the West London Waste Plan (2015), the London Plan (2015),
and Hillingdon's Local Plan.

It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions.

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (2012)

London Plan (FALP 2015)

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

West London Waste Plan (2015)

Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Noise

Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

Contact Officer: Richard Conroy Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



...... PN
' ]

[ 1l [

El Sub Sta

[

2
i

Warehouse

loJyueD ssauisng sjleH

T TOUVIUCTIT

Industrial Estate

Hoppers

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee

[Y)
=
Hj Warehouse g o
2 [ aiaieiuiekuiuialell ISP
s | | T o -
1 (7]
o |\ —/— e
Johnson's
Industrial
] Estate
SL
Notes

Site Address: .
Unit 2

Trinite Trading Estate
Silverdale Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
70738/APP/2015/4688 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major page 87 July 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HHILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1-3 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Change of use of Unit 4 to Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP) recycling facilit

and associated alterations to the external elevations, addition of an exhaust
stack, storage tanks and substation

LBH Ref Nos: 1911/APP/2016/1472

Drawing Nos: 4579-32006 Rev C

KNOWO01/44461/APP/0"

4579-32003 Rev 2

4579-32002 Rev 2

4579-32001 Rev 2

KNOWO01/44461/LOC/01

Sharps Redmore Acoustic Consultants Repol

Planning Statement prepared by Integrated Skill

Odour Management Plan reference KNOWO01/44461/PS-V
Appendix B Odour Impact Assessmer

Flood Risk Assessmen

Letter from agent reference KNOWO01/44461/ARC/LBH-

Date Plans Received: 14/04/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 14/04/2016

1.

SUMMARY

This application seeks consent for the change of use of Unit 4 to Absorbent Hygiene
Products (AHP) recycling facility and associated alterations to the external elevations
(including a fifth roller shutter door on the southern elevation), addition of an exhaust stack,
storage tanks and substation.

Whilst the principle of using the site for waste development is considered acceptable, there
are concerns with regards to the impact of the proposal on the nearby residential occupants
and schools to the south and west of the site.

The site is located adjacent to highly sensitive receptors (residential dwellings in Bankside
and Cherry Avenue to the east and schools -Blair Peach Primary school and Guru Nanak
school to the east and south). The main consideration for a Local Planning Authority in
relation to a proposal which could give rise to residual odour and effects, is for them to
focus on whether the development itself is an acceptable use of the land, and the impact of
the use, rather than the control of the processes or emissions, which are subject to
approval under pollution control regimes.

Whilst the further and more detailed information provided by the applicant is welcomed as
part of the application, there remain reservations with the assumptions and conclusions of
the assessments and modelling. The Council consider that the results significantly
underestimate the risk of odour exposure and as a result, there would be notable changes
in the odour composition and these would be noxious given the nature of the proposal, and
residential nature of the area, within the prevailing wind direction.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



The application would be contrary to the requirements of the National Planning Policy for
Waste (2014), National Planning Policy Framework (2012), West London Waste Plan
(2015), Institute of Air Quality Management Guidance on the assessment of odour for
planning (May 2014) DEFRA Odour Guidance for Local Authorities (March 2010), London
Plan (2015) Policy 5.17, EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Nov
2012), OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved Policies, and Council's
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Odour

The Odour Management Plan and Odour Impact Assessment, by reason of the
assumptions used within the modelling, which assume the odour management procedures
will be 100% effective, are considered to significantly underestimate the risks of odour
exposure and effectiveness of the systems proposed. The assessments have also failed to
include a sensitivity height stack analysis to ascertain whether this would be effective in the
dispersion of emissions.

The Council consider that there is a high risk of odour nuisance to sensitive receptors and
the scheme is thereby considered to constitute an unacceptable and inappropriate use of
the land that would be detrimental to the amenities of the nearby residential properties,
schools and canal users.

The scheme therefore fails to comply with the requirements of the National Planning Policy
for Waste (2014), National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Criteria C of Policy WLWP 3
of the West London Waste Plan (2015), Institute of Air Quality Management Guidance on
the assessment of odour for planning (May 2014) DEFRA Odour Guidance for Local
Authorities (March 2010), London Plan (2015) Policy 5.17, EM8 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved Policies and Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality.

2 NON2 Legal agreement

In the absence of a completed S106 agreement or a Deed of Variation to planning
permission 1911/APP/2012/3185, the development has failed to secure obligations relating
to sustainable transport, construction and employment training. Accordingly, the proposal is
contrary to policies LE7, OE1, AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), the Council's Planning Obligations SPD and Policy EM6 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) and Policy 5.12 of the
London Plan (2015) and the NPPF.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM14
AM7
LE1
LE2
LE7

LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.17
LPP 5.2

LPP 5.21
LPP 5.3

LPP 6.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.19
LPP 7.30
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 8.2
LPP 8.3
MIN16

NPPF
OE1

OE7

OES8

SPD-NO
SPD-PO

SPG-AQ
3

New development and car parking standards.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development
Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas
Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and
business development

(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

(2015) Waste capacity

(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2015) Contaminated land

(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Parking

(2015) Improving air quality

(2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and
enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate
soundscapes.

(2015) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2015) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

(2015) Local character

(2015) Public realm

(2015) Planning obligations

(2015) Community infrastructure levy

Waste recycling and disposal - encouragement of efficient and
environmentally acceptable facilities

National Planning Policy Framework

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

— N N N N N N N

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from
the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is located to the south of Uxbridge Road, within the Springfield Road Industrial and
Business Area (IBA).

To the immediate north and west of the application site are the other commercial buildings
within Springfield Industrial Estate. To the east of the site is the boundary with the London
Borough of Ealing Council and residential properties on the opposite side of the Canal in
Bankside and Cherry Avenue. Hayes Football Club, Guru Nanak School and Blair Peach
Primary School are located to the south of the site. The site is bounded by Yeading Brook
to the west and the Grand Union Canal to the east and is located within Flood Zone 2.

Unit 4 is located to the rear of a site, which has been granted planning permission for its
redevelopment to provide 4 No. industrial, warehouse, office buildings (Use classes B1, B2
and B8), with access and servicing arrangements, car parking, landscaping and associated
works (involving the demolition of the existing buildings).

The majority of the pre-commencement conditions associated with the application for the
redevelopment of the site have been discharged, and development has commenced on the
construction of the 4 units.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks consent for the change of use of Unit 4 to Absorbent Hygiene
Products (AHP) recycling facility and associated alterations to the external elevations
(including a fifth roller shutter door on the southern elevation), addition of an exhaust stack,
storage tanks and substation.

The facility uses bespoke technology and is specialised for recycling of Absorbent Hygiene
Products (AHPs), which includes nappies, incontinence pads and feminine hygiene
products. The process produces plastic pellets which are sold as a recycled plastic. The
process also produces a fibre, which will be used as a pet litter. The use is considered to be
akin to B2 as it will manufacture plastic pellets and pet litter.

The current use of the site has unrestricted operational hours. Occupants of all units can
work 24/7. The proposed use will operate within the current permitted hours. Deliveries
would typically be during the working day (7am - 5pm), although there may be 2-3 deliveries
during the night.

In terms of the operation of the plant, the process involved in the recycling of the materials is
summarised as follows:

1.There are two reception bays accessed by two roller shutter doors. The reception bay will
be concreted with 5m high concrete wall surrounds. There will be a stud partition wall to the
underside of the ceiling, separating the bays from the treatment area to provide a completely
separate area in which to manage air flow;

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



2. The incoming waste is deposited within one of the reception bays in the building and the
AHPs arrive at the site double or triple bagged to avoid leaks. The bags are removed from
the vehicles by hand or mechanically unloaded;

3. The bagged waste is transferred into a hopper using a wheeled loading machine and
once within the hopper, the waste moves into the separate Treatment Area. The entire
process is on a continuous process line, with waste being transferred from different
technologies using enclosed conveyor belts and pipework;

4. The first stage of the process involves shredding the AHPs to create a consistent size,
which then moves to the pulper. At the pulping stage, the super absorbent polymers are
collapsed, rendered inert and the moisture released utilising a specialised patented process.
The waste is sterilised using an advanced thermal treatment.

5. Following this, there is a further sort and separation of plastics and fibres, and removal of
any contaminants. The plastics continue through a granulation and multi washing stage,
before being pelletised. At this stage they are bagged and sent off site for re-use. The
pellets can be used as a plastic component or used as composite materials replacing
concrete and steel. The applicant would prefer to use this material to manufacture AHP
receptacles with a suitable partner which would provide full circle of recycling and re-use.

6. The fibres are washed, dried and processed for use as a pet litter. The pet litter will be
bagged on site for immediate distribution to the retail sector. Overall 97% of the product is
recycled.

More detailed information relating to the processes and odour can be found in the Odour
Management Plan, which accompanies the application.

In terms of odour management, the proposed technology includes a bespoke odour control
system based on air management and odour abatement. It is a two staged process which
involves an exhaust stack. The potential odour release from the exhaust stack has been
modelled and a stack 15 metres high is proposed, the majority of which is contained within
the building (1.7m extends above the roof).

The fifth door proposed within the elevation of the building will operate using an air lock
entry. The purpose of this door is to provide a dedicated access for a vehicle to enter and
leave the building and to transfer the manufactured products to waiting vehicles outside. The
door will be independent to the reception bays, which allows the doors for the reception
bays to be kept closed unless receiving a vehicle with waste product.

To supply the equipment needs, a substation, two transformers and two storage tanks are
provided at the site. A compound will house these items on land to the north of the building

The main differences between this application and the previous application is that further
detail has been provided as to the detailed operations and odour management within the
site. The drawings and accompanying documents, now include precise details of the
systems and plants to be used, exhaust stack and external additions. Further analysis has
also been provided within the Odour Management Plan.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

1911/APP/2012/3185 1-3 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



Erection of 4 no. industrial, warehouse, office buildings (Use Classes B1, B2 and B8) with
access and servicing arrangement, car parking, landscaping and associated works (Involving
demolition of existing buildings).

Decision: 09-05-2013  Approved

1911/APP/2015/3211 Unit 4, 1 Uxbridge Road Hayes
Change of Use of Unit 4 to Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP) Recycling Facility

Decision: 01-03-2016  Withdrawn

Comment on Relevant Planning History
The most relevant planning history for the site is listed.

Of particular relevance is application 1911/APP/2015/3211 which sought consent for the
change of use of the building change of use of Unit 4 from B1, B2 and B8 to an Absorbent
Hygiene Products (AHP) Recycling Facility. This application was due to be reported at the
3rd March 2016 committee meeting with a recommendation for refusal, however was
withdrawn by the applicants in order to provide additional information in relation to the odour
management system and revise the details in order to address other third party concerns.

The previous scheme was recommended for refusal with the following reasons for refusal:

1. In the absence of specific details of the machinery/plants, odour control systems,
associated maintenance and air quality assessments, the use of this site for the recycling of
AHPs is considered an inappropriate and unacceptable use of the land. The Council does
not consider that the applicant has submitted sufficient evidence to demonstrate that all
reasonable precautions have been taken to mitigate against the impacts of odour and
control this at an acceptable level. The scheme is thereby considered to constitute an
unacceptable and inappropriate use of the land that would be potentially detrimental to the
amenities of the nearby residential properties, schools and canal users.

The scheme therefore fails to comply with the requirements of the National Planning Policy
for Waste (2014), National Planning Policy Framework (2012), West London Waste Plan
(2015), Institute of Air Quality Management Guidance on the assessment of odour for
planning (May 2014) DEFRA Odour Guidance for Local Authorities (March 2010), London
Plan (2015) Policy 5.17, EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Nov
2012), OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved Policies and Council's
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality.

2. In the absence of a completed Deed of Variation, the development has failed to secure
obligations relating to sustainable transport, construction and employment training.
Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies LE7, OE1, AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Council's Planning
Obligations SPD and Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(Nov 2012) and Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (July 2015) and the NPPF.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM11 (2012) Sustainable Waste Management
PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

LE1 Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development

LE2 Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

LE7 Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and business

development
LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management
LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage
LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
LPP 5.17 (2015) Waste capacity

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 5.21 (2015) Contaminated land
LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking
LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

LPP 7.19 (2015) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.30 (2015) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2015) Public realm

LPP 8.2 (2015) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2015) Community infrastructure levy

MIN16 Waste recycling and disposal - encouragement of efficient and environmentally
acceptable facilities

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 27th May 2016
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 27th May 2016

6. Consultations
External Consultees

102 local residents were consulted on the application and 5 responses were received in objection to
the application. These objection letters raised the following concerns:

1. This is a residential area with children and families, the smell and type of business is unsuitable;
2. Exhaust stack is inappropriate, the site is opposite a school and close to two others.

EXTERNAL COMMENTS

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY (summary)

The application proposes a substation within Flood Zone 2, which is defined by paragraph 66 of the
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) as 'Essential Infrastructure'.

In the absence of a flood risk assessment (FRA), we object to this application and recommend refusal
of planning permission until a satisfactory FRA has been submitted.

Overcoming our objection:
You can overcome our objection by undertaking an FRA which demonstrates that the development is
safe without increasing risk elsewhere and where possible reduces flood risk overall.

The development will require an Environmental Permit under the Environmental Permitting (England
and Wales) Regulations 2010 from the Environment Agency. We are aware that the applicant
(Knowaste) have submitted a bespoke permit application to our National Permitting Team which is
currently being assessed.

OFFICER COMMENT: A Flood Risk Assessment was received from the applicant on the 22nd June
2016 and forwarded to the Environment Agency and the Councils Floodwater Management Officer.
To date, no feedback has been received from either consultee as to whether the report submitted
addresses their comments. Any further comments from these consultees will be provided within the
addendum.

EALING COUNCIL
No comments received to date. If any are received, these will be reported in the committee addendu

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPE
No objection and no requirement for any landscaping conditions.

HIGHWAYS (summarised)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



A brief technical note explaining how deliveries and collections are made was requested.

No objection to the removal of some of the car parking spaces whilst the site is being used by the
applicant, provided the parking area is restored to the original layout at the end of the lease.

Recommend a condition to secure a Travel Plan for the site if approval is recommended.

Officer comment: This information relating to deliveries and collections has been received and has
been reviewed by the Highways Officer who raised no objection.

EPU - Noise

Sharps Redmore Acoustic Consultants have already submitted a report, Project No. 1515571 (dated
14th April 2016) for the change of use of these premises. The report considers the general
reverberant level of sound, the sound insulating properties of the building fabric and the exhaust stack
for the odour control system. They have concluded that the proposed change of use to an AHP
recycling facility will not give rise to an unacceptable level of sound and would be fully compliant with
Condition 30 of the planning approval. However, the site has unrestricted operational hours.
Occupants of all units can work 24/7 and the applicant has indicated that they may be 2-3 deliveries
(of products to be recycled) during night time hours.

Should consent be recommended conditions to secure a scheme for noise control, restrict the time of
commercial deliveries to the site and details of any lighting scheme is recommended.

FLOODWATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER

The site lies in Flood Zone 2 and there is no information on how the proposals may be affected by
flood risk, or how that risk will be managed appropriately. A Flood Risk Assessment should be
submitted.

Officer comment: A FRA has been received and forwarded to the officer for comment. No comments
were received at the time of writing this report and an update will be provided within the addendum.

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT OFFICER

Initial comments:

1) the application site is very near highly sensitive receptors - The site is located to the south of
Uxbridge Road within the London Borough of Hillingdon and adjacent to the London Borough of
Ealing (refer Figure 1 of report). To the east beyond the Grand Union Canal are residential areas,
allotments and a nursery and primary school. The nearest residential properties are located on
Bankside, approximately 75 m from the site boundary to the north east. The Blair Peach Primary
School and Nursery is approximately 40 m east of the site boundary. Therefore the risk of odour
exposure at these receptor locations will be medium to high risk and the likely magnitude can range
from moderate to substantial adverse, subject to dispersal conditions, with the effect being considered
significant.

2) the modelling work undertaken to support the planning application, assumes that the odour
management procedures to be implemented will be 100% effective, and hence only models the
residual odour impact at relevant sensitive receptors.

This premise is the only one addressed by the assessment and therefore the study concludes that the
impact of the facility will not be significant. | would challenge this conclusion, which is based on a not
conservative scenario and may underestimate the local impact of the facility on sensitive receptors in
terms of odour nuisance.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



| would have modelled a failure of at least 10% of the odour management system which would
produce different results.

Officer comments: The applicant reviewed these comments and submitted further information to try
and address the concerns and queries. Following the submission of the amended details, the Air
Quality Officer provided the following comments:

As per my original response, a worst case scenario, i.e. failure of the odour removal system which will
inevitably not operate at 100% efficiency at all times, has not been modelled to ascertain the risk of
exposure at nearby sensitive locations.

Given that there is no site specific data, due diligence and professional judgement are required when
applying both the Institute Air Quality Management( IAQM) guidance and the Environmental Agency's
H4 Horizontal Guidance on Odour. There is a clear distinction to be made between using the right
methodology (robust methodology) and obtaining robust results. Whereas the method used is
acceptable and robust (model used, parameters used in the model set up, met data used, reference
methods used, etc), given the underlying assumption of assuming 100% efficiency, the results are
considered to be underestimating likely risks.

| agree with the EPU concerns, namely not having undertaken a sensitivity stack height analysis
which could help to provide further information.

Whereas the Environment Agency will issue a permit and require an Odour Management Plan to be
actioned in case of system failure, given the sensitivity of the nearby receptors and the likely
underestimation of risk reported in the assessment undertaken, concerns regarding the likely risk to
odour nuisance from the Local Authority perspective remain.

Being part of the Institute Air Quality Management Steering Group | was part of the peer review of the
IAQM Odour guidance and we strongly felt that the point | am making above is of key importance.
Hence the inclusion on page 5 of the IAQM Odour guidance of the text, quote:

"For sites that will be subject to an Environmental Permit it is still necessary, therefore, for the
Planning Authority to consider at the planning stage whether the proposed development at the site will
be a suitable use of the land - in particular, with regard to the likely residual effects of odour on nearby
sensitive users".

EPU - Odour

There are two matters to consider in this application as regards odour control, fugitive emission from
the building and emissions from the point source which has now been confirmed as a 15 metre
chimney that is 2.7 metres above the building roof (mid point) on the east side towards the housing.
Both matters are addressed but it should be noted that they are not exclusive and fugitive emissions
may add to point source emissions particularly at nearby locations. If down wash occurs emission
levels of odour will increase.

There are two main significant additions of information to this new application. The first is the odour
dispersion modelling by ENTRAN consultants for the proposed chimney stack. The second large
piece of information is within the Odour management Plan and is the detailed design proposals for the
air pollution control equipment by Simdean Envirotec consultants (see paragraph 6.6 and Appendix A
Design, supply, Installation and Commissioning of by Simdean Envirotec of Odour Control system).

Regarding the odour control system the details from Simdean Envirotec do confirm that the abatement
solution proposed in February 2016 has been designed for the applicant. It is the two part scrubber

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



system followed by carbon filtration as shown on the diagrams previously. The system is explained in
detail and this is the odour control system prior to dispersion from the chimney. The attainment of
negative pressure in the building is explained (building pressure control system) and it appears
locking the door prior to opening the processing area will also reduce fugitive emissions. The two
scrubbers will be fitted with alarms so prescribed permit limits complied with. The scrubbers take out
odours from ammonia, amines, acids and sulphonated organic compounds. The latter may include
mercaptons which are very odorous. The air from the reception is drawn through the carbon filter with
the exhaust from the scrubbers. A dust filtration is in place before the carbon filter to remove dust from
the building air to protect the carbon adsorber. The system seems to be described in engineering
detail and this is the odour control system before the final chimney that exits the carbon adsorber bed.
Prior to the Carbon Adsorber it is indicated that there will be 10,000 OU/m3 (odour units per cubic
metre). After odour removal this goes down to an average of 500 OU/m3 in the chimney stack (95%
efficient). This would be odorous and relies on good dispersion to reduce odours to below 1.5 OU/m3.
In principal the Odour Management Plan seems to follow the recommended content of an OMP for
planning purposes in the IAQM guidance (Institute of Air Quality Management). This must meet the
Environment Agency's H4 guidance as well. If it is assumed that fugitive emissions are controlled by
the negative pressure and controls in the building the dispersion modelling is key to whether there will
be odour complaints and is discussed below.

ENTRAN have carried out the dispersion model on the basis of a maximum emission of 750 OU/m3
(odour concentration) as opposed to the average projected emission of 500 OU/m3 to be
conservative. The company unfortunately do not have the working facility to take actual readings of
odour units from the stack to be used in the modelling. Down wash has been taken into account which
could be concern with the relatively low chimney 2.7 metres above the building. The assessment has
used the AERMOD model which with ADMS is a known model. Consultants at Conway nearby used
ADMS. The IAQM guidance for planning indicates both models are used dependent on the company's
access and preference as well as the opinion of the LPA or Environmental Permitting regulator. The
company seem to have taken account of IAQM guidance and the H4 Odour Management Guidance
(Environment Agency). The modelling inputs are shown in table 3 of the dispersion model. This is
important as this will affect the odour levels found by modelling at the selected 17 receptor locations
(table 2). This is using an odour level of 1.5 OU/m3 taken from the H4 and IAQM guidance as a
nuisance odour level for the most offensive processes. This is reasonable given the emissions of
ammonia and sulphur type compounds or hydrogen sulphide. It should be noted that the odour levels
at Cherry Avenue and Blair Peach school are towards the 1.5 OU/m3 (table 6 and figure 4 red line).
Table 5 indicates a slight impact and the conclusion is that "The outputs of the modelling conclude
that the impact of the facility on the amenity of surrounding receptors would not be significant'.

The assessment is critical and | would refer to the IAQM guidance for the comments on modelling
therein. In the guidance it is emphasised that there are uncertainties (see table 12 (Some approaches
for addressing uncertainty in odour modelling). Probably one of the main uncertainties would be the
odour emission rates as the plant is not working and actual odour levels could not be measured over
time. The odour levels used are indicated to be maximum levels post the carbon filter but | am not sure
what these are based on, perhaps monitoring at the other Knowaste facilities. As regards the
meteorological data it appears 5 years of data from Heathrow was used which should be sufficient. |
would recommend enquiring as to whether the uncertainties have been addressed.

| would say it is essential to get an opinion on the modelling possibly from other colleagues who look
at the models for other air pollution compounds under the AQ strategy. Odour is somewhat different to
other pollutants in the way it is measured in terms of odour units and it can be dependent on a
clarifying odour emission rates, other odour sources, terrain and source characteristics. With this
development the modelling on the consultant's proposed parameters has not indicated there will a
problem, but there will remain a risk of odour complaints given the uncertainties and close proximity of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



highly sensitive receptors in the wind direction. The modelling assumes that the odour control system
will be working at a full efficiency and although there are controls on the system and a procedure for
abnormal conditions this cannot always be guaranteed. For example if the carbon adsorber fails or the
protective filter is blocked then the odour units emitted will considerably increase. A mention was also
made of a continuous odour monitor on the process and the details of these monitors and how they
measure odour (surrogate measurement or otherwise) is important to preventing complaints. The site
staff's odour monitoring that is proposed would be very intermittent.

After reviewing the new information we would conclude that:

1. The developer has now made a significant effort to explain and detail their odour control
technology. It appears that the developer is to use the previously proposed technology. Despite using
this technology there still remains the possibility of complaints given the sensitivity of the receptors if
there are residual fugitive or chimney odours or a failure of the system that is not 'picked up'.

2. More detailed design for the specialised odour control plant is submitted. Stack dispersion
modelling is now available and concludes that the modelled odour levels will not cause a nuisance.
Two points were indicated as likely to have a slight impact which is not significant. The stack has not
been modelled at different heights.

As with my previous email taking into account the proximity of the residential and other receptors
including a school we must advise that there will be a possibility of odour complaints at this location.
Although there are detailed technical measures proposed to control odours much will rely on good
maintenance of the control equipment and the management of fugitive emissions as well as good
chimney dispersion of residual odours.

We must recommend that the dispersion modelling is checked as to whether it is robust and can be
applied to this site given the uncertainties and lack of actual site emissions data or reference to where
the data used was obtained. Unfortunately no data is available from a similar facility next to
residential to validate the model or indicate an absence of complaints.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of the redevelopment of the site for B1, B2 and B8 uses was established within
application 1911/APP/2012/3185.

National Planning Policy for Waste (2014) aims to achieve sustainable waste management
by securing adequate provision of new waste management facilities of the right type, in the
right place and at the right time. The Council has adopted its West London Waste Plan
(WLWP) (2015) which sets out how it wishes to see waste managed in West London by
2031.

The site is within the Hayes Industrial Area Strategic Industrial Location, as set out in the
Boroughs Policies Map. The London Plan recognises that these sites are suitable for
general industrial, light industrial, storage and distribution, waste management, recycling,
some transport related functions, utilities, wholesale markets and other industrial related
activities.

One of the main issues for consideration in establishing the principle of the development is
firstly whether the use of this site for waste is acceptable. As required by Policy 5.17 of the
London PLan, the WLWP identifies 15.52ha of land within the West London area to meet the
pooled approportionment. These include eight existing waste management sites and a
further site (Western International Market) put forward as a potential new site for waste

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



management. The application site is not an existing or proposed waste site as identified
within the WLWP. Policy WLWP 3 - Location of Waste Development states that waste
development on other sites will be supported in principle if the proposals comply with the
other WLWP policies and the Boroughs' and the OPDC's adopted development plans, and:

a. It can be demonstrated that the development cannot be delivered at any available and
suitable existing waste management site within the Borough or OPDC area where the
development is proposed and at the sites listed in Tables 5-1 and 5-2, and

b. In the case of facilities proposed for the management of MSW and C&l waste, identified
sites in Tables 5-1 and 5-2 have not come forward and it can be demonstrated that there will
be a shortfall in the waste management capacity required to meet the Boroughs' joint
apportionment target as specified in Policy WLWP 1; and

c. There is no adverse cumulative effect, when taken together with existing waste
management facilities, on the well-being of the local community, including any significant
adverse impacts against the WLWP sustainability objectives; and

d. The proposed site meets the criteria set out in the subsequent WLWP Policies where if
applicable.

Written evidence has been provided by the applicant to demonstrate that none of the
allocated or existing sites can accomodate the proposal and therefore the scheme meet the
criteria of this policy.

In relation to the provision of new waste management, the expectation is that substantive
provision would be made on allocated sites in the first instance. It has been demonstrated in
this case that none of the allocated sites would be suitable for the processes. Given such
any such application needs to be consistent with the waste hierarchy. The waste hierarchy
is pivotal in providing the delivery of sustainable waste management and consists of 5
stages, prevention being the preferred option, then re-use and preparing for re-use,
recycling, other recovery and the least preferred option, disposal.

AHPs are currently managed by disposal or other recovery, however the proposed use will
recycle 100% of the product, which moves the handling of this specific material up the
hierarchy. The London Plan also sets targets for self-sufficiency and managing specific
waste streams. Policy 5.16 sets out the target to manage 100% of London's waste within the
London by 2026, create positive environment and economic impacts from waste processing
and work towards zero biodegradable or recyclable waste to landfill by 2026. The proposed
recycling of AHPs will help towards the zero biodegradable waste to landfill target and
therefore no objection is raised to the principle of such recycling.

Policy WLWP 1 - Provision of New Waste Management Capacity seeks to ensure that
schemes contribute towards the apportionment set in the London Plan. The proposal is
compliant with this policy as the requirement is for capacity in the re-use, recycling and other
recovery categories. The proposal would also help to meet the London Plan waste
apportionment and move waste up the waste hierarchy.

Therefore, it has been established that the principle of using this non allocated site for
waste, is acceptable, subject however to compliance with the requirements of the NPPW,
WLWP 4 and the Councils adopted policies and guidance on other relevant matters such as
amenity, pollution and transport.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Airport safeguarding

NATs and BAA Ltd were consulted on this application, however have not responded to the
consultation on this matter. The site is located within a height restriction area of 15 metres.
The proposed flue protrudes only 1.7 metres above the ridge of the building, and therefore it
is not considered that the proposal would result in any specific airport safeguarding issues.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to the consideration of this application as the site is not located within or
adjacent to the Green Belt.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The design and appearance of the building will be largely as approved within application
1911/APP/2012/3185. A further roller shutter door is proposed to the southern elevation of
the building, however as this is to be of a design, size and scale comparable to those
already approved within the building, no objection is raised to this addition. A large external
plant area is proposed adjacent to the northern boundary of the site. Given the industrial
nature and scale of the buildings within the immediate area, it is not considered that such
additions would appear visually intrusive to adjacent residential properties. If the scheme
had been recommended for approval, a suitable landscaping scheme could have been
recommended to ensure that such additions were adequately screened from the Canal.

Aflue is proposed to the roof of the building, which will extend approximately 1.7 metres from
the northern roofslope. By reason of the modest scale and projection of this addition above
the roof of the building, it is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the character
and appearance of the surrounding area.

Overall, no objection is raised to the external alterations to the building.
Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies states that planning
permission will not normally be granted for uses that are likely to become detrimental to the
character or amenities of surrounding properties or the area generally because of noise and
vibration or the emission of dust, smell or other pollutants, unless sufficient measures are
taken to mitigate the environmental impact of the development.

The NPPF defines pollution as "Anything that affects the quality of land, air, water or sails,
which might lead to an adverse impact on human health, the natural environment or general
amenity. Pollution can arise from a range of emissions, including smoke, fumes, gases, dust,
steam, odour, noise and light.

Residential properties are located approximately 75 metres to the east of the application site
and the distance to the boundary with Blair Peach Primary school is only 20 metres. Both
are within the main direction of the prevailing wind.

Further detail of the impact of the development on residential amenity is provided within
section 7.08 of this report. However to summarise, there are concerns with the assumptions
and subsequent conclusions within the Odour Assessment Report. The assessments have
only modelled the site operating at 100% efficiency, and not had regard to the worst case
scenario. The results are therefore considered to have significantly underestimated the likely

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



7.09

7.10

711

7.12

713

714

risks of odour exposure.

The conclusions of officers are that on the basis of the information submitted, plant in this
location would give rise to unacceptable levels of odour nuisance to the surrounding
occupiers. The odour emitted is considered to present a notable change in the odour
composition of the area and these would be noxious given the residential nature of the area,
within the prevailing wind direction. The proposed siting of the development be
unacceptable to the amenities of nearby occupants and conflict with adopted policies and
guidance.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

A Transport Assessment was submitted with application 1911/APP/2012/3185 to redevelop
the site. There are no conditions restricting vehicle movements and the original scheme
required the submission of a Travel Plan, and also for each occupant to provide a Fleet
Management Plan.

The site will accept AHPs from a number of sources, including Local Authority Collection and
commercial waste collectors that specialise in the collection of AHPs. The main delivery
vehicles will be vans and 7.5 tonne vehicles. The products will be exported from the site in a
range of LGVs include artics, Rollonoffs and curtain sided trailers. Unit 4 could be occupied
by any B1c or B2 business without the need to provide data on vehicle types and
movements. The redevelopment has been assessed using a worse case scenario of B1c
and B2 occupants, which could generate the highest level of vehicle movements.The
proposed vehicle trip generation was anticipated to be 92 and 98 two-way LGVs/HGVs trips
in the AM and PM peak periods, respectively.

The proposed operational hours for this site will be within the current permitted hours.
However, deliveries will typically be during the hours 07.00 and 17.00, with perhaps 2 or 3
deliveries during the night time period. The applicant has stated that they will support the
Travel Plan provided for this site and it is the intention to employ staff from the local area
and thus reduce travel times for staff and encourage the use of public transport.

The Highways Officer raises no objection to the scheme.
Urban design, access and security

Urban design - See comments within section 7.07 of the report.

Access and security remain as approved within application 1911/APP/2012/3185.
Disabled access

This remains as approved within application 1911/APP/2012/3185.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

A scheme for hard and soft landscaping and the impact of the redevelopment of the site on
the local ecology was considered as part of application 1911/APP/2012/3185. A number of
conditions were imposed to secure the enhancement and preservation of both Yeading
Brook and the Grand Union Canal. Further landscaping conditions were added to this
consent to ensure that a suitable scheme for soft and hard landscaping was implemented on
the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



This application does not seek to alter the landscaping proposals approved as part of the
original redevelopment application and no objection is raised in this respect.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

The proposal is compliant with Policy WLWP1 and London Plan as the proposal is for

capacity in the re-use, recycling and other recovery categories. The proposal would also

help to meet the London Plan waste apportionment and move waste up the waste hierarch
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

The original application (1911/APP/2012/3185) was supported by an Energy and
Sustainability Statement, which advised that range of passive and active energy efficiency
measures would be employed on the development.

Following this consent, a proposal for carbon reduction has been approved for the entire
site, which explains how the required 25% reduction in carbon emissions has been
achieved. For each of the units, it is proposed to incorporate enhanced fabric insulation,
reduced air permeability rates and increased luminous efficient lighting in addition to solar
collectors for hot water and photovoltaic panels for electricity generation. As no alterations
are proposed within this application to the consented building, it is considered that the
application would comply with the energy requirements of the both the Councils adopted
policies and the London Plan.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The WLWP sets out the requirement to provide a high quality development and states that
all waste development proposals should ensure that there will be no impact on the quality of
surface groundwater (i) and that there will be no increased flood risk either to the immediate
area or indirectly elsewhere (j). Further the NPPW requires the consideration of the proximity
of vulnerable surface and groundwater, and supports development that would not have a
significant impact on surface or groundwater.

The planning application for the redevelopment included a detailed Flood Risk Assessment
which provided surface water storage on site of a minimum 262l/s. This represents 50% of
the existing run-off from the site and was therefore considered to be in accordance with the
London Plan. The SUDs condition on the previous consent has already been discharged for
the whole site, and the applicants have confirmed that no other alterations are proposed to
the surface water drainage.

Notwithstanding such, this application proposes further additions to the north of the site, in
the form of a substation, two transformers and two storage tanks on a concrete plinth. As
these additions are 'Essential Infrastructure' in Flood Zone 2, as defined by paragraph 66 of
the National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) a Flood Risk Assessment is required. One
was received by the Council on the 22nd June and is currently being reviewed by the
Environment Agency and the Councils Floodwater Management Officer.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

The National Planning Policy for Waste states that local authorities must consider the impact
of proposals for waste development on the local environment and on amenity against a
number of locational criteria which include potential odours, air emissions, noise and
potential land use conflict. It highlights that consideration should be given to the proximity of
sensitive receptors and the extent to which adverse odour can be controlled through the use
of appropriate and well maintained and managed equipment.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states at paragraph 120 that "to prevent

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



unacceptable risks from pollution and land instability, planning policies and decisions should
ensure that new development is appropriate for its location. The effects of pollution on
health, the natural environment or general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area
or proposed development to adverse effects from pollution should be taken into account".
The NPPF defines pollution as being "anything that affects the quality of land, air, water or
soils, which might lead to an adverse impact on human health, the natural environment or
general amenity. Pollution can arise from a range of emissions, including...gases, dust,
steam, odour, noise...".

It is noted that some activities such as the one proposed, operate under an Environmental
Permit, whereby ongoing pollution control of many of the operations will be regulated by the
Environment Agency. The IAQM guidance states that in such instances:

"National Planning Guidance requires that the Planning Authority works on the assumption
that such pollution control regimes will operate effectively; however, even with these in
place, there may often be some residual effects that would make a development an
unsuitable use of its land at its proposed location. For sites that will be subject to an
Environmental Permit, it is still necessary therefore, for the Planning Authority to consider at
the planning stage whether the proposed development at the site will be a suitable use of
the land - in particular, with regard to the likely residual effects of odour on nearby sensitive
sites. (IAQM Guidance, page 5, 2014).

The important consideration for the Local Planning Authority in relation to a proposal which
could give rise to residual odour and effects, is for them to focus on whether the
development itself is an acceptable use of the land, and the impact of the use, rather than
the control of the processes or emissions, which are subject to approval under pollution
control regimes (paragraph 122 of the NPPF).

WLWP Policy 4 seeks to ensure that development proposals demonstrate for both the
construction and operational phases of the development that:

"a) Development will be permitted only where it can be shown that unacceptable impact to
local amenity will not arise from the construction and operation of a facility;

b) Adequate means of controlling noise, vibration, dust, litter, odours, air and water borne
contaminants and other emissions are incorporated into the scheme;

c) The development is of a scale, form and character appropriate to its location and
incorporates a high quality of design...".

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies states that planning
permission will not normally be granted for uses that are likely to become detrimental to the
character or amenities of surrounding properties or the area generally because of noise and
vibration or the emission of dust, smell or other pollutants, unless sufficient measures are
taken to mitigate the environmental impact of the development.

The site is located on the edge of Springfield Road IBA. To the east of the site are
residential properties on Bankside, Cherry Avenue and Blair Peach Primary School (within
the London Borough of Ealing). To the south and west of the site are football grounds and
Guru Nanak school. The remaining area to the north and west forms are the other
commercial premises within the Industrial Area. These adjacent buildings are defined as
highly sensitive receptors (residential dwellings and schools), by the IAQM Guidance, and as

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



the prevalent wind is south westerly, the siting of the development could give rise to
unacceptable levels of odour exposure to these receptors, which needs -careful
consideration.

The scheme has been accompanied by a planning statement and Odour Management Plan
(OMP) and Odour Management Assessment, which sets out the systems and processes
involved and odour management controls.

The previous scheme only included very generic and illustrative information on odour
control, and at the time of the previous application, the applicant had yet to choose a
company to install and design the plant and control systems. Given the lack of precise detalil
of the plant, exhaust stack, operations and systems, the full details of any maintenance were
also unable to be clarified. Maintenance of any plant is essential to ensure that odours are
treated effectively and not dispersed via any stack. In the absence of all of this information
within the previous scheme, it was not possible for Officers to determine whether there
would have been an adverse impact as a result of odours and refusal of the application was
recommended in this regard.

This application has sought to provide further detail and clarity in respect of the operations,
maintenance and mitigation measures proposed to control odour from the site. The
accompanying Odour Management Plan now contains further detail and explanations of the
odour control technology proposed. Furthermore, a more detailed design for the bespoke
odour control plant/system with stack dispersion modelling has been submitted.

It is important to emphasis that whilst it is not for the Local Planning Authority to determine
whether the pollution controls will work effectively, pollution controls need to be considered
as an integral part of the planning process. The close proximity of the site to highly sensitive
receptors requires a much higher standard of mitigation to be provided than might be
acceptable at locations where a significant buffer zone exists, as there are not any examples
of successful odour control technology in an urban environment.

One of the main concerns of Officers previously and which remains within this application,
was that with whatever system was proposed, fugitive odours would be able to bypass any
odour control system in place. Given the potentially noxious nature of the odours, south
westerly prevailing wind, and proximity to residential dwellings, this would be significantly
harmful to the amenities of the adjacent residential occupants, schools and canal users. The
system proposes to use negative pressure within the building, which has been explained in
more detail with this application, and it would appear that locking the door prior to opening
the processing area will also reduce fugitive emissions. If it is assumed that fugitive
emissions are controlled by the negative pressures and controls within the building, the
dispersion modelling is key to whether there will be odour concerns.

In terms of the site operations and areas for potential odour, the applicants have provided
the following summary of the operations. Firstly, the waste AHP delivered to the proposed
facility has the potential to give rise to odours and the facility has been designed to try and
minimise the fugitive release of odours. Process air from within the building will be treated
within the odour control system before it is vented to the atmosphere via a 15m stack located
to the north of the process building. There will be residual odours from the odour control
system and the assessment has focussed on the impact of these emissions on off-site
odour. The assessment has utilised a dispersion model to predict the dispersion of odorous
emissions from the facility using five years of meteorological data from London Heathrow

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



Airport. The predicted concentrations of odour, in terms of European Odour Units (ouE/m3)
have been compared to benchmark levels provided by the Environment Agency in their
horizontal guidance (H4).

The modelling work undertaken as part of this application has been reviewed by the
Councils Air Quality and Environmental Protection Officers (their full consultation responses
are referred to in section 6 of this report). The modelling undertaken assumes only that
odour management procedures to be implemented will be 100% effective, and hence only
models the residual odour impact at relevant sensitive receptors. The assessment concludes
that the impact of the facility will not therefore be significant. The Councils specialists
disagree with this approach as it is based on a not conservative scenario and may
underestimate the local impact of the facility on the nearby sensitive receptors. A worst case
scenario, namely the failure of the odour removal system, which will inevitably not operate at
100% efficiency at all times, has not been modelled to ascertain the risk of exposure at
nearby sensitive locations. The view of the Council is that the assessment should have
modelled a failure of the odour removal system, which would have produced a completely
different set of results.

Given that there is no site specific data, due diligence and professional judgement are
required when applying the IAQM guidance and Environment Agency's H4 Horizontal
Guidance on Odour. There is a clear distinction to be made between using the right, robust
methodology and obtaining robust results. Whilst the methodology used by the applicant is
acceptable and robust in relation to the model used, the parameters used in its set up,
meterological data used and reference methods used, the main concern is with the
assumptions used in assuming 100% efficiency. Although there are controls on the system
and procedures for abnormal conditions, it is important to note that these cannot always be
guaranteed, for example, if a protective filter is blocked, the odour units emitted will
considerably increase. The risk remains that there will be odour complaints given the
uncertainties and close proximity of highly sensitive receptors in the prevailing wind
direction.

It is therefore considered that the results are significantly underestimating the risks of odour
exposure and effectiveness of the systems proposed. Given the high sensitivity of the
nearby receptors and the underestimation of risk reported, the Council maintains its
concerns that the proposal will result in odour nuisance to the nearby sensitive receptors
(residential properties and school to the south west of the site).

In respect specifically to the stack proposed to the building, the dispersion model was
carried out on the basis of a maximum emission as opposed to the average projected
emissions. As there is no similar or working facility, the readings of odour units are
predictions and not actual measures. In the IAQM guidance, it is emphasised that there are
uncertainties with any modelling and in this particular case, one of the main uncertainties is
that as the plant is not operational, actual odour levels cannot be measured over time. The
odour levels used are indicated to be maximum levels post the carbon filter, but it is unclear
what these are based upon.

Given the relatively low external chimney height, there is also concern that down wash could
occur, which would cause the emission levels of odour to increase. The applicants have not
undertaken a sensitivity stack height analysis, which would have been expected and may
have assisted in addressing some of the additional concerns raised.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



The DEFRA Odour Guidance for Local Authorities states that "where the generation of
odours from the development can be readily anticipated, the local authority should expect to
be provided with objective evidence that demonstrates that odour emissions will be
adequately controlled to prevent any significant loss of amenity to neighbouring sensitive
land users. This is important not least because possible odour mitigation measures could in
themselves have land use and amenity implications".

The DEFRA guidance is particularly relevant to the consideration of this application, as the
main concerns in relation to the lack of information relating to the stack height, are that there
is doubt that the stack at the height suggested will ensure that odours are adequately
controlled/dispersed.

Whilst the further and more detailed information provided by the applicant is welcomed as
part of the application, there remain reservations with the assumptions and conclusions of
the assessments and modelling. The Council consider that the results significantly
underestimate the risk of odour exposure and as a result, there would be notable changes in
the odour composition and these would be noxious given the nature of the proposal, and
residential nature of the area, within the prevailing wind direction.

Noise:

A noise report has been submitted with the application, however this looks only at noise
breakout based on assumptions. The internal reverberant level has been assumed as the
plants/equipment to be used are not finalised yet, and specifications of the building fabric
are unknown. In the absence of the detailed design of the building, plants and equipment,
the scheme fails to demonstrate that the levels as identified in the submitted noise report can
be achieved.

It should be noted that the site has consent for a B1, B2, B8 use, and as part of application
1911/APP/2012/3185, a noise assessment was submitted that took a worst case scenario,
with all four units being used 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and all HGVs having
refrigeration equipment. Mitigation was recommended as part of this application and secured
by conditions (conditions 15 and 30 specifically required the submission of noise reports for
machinery and plants). Given the previous consent was based on a worst case scenario, it
is not considered that this scheme would exceed the levels previously considered. Had the
scheme been found acceptable in all other respects, conditions would have been added to
ensure that a noise report was submitted to the council for approval to confirm that the
relevant levels were achieved.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The comments raised through the public consultation have been addressed within the main
body of the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy LE7 of the Council's Hillingdon Local Plan - Part 2 UDP Saved Policies states that:
'"The Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek to ensure that development
proposals for industrial, warehousing and business uses provide planning benefits related to
the scale and type of the development.’

The application for the redevelopment of the whole site, including plots 1 to 3 under planning
permission 1911/APP/2012/3185 was granted subject to a S106 agreement to secure
planning obligations to mitigate the impact of the development. These included a 10 Year
Green Travel Plan and a Delivery and Servicing Plan, construction and employment training

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



and a project management and monitoring fee.

The Council adopted its Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule on the 10th
July 2014 and the Heads of Term included in the original legal agreement are still
considered relevant to the development. A Deed of Variation to this legal agreement would
be required with any development on this site to ensure that the obligations agreed with the
original scheme are applicable to this application.

No deed of variation has been received pursuant to this application and in the absence of
such, the development has failed to secure obligations relating to sustainable transport,
construction and employment training. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies LE7,
OE1, AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), the Council's Planning Obligations SPD and Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) and Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (July 2015) and
the NPPF.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other issues for consideration.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None.

10. CONCLUSION

Whilst the principle of using the site for waste development is considered acceptable, there
are concerns with regards to the impact of the proposal on the nearby residential occupants
and schools to the south and west of the site.

The site is located adjacent to highly sensitive receptors (residential dwellings in Bankside
and Cherry Avenue to the east and schools -Blair Peach Primary school and Guru Nanak
school to the east and south). The main consideration for a Local Planning Authority in
relation to a proposal which could give rise to residual odour and effects, is for them to focus
on whether the development itself is an acceptable use of the land, and the impact of the
use, rather than the control of the processes or emissions, which are subject to approval
under pollution control regimes.

Whilst the further and more detailed information provided by the applicant is welcomed as
part of the application, there remain reservations with the assumptions and conclusions of
the assessments and modelling. The Council consider that the results significantly
underestimate the risk of odour exposure and as a result, there would be notable changes in
the odour composition and these would be noxious given the nature of the proposal, and
residential nature of the area, within the prevailing wind direction.

The application would be contrary to the requirements of the National Planning Policy for
Waste (2014), National Planning Policy Framework (2012), West London Waste Plan
(2015), Institute of Air Quality Management Guidance on the assessment of odour for
planning (May 2014) DEFRA Odour Guidance for Local Authorities (March 2010), London
Plan (2015) Policy 5.17, EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Nov
2012), OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved Policies, and Council's

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy for Waste (2014)

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

West London Waste Plan (2015)

Institute of Air Quality Management Guidance on the assessment of odour for planning (May
2014)

Odour Guidance for Local Authorities (March 2010)

London Plan (2015)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Noise

Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



Warehouse

I ——
[T

ORD f;d =
20 R0
(17

‘ILI

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Unit 4

1-3 Uxbridge Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
1911/APP/2016/1472 1:2,500
Planning Committee: Date:
Major Page 112 July 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Annex

Plans for
Major Applications
Planning Committee

Thursday 14th July
2016

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address FORMER TOMMY FLYNNS P.H. SUTTON COURT ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Redevelopment of the site to provide a new three storey building containing 2¢
flats (Class C3) with associated parking, balconies, landscaping and rear
communal amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 8396/APP/2016/777

Date Plans Received: 24/02/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/02/2016

Major Applications Planning Committee -14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



_ﬂmﬁ <m ~Mm th:sﬂgjﬁs.ﬁfuuss;..a s..nwn.-nzm.&ﬂiuﬁ-aumgﬂ.x i Sﬂw.s”ﬂn.ﬂ ETVIEN £5¢E L0) 3‘“”_«3;3“3%%4%»3
O AT 0L Ao 80 “Ebuswesp o od I ITRED) 2T NG I AR
|eacaddy Jog WS d0  STOZ/ZT/€0

Snivis QEINIANT Ny uva pEOY HNOD uouns

€Y @ 05211 00 o1o d ¥ig 1030044
awos Az on ma 3dAL BMa ‘oM 133084 % <
ue|d uoneso P Alssepiog || w Beerd 0 T G0 6

L SNIMIBG |

N HOLL4THIS3O 3LVa AFW

SOM|IWPLEXOD||IM

Page 115



VLGRS (0h e 4 o e s
.

i st it

Page 116



. oy ‘s iia%t!!.
WVEN  seeSECERTETEE

RAGEdy 0 WS Jo swoz/er/eo
o suws amaw Hmvia va Peoy 10D uons.
£V © 0081 00 oot 1d &R
ueld 235 pasodolg - py1 Ajssapdog

e ot e s 30

LLLLCE HOLLTHIST BAVD ATH

Page 117







_ﬁp (.xm —Mm uﬁ.sﬁ:st:xessa.sﬂsas:iaz u.n._.su.ﬁuw._-nwnr: uﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ:.” st " Mﬁqm.ﬂﬂwum%\_ﬁ _,_\L_.J. i
s R St AR S5 Aot Wi, Eamers PR Y o e 1 e pu.k%
|eacaddy Jog WS d0  STOZ/ZT/€0 =
Snivis anoana NavHD auva pEOY HNoD uopnsg N
£y @ 0021 oo 0Zo d vie 1930084

WIS LEL] oN DMa FdAL DMT ON L2300 . . - .

sueld Bunsixg P17 Ajsiapuog - L ™

AL HNIMYEA ANITYY I
.Z’g HOLL4THOS3A JAVD AFW

SaM|IDWFEX0D[[IM

ue|d 400jd 3514

ue|d J00]4 punoIs

Page 119

ue|d jusulaseg




e
g e
P
o 5
E si!%p}
5 18 Iiil!!t
1N
O l.ih




willcox:nameilwes
_'-m!




willcox:nameilwes

Page 122



SOM|IDWP X0 [IM




willcoxanemeilwes

Page 124




Lj il

¢
L
-.
L
]
by

Page 125

willcoxanomeilwes




Page 126



TTEERE T
SpEE L T
e

il
el

T =
0=, = - :
UDE“H“ .......
1 ==X
Os8E8
qu,sw,._m S
ELEM@M . [
z5E8E Z3
" o r (]
MHqu.w =
¢ B
FEI.N....ﬂ .
zox 88 o
o i 2
o~ +-
o [{=]
et =
T T | 2
w ...l. W.__
= ™ 5 3
g |5 &7
W.._ [
LL
% N~
Al
£ I~ o
m ()]
Qo _H.. S
- 5 = :
= o
[ Dn.n
1] = © S
B ¢ 8
m .W.n_l m m
g s<|E F
o ? o ;
£ <8 |5
[y ]
p go |2
[ &~ £
& o 5
[
me
= Hid
B
§ 53558 i
0 & wnnm4m .
2 o T8y b
B L
m 58 358 g 53
= +oh 229y
o = m.m.t.._._ H.W_WE
5 & IS e ey
R mﬂ.mgmm_mm
ﬁ e v...m,w.D..mA o
@ E gt t[Emm
=] ] mmﬁhshn 2a
s | ceg 2 g9
RHTHI
S5S§pms




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address GAELIC ATHLETIC ACCOS. SPORTS GROUND WEST END ROAD RUISLI

Development: Variation of condition 2 of planning permission reference
24373/APP/2014/1946 dated 13/3/2015 (redevelopment of the GAA Sports
Grounds), to allow a reduction in the overall length of the main stand from
136.8m to 101.4m; a reduction in the overall covered area from 54.6m to 39m;
removal of proposed terrace on the north boundary; construction of 2 step
viewing area to replace the north terrace; construction of 2 step viewing area t
east and west of the main stand (Section 73 application).

LBH Ref Nos: 24373/APP/2016/1511

Date Plans Received: 18/04/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 18/04/2016
Date Application Valid: 18/04/2016

Major Applications Planning Committee -14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



T4 £14 TOT P00r
MOPUOT TV dTMS
CRSURLAM,

NgoL =

— —
JEPUBL  orpeg Bamein
WMODON T s paka

SHoVE L av T
aeg ‘paen An pastdaig

000ZF QDOkL woees

i R

dey uoleao aus

L

dijsiny 'peoy pu3 Isam je spunig
YV pleiaws jo Juswdojprspsy

wakilg

(paeog funod yyo uopuo)
UiBpUOT SBIUOYD FISI0D

i

siozaws

BTANE

ss0cz0v0

eaa'a.g'f )

% @ 2 |2 |8

E3330A

o i L)

Q| 00z9-1zeL wweme)

) (NOO! AN LY
IONYNOBO DL LV MWOHS STIATI T &

FHL A TIMHOIN 36 OL ALMNAOEIAY

sy T
LIS MO HOLOWVHINGD

JHL AR OHDIUD 30 0L SORMVHO VY T
ONUAYHO SIHL WOMS

NV 38 0L ATHO SNOISNEINIO O3Mn0d )

TEII0N

D AMVONNOBE 2E -

aN3HIT

Page 129




(W | £00Z-12€2 :amoumso)

llllll oy ey )
vy [P T B T N R
SER R B R R T
et O

sSLozEuaL av ™

= )

SUOREASI3 PUE sueld

L

PRAUOD e
dysiny 'peoy pu3 153/ Je spunolg
YYD PRIRWE jo uawdojanapay

Wk

ﬁ (pseog Aunog yyo uopuo) TEvaT @

UlBpUOT SEWUOYD SO0

ey | s ] sy
ar

7

(NOO) MATWIN WLLYD = . K —_—
FONYNGHD OL TLVTIH NIOKS S1IAT T 6 :

T BHE HOS HNOTHD HONOHOHL
¥ INVLHIONN TIVHE HOLIWHINGD 3HL "

AHL A OINHOIN I8 0L IUINTHSOHS Y

LIS NO HOLIHINGD £ . o - - * “ - - - +- - . P - 3 - - s - - "3
FHL AR OIHOFHD 30 0L SOMMNSA TV z e d 5 - =

s s o RO @ Q) @ @ @) ® ® ©) ® ® ® ® ® ®

SIL0ON

7 T
KOS 0318WEI0 HO4 30V Td \m

. DHLLVOTHIMOS DRIMDTICS
BTS2 THDINGD NG HEINLIHIOMOd
L1HD INTIDIE OL SHOOT T L —
 SHOON i

LIV NCES TN 1900 © | IVOD TN w
O HOLVHDS 0N ) HELEV I SIM0D
© 3NIDTY I OL SHHOMMDOM TIV

[ TvNMILXE FSIHEING

HATYIE ALIHINGD HLIM D3NV ONY -
QT HIVS 3 QL SHHOMADO TS TH
{ TUNSEILNI ) SAHSING |

OFRVHS WY | YD
e | 03TV ANB000 30 O SMOONIM

AMEIDNGHNDH! DEHN03H 1% NIVINGD
OV 105 38 04 BHO00 ToNKI1NS
FAV M HONOL ONY HENd SNIVINOD NY

0NN G 01 e NI 05
3 0L BOORMHOD DL HOOA T TV
HHO0D

Page 130




o0z ) o A vondsa g | A {00 NATHEN WLV
mo F = F N N A — s FONYNOHO 0L ILVTIE NMOHE STIATT T 6
st oy A ) ) v | w iy Bt o possy ¥ P SIRN09 oM
il i bt 1 . e, oot AL sy i st st Buowitsg) uejd J00|4 punois) SHUNLVETHNANIS TIV 30 NOUYIDT
e g e s e g e e : . e
R R e VR ﬁ..rﬂ....wﬂ..m.%.hm LIBAOEN "D ol v y.«_muoﬂqﬁaxo_%g v
fojemetiesfoip g gtires piites —— P oo
o . lenuog uieyy i e Exwhu;wnﬁqﬂaunu
4%{% AERORET G n_._m_..:ﬁ peoy pud 1SS/ 18 SPUNCID) e FHL AR DNHOINI 38 OL TUVIHGOHIdY =
o i e HOLIVHLNOD
o e st o WYO pleiswi3 jo uswdopaspay 31 AB GO 90 0L SONMIO Y. T
ﬁ.ﬁ.ﬂdﬁ PR - PR NENYL 38 01 LG SNOENTNID 0380 L
i simseafi3 Bugnee MAOL e ) (pleog a_.ioo w9 uopuaT)
4 posidaiy uigpuo’ sejuoyDd &sio) i LERLL

2]
fEahINY 14 CTINY ST §¥H RV T 000 130T @

. ! 1 : .4
=it e — — —
e Sp— . S, S ———— - —r i
—— i | e gy —
u_o_ﬁz T __ I.__.|,W..||. . _J._w_l ANy b P
W ||h .M.. ] — ﬂ||| .___ A I
=k 2% . £2 =] i = ks a
m = =5 : Hg m & gm E |
% 5 i [ i—




0T
]

Ademl
sOpG Glamex]

v _9012heeL e

_RZ.SS FRODS )

WBAGSIRY T

GLOTBNEE

ueld Bunesg

N e

Lol L |

oy B O e

INOC) HATMIN WNEva
AINVHOHO OL ALYTIH BMOHS S13ATT T 6

W W BIDNTHNCD KHOM

oL

g-ﬁﬂg

NigoL=

TPANHRITY

JoRIUoD Uieyy

dijsiny ‘peoy puz 1S3 18 SPUNCI

WO plelswd jo juswdopaapay

o)

ANV FHOAI0 TONNCHD MO8 ONY IACHY.
‘EHUNLVEIINEES TV 40 NOUYIOT
TENLOY IHL 80 HOIHD HDNONOHL

¥ AMVAHIOND TIVHE HOLTVHINGD 3HL ¥

THL AT GOSN 38 0L ILIHACHETY
& i}

HP
hg posedaty

(preog Aunod wyo uopuoT)
UIBPUCT BRJUOYD) SSIOD

JU15 MO BOLIVHINGD
FHLAS ONITHD 30 OL SONIMYHC TIV. z
SNIMAVE SIHL MO

waD

HETAVL 30 0L ANO SNOIENTWI0 OEMNEE )

EEFUT

(0350404d) $30vdS 3DWHYIL 90T

(0350d0Yd) T¥LOL NI SLV3S 68T

(3504044} $32¥dS I0vHYIL 90T

— 9
(N1 CHEDL0EE] Ry ONITVIS O

[DMINYTd OILNYHD) TYLOL NI S1¥35 SBET

®

@_*_

©

@_ |
Page 132

(MY i NV ES SV N T SN vaS

o




0T ¥ soduIsE0
1Y Bopas |/ ol [ INOO) HATMEN WY
| JINVNTHO 0L TUVIIH RMOHS SIIATI Th. 5
A av | W e B 1 poens: ¥ BIINTANOD FHOM
i b SHOA30 ONNOHD W03 ONY ANCTY
SOYEG Blameng Sue|d Jooy ‘BIALMLVEIINHIS TIV 40 NOLLYDOT
LHBAOENIRY ) oL TWTHLOY SHL 304 ¥ITHD HENOHOHL
: ¥ AVLHICNN TIVHS HOLOVRINGD 3L
dopang 1alold JoeljuOD ey STINTPO0 MHOM ANY 3H0430.
21| 3 STTNVITHIEID ANV 40 BOLIWHINGD
s B 2 ABLTOEL = diysiny ‘peoy pud 18\ 18 SPUNCIS) syl aE oy o Gl Ry
TLERETL OO il
g T BT gy — av VYO plelsw jo juswdopaapay 115 NG BOLOVHINGD
SRR = e THLAS OPEITHD 3 OL SONIMYET T
_..vz_a.i._as-a — PRI SNIAVED SIHL WO
o ey woRiy _-..H.mw- - s ﬁDthm b:ﬂOU YWO _._Om_:nul—v [ WENVL 3O A TND SNOIENTWNIT 0NN E .“
iy pasdiig UlEpuUGT aRUOYD AISI0D) " ETIER
1R ] SISO | NV A0S @
40
{3)
T T ; 8
= i
™
™
,.\— e m, ot M = H =T m = M 0 M =, i “u o y M = P14 & M = M E 3 -
4 1 X L H vy 1
& o
P v p / o
— ._” @
F TR T CUNYHES S NI YT 00
A. -
&
- 1 -
- L | -
P .= e = = o 1 K
| == 5, I ! i \ i I
| \ I\ /[ I\ I\ I\ !
| I \ 713 \ Fil A i
= | : | fL % by fol f " : :
- =g e e —\ f \ \ | \ i \ _____ 3 s e e %
{ § / .,_ ! _____ \ _____ \ f \ i |
= == L) \ Vo \ e
| | o / 4| N | \ i i
| ol B 5 \ i Y| E { Aol Lo I
\/ Al \ |/ \./ \ / L E
AT \ / { o
L 1 ik A ) ! _/.._
] it 2 <ty e | T
# s o - o« o o # # o - “ - - o o # & * # - ’ 3
H -
¥ - s E B ; & | P &




DRINNY I ogig Bawein

USACDON D AR ol

sSLozEuaL av ™
e BRNRRED A paiediig

00z 00 cL s

= )

suolens|3

L

(pseog Aunog yyo uopuo)
ulepUOT BBIUOYD BjSI0

PRAUOD e
diisiny 'peod pu3 1S3 Je SpUnoio
YYD PRIRWE jo uawdojanapay

wakiig

i,

ey | s ] sy

Liow | w sz | ¥

I

(RO MAWEN WILYD
FONYNGBD OL JEVTIH MMOHS 873437 TV L]
SAINIWNOD HHOM

TIWALDY FHE HOJ HIIHD HONOHOHL
¥ INYLHIONN TIWVHE HOLIVHLINGD IHL "

THL AF UIWHOING 38 DL VIO

AUS NO HOLWHINGD

FHLAE OTEIIHD 36 D1 STHAMVA TV
‘EINIMYEID SIHL NOHA

NV 36 C1 AIND SROISNINIO O3HNO1S

= & n

EENGE

Page 134




wek |j ms A wordhmog awn A
e Ly oy
Y | COLC-LCEL o= s

o - wanny Eummy o) pansy FTENED . W
ot gl e uoneAs|d jseq pue jsap YUoN
LIS LT
P TG ﬁumhﬁr_ou E_Wr)-—
s o v HHILIE0EE — dijsinyg ‘peoy pud 1S 1B Spunoin
. e .
J z—n -—- — o YV plelsw3 jo juswdojerspay i
o T = g
171 i} s Eacmabis By ML ur (pieog Aunod yyo uopuoT)
A psadig ulepuoT| 2ejuoyn S15100 W

= .
@ RO ATTS GISGEON] MORYA 1t O

| | IR e

(MO0 NATMEN WNLYVD

ADNYNALD OL JUVIIH NMOHSE 513431 T 6
BITHIADD MM
AN 30538 ORNOHD MO 138 ONY SA08Y
EHUMMUVSIANES TIV 40 NOILYI0T
T FHLHOE HOTHD HENOMOHL

¥ TV LHIOND TIVHS BOLIVHINGD 3] ¥
SANINNOD NHOM ANY T30
EBINVATHIGHT ANV 40 HOLIVHINGD
SHL AR CENMOIND 36 0L SIS0

BY AN BHIAD 2
AL MO HOLIVHINGD

FUL AS OINIIHD 39 0L SONIMYEO TIY 2
EHAAEO GEHL WO

MENVE 36 0L ATNO ENCISNSIIO 0THNEIE |

FALON

;
TERR e LNV RS 59 HOHIVASTT S5 O

Sl — S R i . — 3 Bt
n * . H T — # u * ~ n
Yol
(ap]
—
()
(@)
Q)
_ Ik 1 1 | R i i 1 T twrt __
W ® ®w O @ ¢ 6, @®© @ ¢ © ®
5
L2
A
L e i | § ——— [ |
e e — Al
ek rR




oaet ) .j i Ag s b NGO HATMEN WISV
- 6 0L i JONYNOHO OL AUVIIH WMONS STIATI TR 5
Yo Ristsitijarg W ey e poey iz v SIDNINNOD HHOM
Ky TH0I30 “ONNOHS MOTIA QY AAOTY
HI0G dimemn SUONDES PUE 20BLIa ) SUONBAR|3 Wines ‘SILNLVEIINGTS TT¥ 40 NOUYIOT
tosee RIS D i il TNLDY IO HIIHD HANOHOHL
sl ¥ IAVLHIONN TIVHS HOIDVIINDD 3L
o SIINIOD HOM ANY FHO30.
o o ﬁsﬁ—hoo cmmz STONVITHIEIN ANV S0 BOLIVEINGD
HOTRNTT P diysiny ‘pecy pud IS8 Je Spunoisy o SHL AR OSNHOENT 38 DL “AUVIHACHADY .
ARRER Wy 3415 N BOLIVHINGSD
9 av 9 plessws jojuswdojanepay it THE A OEITIHD 30 0L SONMVHO T 2
e Sw - ENUAVEI SIHL RO
K PR . NTHVL IR O AN SNOIENIND O8NS L}
1 i st By NG 0 (preog Aunod Wy uopuo) Iy
£ peredang UiepUaT| SEjUoYT BiSion won ) i

— e \._ J/./_.|_LLLLLL “
: ......l.
e — A =
= s e ey S
o B |
S P +
(<o}
(ap]
—
L W, 3038 ) AT EEL W_an.g.)um.un.__m.n._.. O m
§ o
o 7 o o =] = E = = o Eﬁ_ _ : =] = =) E = = o o 7 o _
N N s S (A s e B ey
_ G i — ti? e S i _ |
t L R T A + e T — < T T A T S 1= - t
®© & 6 6 66 6©®© 0| ® 6 @ 0 6 e O

(7
|E3HIHYD THINGIYS 59 ) MOUY AT HINGS 4




(9| S00z-1zeL wewed) %

o S
TLEPETLEOL F¥00+ G99 ey s.
vopuo] ‘W diss )

QOO | ™ 00G: [y @ siess

/ )

Inofie] eyg speoy [euau
oL

dijsiny ‘peoy pus 1SOM 18 SpUnoin . 5 e VI B Wt
YYO) plessw jo uawdonapay

‘g

-

(pieog AUnog yye uopuoT)
uiRpUT BEIUOLY B1SI0)

R

4

|

ey

< | &

oon [ parsty | miazmomn

eigf

&

austivin] &

MO0} RATMEN WNEVD
FONVNIHO 0L SLVISH NMOHS ST T 5
SIINIANOD HHOM

gy w wygh
Lt PR
SDMVATIIEIE AN 30 HOLIVHLNGD
FHL AT ORI T OL “FAVTHC DY

LS NO MOLIVHINGD

SHL AS OINDIHD 38 OL SONMYHO TV . T
“ONIMYE STHL WO

NTAVL 38 0L ATNC SNOISNINIO 036N 8

EIION i i

P
HNOD == ﬁ- -
AT OFHSING 035008 o=y
SELEC® TRATINCHEVIGOS O3S00Nd v
VEDEE S TIAST QIHEINI QFECACHA

_U AHVONNGE AUS

an3oea




3 Feaastm anrem e FE R
v [P AT SRR T

R

o g-umconn e
TLEFEILEOT P00 B
VOPUST TVT STNS
T,

suonaag g InokeT
dajg

| 35BUd
dysinyg
PEOY PU3 1S9/ 18 SPUNCID
¥YO pleswl Jo Euﬁgoﬁ__ﬁ_umw;s

\\

UIBPUOT SBJUOLD BISI0T

qug

. J

OT:T 9|ess

T-T NOILO3S

uo $0g 8sne|a o} jeLsjew
petoedwon o) EFAB\,.

[9ra Ured pausiuld

oot

§'181

[8AST U2l

e

Jsuueg

Gc:l 9eos

ueld de)g |ealdAL

00021

o088

00044

00}:} =21edg

noAe] deyg |eaidA |

Page 138

b

09LeE 144

Jauieg

TIEFETIS )




=
(V| 600z-1zes e 7

THHALONMLES H3d .
Y IMEOZXENE 20 |\\. i

SAMTICNTE ONY NOUY DA

O3033IN NOUYETH0-00 N CHHCMMHIOTE \4\\ BIHLIVANYA .:._.s
N0 HOLIITICD - TNHALYD U 00— - SENIMYHL SONYOHOION M SNITH
t! x L\... TYHNLINHLS H3d AT MIUIE 1 OB 4901 0901 S
SNILOOH JLFHOINGT [t P B SRLCOLNSOE ) —. NYASDMN SNIIVTD 3LV SN
G2 WY JAVHD 4008 NOLLYIIENI ALIAYD \,‘. //
R0 (AN Uy BRSO NIBOLL VIAH HLIM NIVHD OHd 0oy -_

NN WG| - SONIAVHD
[

v 2v3T AN “ = £V OSEEODEOZ DN —_

m = . Er A L A HHOMEIONS 0 01—
NIBOL = S 35| — e
A EE NOLLY SN W3S TILS EISOEAGOE O = N
Al e e 08 FSOVED O THALYW |‘ VYIS HALIvH 01 03108 P
WOMCDNN D and nolid GALIVHROD W 522 SRV 0NV SN — Y )
C SdAS0L SANITIND U8V ROV HDSS ____ e
SLOZEL/aL av ™ o S NS EFUNLIVANNY HLIM i ..\

JINVOHOIIN NI SNIRSND 01

e 2 E WY3E HILIVH O

O3LI08 SILY T ONY SN ™

. , ]
0Z'L 0L ¥ B e e .t 11} NYASINIY OMIOOVTD CALKINSHE ../ /MW
|_ 1 f QALVIANL SF30 s oA
(- k ! [ aone zﬁ.b,._.._sxmu.;ﬁ.:...a /x/.. I / e sy ———en ‘lﬂ / LS
siieiaQ puE -y UoRIeg Iz PRl S B e A\qu\%\ A V0T — a3 g3Hnencs

i g ik il — ©
g L zoﬁ.____:ua_..._.%uo_zﬁtsm_ / ﬁ,&ww\u 1 - h“mu_:_..wn:qzn;«uz_umun -
1 . | #° |[ B _— \ S
i bt Q g i . NVASDNIN SNIOOVED LN INENE I\ =
PEQUOD el /l RUIET :.Esﬂq! IS z./ ﬁWW-MMrE
1 LB o HOLI HEINE 31 385N00
dysiny ‘peoy pu3 1SaM Je Spunos e TS OATINVA YD 7 r
¥V PIEIBUIT O Jusldojanapay _H .
f \ g
— a. ozk - 0z g 0zl
[ — 2 7iviL3d g87Ivisga ¥ Ivi3a
{paeog Awnog yvo uopuoT)
UlepuoT eejuoyd aisiod
% W,
L sl 0g°L 37V0S
ar | w A VY NOILD3S ONYLIO)

OY3IH NIIYW LY WOLYD ASAHNS
FONYNGBD OL JEVTIH MMOKS 8734371 TV L
SAINIWNOD HHOM

Page 13

HNANYLIB 0L gga-ﬁgowmauﬁ i

fE6E

ok lr1s

1IN0 X0A 38 01 SNIMVHD { b .
TWHNLDMHLE H3d SV ONIOVHE-X d_ Xz m O D

SALON TVHANID




(V| 0L0z-1zeL ovwend
B 7S

S AL av ™
weq DRI Ay pedang
0021 L B s
a ~
uoyosg BN
YInos pue 1sap
.y
RQUOD UEp
diisiny 'peoy pU3 1SIM 12 SPUNDID
VYO PlRIBWT jo Juawdoprspay
wakied
(pseog Aunog yyo uopuo)
UlepUOT BEILOD BISI0D

.

ar | w o a2 )

(RO MAWEN WILYD
FONYNGBD OL JEVTIH MMOHS 873437 TV L
SAINIWNOD HHOM

OO I HO HDIHD HENOHOHL

¥ IAYLEIONN TIVHS HOLOVHINGD UL F
EFINTNNDD HEOM ANY JH039
SAINVIIHIEN] ANY 40 HOLDVEINGD
AHL A OINHOIN I8 0L IUINTHSOHS Y

AUS NO HOLWHINGD

THL AR OTEOIHD 30 0L STAMVHA TV T
‘EINIMYEID SIHL NOHA

HANYL 38 OL ATND SNOISNINIG O3NS i

TEIIOR

00g:) 3708
g-8 NOILD3S 3LIS HLNOS

O

RIS O I O SONVIS IOV WS

00z:L 3TV0s
Y-¥ NOILJ3S 3LIS Ls3IM

_____

Page 140

A e




TLEREILEOI VOO
LopuaT VT IS

S -k

3oy wods) 'y s00y
147 Do) sy Bugnauo NIBOL

NIGOLS |

I “srgeys Suwein

WEAGEOW D o Rl

SLOZELAL ay ™
e PRI 4 doid

a

00zl v B amg

2 )

uchoas alg
WN0g pue 153N,

+ — e sy W g

Bupey b Daerr———— : " i . et mesmcany bine

JRAUOD UlBpn
dijsiny 'peoy pu3 15ajn 1 Spuncio
YYD piesaws jo uawdojanapay ey — |

o .
o

\I 002:1 3Tv0S (pesodoid)

{pieog Aunog vye uopuo) g-8 NOILD3S 3115 153M
UlepuoT aejuoud ajsinl

]

e | s wwy | sy s~ I F * N ——
av

r w0 B Wi 2% | ¥

(Moo MATREN RLYD
FONYNGEO 0L 20VEIY NMOHE ST3AFT TV
SIDNENND T MO
ANY FHDIEE ONOS MOTFE GNY JA0EY
SHIUULWEIHABIS TIV 3 NOLLYIDT
TNLIY 3L B0 HIIHD HOODHMOHL

W AV LHIONN TIWHS BOLIVHINGD IML v
STINIHNCD MHOM ANY J50I39
RIS TUIEIT ANY 40 HOLIVEINGD
il AS CIFNHOANG 38 OL 3UMBIOHddY

Page 141

s

LE] €
AUS NG HOLWHINGD

FHL A OFMIIHD 38 O SONMYE] TTY. z
“ENIMYHO SIHL NOEY

NNV 36 0L AINOSNOISNINO OFHNoT L

%
QUVET D 3404 VWD 38011 3OTAY 14

W #
SA10N VLS OL STSN0S WORH I3MVID0 FOVELAY W11 =

—

- - T T )
r_“ _“ - W__m_ www ..... m- %.mm ._ zw

00Z:L 3TvOS (pesedoid) B
YW NOILD3S 3LIS HLNOS

nps
1omidd DRt




l—ﬂa.—. mm 4 : LR BI0U

TR ey Bneon

PLoEeen Ha 0y ut.?
e BRORD An pavedang § ..?\
000b:L ™ ppgk B s I
4 B ;
nofer] abeueig
inod g wiojg Bupsikg /
LT

diisiny ‘peOY Pu3 ISAMA 18 SPUN0ID
YYD pieiawa Jo jusludojanapay

wakug

{paeog AQunog Wyo uopuoT)

ulepuoy sejlouD AseD L

/ SPIBOE UBWBSIIBARY JaquLL UM Buole
& L] o T USBI PUE BlUEL [E18A LM BUIBUAS Gald —

2

e

L lil )

&

vinsioos| o

= sindg guiLppl Ui
= adig4 abeulein guwc

ESEINTNNCD MO
ANY IHOIIA “ONGOWD MO ONY AO0EY

SHINYSIEIEN ANY 40 HOLIWEINGD
4L AB OIWHOAN 38 OL IIMEIOHdY
¥

LIS MO HOLVHINGD

eany sseu0 Bugsixy

U D DREA W) GU0E
[+ w2 o iy wey e Gugsnc

\
e N
saau Gussics. !
i SRS A ) :
— —— Buraian sdaofs Amvare
N\
mE——— ) a4 Bugsiey v
b
ey g Gugso: ..z.

e i Bugsng

= e el S

[iCELER]

nge"1-\42-




(8| 1002-126L oveomd)

iy [ e s

NIgoL =
B g e
RIS D opasg Pokig

FIOZI90ED av SON
] o ha paseding

000k:1 ™ 00G: v @ s

- N\

wnofe ebeureigy
N0 g Wioig pasodoig

e 3

diisIny "pEOY PUT 1SBAN 18 SPUNCIS
YV piessw3 jo weawdojsrapay

bkt

{pieog Aunod yyo uopuo)
UiEpUOT SBIUDYD) BISI0D

R ]

J

" i) e, | i

we il 7 )

2on o visesom| v
™ monii | W

1MOCH NATMEN VD
AOHVNONO OL 3UVISH NMOHS ST TV 5

STV 09408 DL 051 DA™ DINOS L

38 0L SITIND WOHS S3dld SINTHNND INVATITH
TIV OB NOULWDIAD3ES JHL HLIM SINVOHODDY HI
4 T

g 0w
.E ..Rn.«»u__- k!
s e % \
s A ._.._E.H.Sua
iy h, A
...\.\ > 1) / - /
£ o .ﬁ.\mx...\ RVR.\:: \
P P \e A Y
Lo g A 5 it
2L ! \
o < Y s %
1
w ./
e 4 - T
EL L X Bared ey g usmads sy £ o .n&h
gl
» K \ \ N
\
\ s st \ b
% » G b i)
A okl
AN N X
./
N
Oy R \ /./
bt w
\ e pre N A
../ b TR ™
=
wh )
k.
N \
n o\
N 3 \ s
e A
e
LS




(9| z00z-izes e

ﬂaii

MIBAOSO 1D sopnag pekg

FIOZI90ED av

DON
Eat] Py :ha pasdiig

Q00 L 00G: v 8 s

-

wnofer abeurelq)
Yalld pesodosd

e 3

N

YYD piesslig o wawdoanapay

diisiny "pEOY PUT 1SBAN 18 SPUNCIS

bkt

{preog Kunod ywyeo uopuoT)
UIRpUO7 OEIUDYY B1SI0D

we il 7 )

30 0L S TIND WOHS S3cdid SINTINND INVAT

3

TIV OV NOUWOLARO3ES 3HL HLIM 3ONVIHOOOY NI

T

Page 144




(W | 2002126 itoman

NORURY st st e e s

TLER TL 60T Ph00r
R THE AT
BT S0 B e 1L

...... et

NigoL =

BRI -ergee S
WHRODIN D R R

SLOTROGL ay r
Lt PR A padeding

00GL = 0GZIL WS ams
i N\

| Bany
sinofe Bumied 1en

disiny 'peoy pus Isam, je spuncin
YYD PRI jo uawdoarapay

a

wakd

{pieog Aunog vye uopuo)
UIBPUOT 8BjUOYD 2)500)
D

\_ Y,

ar Witz 2ze| ¥

(NCIOH MAWAEN WY

FONYNGEG OL 3LVTIE NMOHS 813437 TV s
) SO HAOM
ANY FHOHIE ONIKINED MOTEH CNY IA0EY
EIUTLVEIHANIS TIV 40 NOLLVIDT
UL THE B0 HITHD HENOBOHL

VINYLHIONA TIWHS HOLDVHINGD 3HL v
SHININNCD HHOM ANY THOSI9
SNV IHIEH ANY 40 HOLIVHINGD
AHL AH OFNHOIN T8 0L 3UVINAOHD Y

a T
LIS NG HOLWHLNGD

TR AG OFRIIND 36 OL STRMYE]D TTV z
ENIMYHC SINL WOHA

N3NV 38 OLANG SNOISNINO OFHNSE. 1

TEITON

DNINY T OILNYHD SV

HH_ KHVONAOH 305

GN3DT

WALSAS LHOIT DId4vud
= .
~—T& & | Z|®
m.cm
25
) e L P
8o _
¥ P 2 / 7 # 7
s i e b 4 .
PuzEy g alguiw o)
P 0 01 Guigiay on S0y
®
uoissiulad Buiuue) il
pajueis) se jnoke e
Bupped sioN
/
(g ZexeL)
HOLId ONINIYHL | 1
SSYHD Q3sDd0Ed
eae passeub o ;
SR AP WL
i
=
N
<i
= .\ \_ N
£
r\W\_
# A
; Lo
<p
%
X g
A &
by

(0350d0dd) | Y3HY LNOAYT ONIMHYL ¥YD

(ONINY1d A3LNVEO SY) | YIHY LNOAY T ONIMEYd ¥v0




80LE-LCEL  omtumn

(v

O NN S
WRIEHE 1M Saivil

BORUCY “THE FTMS

By srqrs S
WERODON D U0 ROl

SLOZRVGL ay r
e PRI A paiidiig

c.cm“w £ [+ ry B amg

£ B

2 eary
sinofe Bumied 1en

dijsiny 'peoy pu3 158/ 1 SPUNCID
WY plesaws jo juswdojarspay

wakd

{pieog Aunog vye uopuo)
UlepuoT aejuoyd 21800

]

J

“a ] | = |ww

r Witz 2ze| ¥

[kl )

INCIO) NAWEN HIUYD

FONYNGHO OL IV NMOHS ETAIT TV 8
) SIININN HAOM
ANY FHOSFE "ONODMD MOTHH ONY 08T
BAUNLVEIHANIS TIV 40 NOLLVIOY
TWNLIV THL HOS HIFHD HENOB@OHL

W IAYLHIONA TN HOLOVHINGD JHL 7
SRONINNOD HCM ANY TH0439
BIONVAIMIEN] ANY 0 HOLIVHINGD
AHL AE OINHOMN 38 O "3IVINdOND IV

a E T

3UIS NO HOLIVALNGD »

L A8 OIRDIND IA OLERMEI T £

CONIMYEC SIHL NOHS

NANYL 38 0L AINC SNOISNINIG Q3HN0 1

EITEN

SPU3 WIS 18 paeisy)
pue payddng aq o1 SN doig
1 50d Buion 'sees paaediug

Existing Footpath

syt 3 i

95

H

-
-

>

ey B o
pereny mas o8 g

Eer
05 ORIV
TomerINa
T

KHMOINTIOE 3418 =

GN3DT V

g pen
asay g map pascding

B ]

(@350d0¥d) Z ¥3dY LNOAY T DONIMEYd HvO

Badminaigans { bored
A o0 B 0 0
T Sl T

etz SN D vy
ot ma T g

Page 146

s Funtoeic ]

(ONINY1d A3LNVEO SY) £ YIHY LNOAY T ONIMEYd ¥v0

315



Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Aot 1888 {the Act)

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:

Gaelic Athletic Accos
Sports Ground
West End Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
24373/APP/2016/1511 1:3,000
Flanning Committee: Date:
July 2016

Major page 147

LINGDON

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address UNIT 2, TRINITY TRADING ESTATE SILVERDALE ROAD HAYES

Development: Change of use of an existing storage depot (Class B8 Storage and
Distribution) into a waste transfer station (Sui Generis Waste Handling).

LBH Ref Nos: 70738/APP/2015/4688

Date Plans Received: 22/12/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/12/2015
Date Application Valid: 22/12/2015

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 148



735000004 dwg - D5A0/2015 14:18:47

rawinig e | R

B2073500-0001/0

LA
4020 IR
o '
“ .
) Hs

r

— A=

Lake Farm
Country Park

W &>

i

A

iy,

= AdPorirait-H Frame - ALRobens
T

- Application Site Location

FIGURE 1

| Ak House, %hﬁur&?lm ‘::g S Dvve, Srrmwabury SY28.0
Y i SITE LOCATION PLAN
Ll
o 100 200 300 400 500 @ croup
METRES Prejact 13 sk
PHS HAYES DEPOT I

v [ orews | EEIE PLANNING APPLICATION e e DCVHINY SCALE
fiv | Rav. Do | Purpase of cevison | forecsal move |peons Cimim
This dmwi_n‘g s not w_-b_e used in whole or-pi_m aiher than for the intended Drawing e R
:ems:r:nqp:mile?asdemmmwwmw. Referto the confract for fll Page 1 49 320?3500'0001 0




SUORRE0S DT F)
wio s ok pam smodmd
DDA U1 ) UTU) S0 L 50 oM. CrEn 20 0) 1ou 2 B sy

0 Z2000-005€L029

-y ]

IS IONDO | Yo | =

NY I 42078 ONIONTINI NYId JLIS

Z3dn9id
s tamy
NOLLYOI ¥ SNINNY 1
10430 SIAVH SHd -
i

dnosn S

)

o i A
D A e e g T A 430 VST

SEOOVIr

e | orias 2 st e

=== =] =

jueoyddy auy
10 (UG IBPUN PUET [BUOHIPRY

Mepunog uoneoaddy m:._::m_n_m

A3

aluas ssauisng saler 19)ad

zaun enun

Buiyied le]
ieg 2
0.
W
il
2
ealy Bulianaouepy
8, JI2IY3A paieys
&/ /
F//
h- f
sw. !
Luun /! %
8SNOH SHd /)&
; %«

Buiyied 1ed

Page 150

0/2000-005£.L0289

g g B

BRQOUTY - RRY ATY - ¥5 8 SLOR0LED -



Industrial Estate %/

W ; e : r Peter James
P it 7 . Business Centre
3 = ]

' . il E - 3
I ril | & - oo l'-»_‘ - L
o - N
v - ": - -

Warehous e

Warehouse

asnoUSJEM

Johnson's
Industrial
Estate

Aiuas seallsnd SllEH

Notes: Site Address: : LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary Unit 2 OF HILLINGDON
S— : Trinite Trading Estate Residents Services
of identification purposes only : Planning S ection
This copy has been made by or with Silverdale Road Civc Cenire, Undridge, Meddx UB2 tUW
the authority of the Head of Commitiee Telephone Mo, Uxbnidge 250111
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the - - - 5 £
e R Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 {the Ad. 70738/APP/2015/4688 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides s relevant
sxCeption o, copiright. Flanning Committee: Date:
& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey i
100018283 Major Page 151 R A LonDon




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1-3 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Change of use of Unit 4 to Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP) recycling
facility and associated alterations to the external elevations, addition of an
exhaust stack, storage tanks and substation

LBH Ref Nos: 1911/APP/2016/1472

Date Plans Received: 14/04/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 14/04/2016

Major Applications Planning Committee - 14th July 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 152



oD s||1ys-palelBaurmmm slis gap
woo's||iys-paieifaiui@ojupin lew-3
€86 /8/ 08820 2L
MD8 LS0S ailysdwey ‘Aeswoy
18a11g |jeg 2¢ ‘esnoH |jeg

" paywr] sl pejesbo]

B
910z |udy eleQ
oY fq pesedaid
vV @ SIN ajeog
LO/OOT1/ 9P/ LOMON ON Buimelq
uoneoo elg

peoy efpuaxn g-1 ‘p uun —108loid

pejiWI] sjsemouy — Juslio

S =yl 7

Page 153



w\
NA
./
T~
T
S~
7 |
N
.!.I..Il
=]

W/

N

//




< Z00ZE-6.SY i
v | |
o2 AT ONNO¥D L NVId THIAO
U T I ==
ANV ONITDADSY dHY 193roud | — —_—
JLSVAONH o | —

—_—

LEERERrrey

— D0EE-BLSH




Z s L00ZE-BLSY it

LY
=] 57331 WOOSH aNY NOO09
0oz 1% NVId TIvH3AD —_—
W WIS L | —— e =
INVId ONMDADIYM dHY  103rONd | e .
JISYMONH  INGID | R -

LEERERrrey

e*|e*|e

__Page 156

e s S S S5 s
w002 -6 ONITING NO NOUYATTS H
005 -545Y SO0 o

TORE-uSy TIFT GNOCED 1Y W TSN // S




Jﬁx 9002€-6LSY  wia SNITTING 30 39V 153N NG MIA

ONITINE NO SNOILVATT3 B H 9 @
051-1 _— - :

:. s o 1
= TES
e ]

002 -BiSh NOUIVHLXE ONY W3LSAS T0UINGS. HN0OG.

UNENAINGS SSA00MS WK ONIMOHS NI VB0

|  EOOIE-BiSH SKOILDFS
TOUTE-BLGE AT ONNOHS I NV TIVHEAD
LO0ZE-6L5Y 130T MOCSy ONY NOG0S 1v NYid TMIAD

‘GHLE/ZI0Z/ /L LEL INSSNOD ONINNYI HO4
CIIDIAS SHACTCD KON OL HIWLS LSONHIG ONY SHOGO MEN L

] i) T F ] B} L ] 1 3 it

[

Page 157




C ray
(A4

[
00z
FW0S.

€00TE-6LSY  ou

SNOILD3S
ELUR

INVId SNMTOADZY dHY  103r0Hd

JUSYMONA  INITD

106600E 1310 ta) Tre X3 0065 POE 1940 0) s uouSRaL g '
QALINIT NYIW334d4 N3AVYH ‘

;sz_z_ﬁ_’:

innre |

.::._.r ...................
“pacmgaidas i AL
Gieidan| % k) ¥ | as JONis 033 s qanes | 0 St e
DISERS A bl A BrS NOLVREOING B0 O3NSS L
B0 [ ais e e i i i
| H H
~ !
! _
_ _
; L
] a3 i
_
eI _
|
_m” _ [e0]
! Lo
E _ —
P ! ()
| o))
I [
| o
_
_ m
_ _
| |
= ._ o w0
_
T _
|
|
n.. [
o
|
aer S DS
_ R |
100ZE=6LEY HOUIWELG ONY WILSAS TOUINGD ¥A0G0 = T
"INININGT SSEO0MA MW ONIMOHS: MYid THUIND _
GOOEE-BLGY SNIOTNG NG HOWVATT i
TOOZE-BLGY TIATT ONNOHE 1¥ Niid TEIAD _
LDOZE=6L5Y $130T) MOOSY ONY WOGOT ¥ NV TIvang C "
SONWET TWIITTE 1 t
_ _
| |
TS | & 2 F 3 T :§ it B 5




0
A ey Dt Rarad Back
;

e

.ﬂ

55T

s
i

kel 1)
i ..LJ_W =% S

WErshouss

T
== -

L]

&

I

]
)

¥

I

o = —
Oz . St o
20 3=55
OQ=s=55 &
K53 -
QZvwn 4 e
M7 g of>
Z-gERZ =8
IM"Un_._.._
Orgais =
=5z 8% »
(o) w_r i i
- & -
o
o —
o o
-3 o~
o™ =
STl .
o ™ g
g |43
o »
o el
=t o o —
u—hd = (0]
c 2 < >
5 = X
L0 R o
x £, 8
= S | _m
(3] .u_m L e—
20 T2 ®
S a = =
i oL
wm pA =]
5 < = |0
= =
B E e |E
o C o= =]
5 = =
i m m
o [ a:
[
si£
. #
m “HTt u B
5 L ] i}
= ..D:dm.m ] a2
S 1 w ; 4.
3 8 8% . 34
o E 8 ng =..._n_m
L 5 mMmﬁ W.W_MH
w2 BEcy B EsEo
5 8231735008
] i
m-_m _m .mm,M.Drﬁw.nnmbm.nuH
B @28 nEas §con
z g gslegpzifio
= m .EEMH mcmhm
£ c28835ka92




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



	Agenda
	5 Former Tommy Flynns P.H. Sutton Court Road, Hillingdon - 8396/APP/2016/777
	6 Gaelic Athletic Accos. Sports Ground, West End Road, Ruislip - 24373/APP/2016/1511
	7 Unit 2, Trinity Trading Estate, Silverdale Road - 70738/APP/2015/4688
	8 1-3 Uxbridge Road - 1911/APP/2016/1472
	PART I - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee

